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PROCEEDINGS
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The Chief Justice: Case No. 565, Radlo Corporation of
5 | America versus the Unlted States.
i - The Clerk: Counsel are present.
ARGUMENT ON BEHALF OF APPELLANT RCA, ET AL.,
by Mr. Cahill,

Me. Cahill: May it please the Court, thils case is here
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i on direct appeal from a tvo-to~one declslon of a statutory
i three-judge court in the Seventh Circult, granting appellee-
defendantis motlon for summary Judgment and dismissing the
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ecomplaint herein.

é This 18 2 sult to enJoln an order of the Federal Communica-
% tions Commission, which we allege thresatens o seriously
impair the televislon service now enjoyed by 45 millionm people.

We further allege that the order threatens an investment

by 12 million television receiver ouners by billions of dollara.
This sult was brought to enjoin the order of the F.C.C.
whilch authorized for the first time commercial broadecasting
by the incompatible CBS Color System, and which order,. &s well,'
outlawed commercial broadcasting by any other color system.
The sult 1s brought under Section %402(a) of the Cormunica-
tions Act, which authorlzes Judiclal revieus of orders of this

kind.

Appellants Include the Redio Corporatlon of Amerlca, the

National Broadcastling Company, aad the RCA Vietor Distributing
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Corporation, another subsidiary of RCA, which sells televislon

pecelvers to dealers ln the Clty of Chicago. Other appellants

are represented by separate counsel.

Appellees herein are the F.C.C. and the Unlted States.

% .CBS intervened below and ig an appellee here.

,é The order in quéstion was adopted after hearings held in
the City of Washington, and at those heerings three color
systems were consldered. The CBS System, which was exclusively
adopteduby the Commisslion, is the only incompatible system of
the three. |

By "incompatible" I mean that no television picture

'whatsoever can be received by any of the 12 million sets now
in the hands of the public from the color transmissions of the
C€BS System.

If this order went into effect today, color broadcasts

made in accordance with the order could not be received by the
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45 million people who are now membere of the television audience.
The public's investment of over $3 billion in home receivers
in the last fivé years would be rendered ineffective to the
extent that there are color broadcasts under the CBS incowpaitlble
system, which this Commission has exclusively adopéed -= that is,
they would be completely out of business, these 12 million sets,
unless hundreds of mlllions of dollars are spent by the pudblilc

for expensive alterations on their gebs.

Vow these hundreds of willions of dollars which the
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individual sebt owners collectlvely would have té speid -- and

if they have thet money, and I very much doubt because thousands
of these sets are bought on time intallmenit payments -- these
hundreds of millions of dollars would have to be spent just to

get an inferlor black and white pilcture, not a color ploture

%

at all, Jjust an laferlor black and white picture from the

color transmissions of the CBS Systenm.

Justlce Frankfurter: You mean the black ané whlite would

'be degraded as 1t were because of the color?

" Mr. Cahill: Degraded;< This is a 60 percent step backward
in the existing black and white pilecture. The black and white
pieture that the set owner will receive will have only 40
percent of the picture detall that he gets today. That is the

¥ind of black and white picture he wlll get from the CBS color

transmissions.

sarpmnt

Justige Frankfurter: Mr. Ca2hill, in the interest of tiﬁe

would you mind sbtating whensver you make a statement of fact

A L ¥

when that fact i3 conceded on both sides and when 1t is contro-

verted?

TR

Mr., Cahill: This ls conceded. There 18 no question.

Justice Frankfurter: I am not talking about this, but
generally.

Mr. Cahill: Yes, I wlll be glad to.

Justice Burton: Would they still be eble to see an RCA

“

black and white pilcture withoul modlfication?
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Mr. Cahill: If the RCA System were adopted -- and I will

come to that in a minute -~ without touching the recelver, the
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get OWNEY --

. Justice Burton: Not if the RCA System were adopted but

if the preseunt order of the F.C.C. stocod, what would become of

RCA black and white?

A s AN T

Me, Cahill: He would not be able to get it if he adapted

his set to 405-line transmission,

| ' Juétice Burton: When he adapted it he also cut out the
RCA receiving abllity?

! Mp. Cahlll: No, he cam put in a switch which will enable

him to go from the 525-1line RCA black and white transmission
to the 405-l1ine CBS transmlssion.

H Justice Burton: And if he does not do anything, he can

get the RCA broadeast wlthout any trouble and he cannct get the
CBS?
i Mr. Cahill: That 1s correct.
Justice Burton: So you would have a monopoly on his
use of your broadcasts?
Mr. Cahlll: Ve would have not 2 monopoly, Your Honor,
: because presumably this order is to be taken very seriously.
I am sure that 1f the broadeaster doez not broadeast 1n color,
when his license comes up for renewal that would be consldered
as to whether he 1ls broadcasting in the public lnterest.
Further than that, CBS haeg prbmiged 20 hours of golor
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proadeasting & weel, &and X take iv they will Llive up to their
promise.

I there 18 any wmonopoly here, it is the CBS monopoly in
color, ©o which £ shall addrvess myseld in a few minubes.

Justice Burton: Thepe is something I want to get cledr.
These.pebple who now have these television sets, without doing
anything, without spen&iﬁg any money, thaj counid sUili get the
RUA'télevision broadceast without any trouble?

Mr. Caniil: 9Yhey can s8%i1ll get RCA standard black and

white.




Justice Burton: Same as they are now?

Justice Clark: Suppose your gystem were adopted, how would’
théy get the color?

Mr. Cahill: Well, I am coming to that, if I may, your
Honor. I should like to develop first the situation in regard
4 to what happens to the existing black and white service, and

i then deal with color service.

"Justice Clark: Of course ycu cculd, could you not,
broadcast both black and white and color, or could you do that?
Mr. Cahill: No, you could not. That is one of the points

I make against the order. This is the most expensive from the

S M SR AT et st

public standpoint of chamnel utilization. That is an argument

I would like to develop at some length.
You can not slmulbtaneously under the CBS system broadcast
the exlisting black and white and CBS color. I should like
g to deal with that when I come to it.
§ Justice Clark: You would have %o broadoast elther black

and white or color?

Mr. Cahill: Under the CBS system. That is not true under

A A e e e SN T TR IR

the RCA gystem.
% Under the RCA system all you do i1 add certain charac-
teristics to the existing signal, and if you have a color‘
recelver, you will receive the plcture in color; if you have
an existing black and white »e2ceiver, you will r2ecelive the

RCA color as a black and white pleture. I uwill go Into that at

3
¥




i some length-

i Justice Reed: I am not clear; but do I understand that

the CBS system wlill not be able to broadcagt any black and whitve?
Mr. Cahill: No, that is not so, 1f your Honor please.

The CBS systenm will not be received on existing black and

A A N e P Ry e e A

- white recelvers.
8 Justice Reeds You mean 1ts color system?

Mr., Cahill: Its color system will not be recelved either

A TN

in color or as a black and white plcture, as things stand now.

T2 R i

Jugtice Reed: What about your black and white broad-
casts? |

Mr, Cahill: If there are black and white broadcasts as
they are nouw before the orderr goes into effect?

Justice Reed: Well, after the order goes into effect,
will they still be broadcast in black and white as well as
color?

Mr. Cahill: There will be some broadcasting of black and
white, there 1s no doubt.

Justice Reed: They will broadcast 20 hours a week on
cﬁlor?

Mr, Cahill: No, they can broadcast more than that if
they wish. GBs'éromised that as a minimum.

Justice Réed: They will have at least that amount?

Mr, Canlll: Yes, aund 1t may be a great deal more.

Justice Reed: Buot alze sane black and white?
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Mr. Cahill: Thera undoubtedly will be some black and
white. |

‘Juatice Reed: By whom?

Mr. Cahill: I would assume by CBS.

Justice Reed: They can 1f they want to?

Mr. Cahill: They can if they want to.

Justice Clark: It is true then you could broadcast both?

Mr. Cahill: Not simultaneously, Mr. Justice.

Jusﬁice Clari: I di1d not mean simultaneously. If you
want to put on a style show, we will say, in the afternoon,
and have color, why, you could broadcast that in color, and
then this afternoon you could broadcaat the crime committee
in black and white.

Mr., Cahlll: I want to go 1nto‘that, and I want to show
Just how difficult it is to do that. I want to develop that
at some length. I am going to come to that in about five or
10 minutes, 1f I nmay.

Justlce Reed: TYou say you can not do it simultaneously?

Mr. Cahill: You can not do 1t simultaneously.

Justice Reed: From the same transmitter?

Mr., Cahill: ©No, it can not be done from the same trans-
mitter.

Justice Reed: It could be done by two transmitters?

My, Lahill: But then you weuld be using two wave lengbths,

and that 1s the scarcest thing uwe have, these wave channels.

I e i 2
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Justice Reed: Ig CBS broadcasting in color now?

Mr. Cahill: These broadcasts are not on the alr now.

When I say in theory your black and white pilctures, I mean
just that. The black and white pictures which the publie will
get from the CBS color transmissions will have bub 40 per cent
of the picture detall that those pictures have today.

Now the.ﬁicture which the present set owner.will get after
he has 5ogght'the device called an adapter, whlch will set him
back $50, plus an.installation charge of $15 more, will be that
degraded black and white picture.

" Now this order 1s 1like unto the order of a nythical
commission which said that hereaiter all automobiles may
operate on a fuel which will make them inoperable, but if you
buy a gadget called an adapter for your carburetsr zud pay |
$50 for it, plus an installation charge of $15, thereafter your
car will work almost half as uell as. it does now. That 1s,

40 per cent as well as it does now.,

On the other hand, the compatible RCA systen, ﬁhich the
publlc 18 prohlbited by this order from seelng, was also
brought before the Commission in these hearings.

Now all television broadcasts -- and I want.to stress
that ~- under the RCA compatible color gsystem can be receilved
as black and white picbtures by all of the 12,000,000 receivers
today in the hands of the public withouit touching tThose

receivers. That is, the pregent black and white.pictures
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operate on the RCA color signals Jjust as they operate on the

existing black and white signals.

Now to put the difference between these two systems --
the incompatible CBS system and the compatible RCA system =~

in recent focus, Mr. Justice, I will take the hearings of the

]

Kefauver Committee, because I know of no program which has
done more to dramatize the importance of the existing black
and whlte service than the hearings of the Senate committee.

Justice Frankfurter: T hope we do not have to take

B, GBI

Judicial notlce of the value or signiflcance or validity of

that performance.

A T el

Mr. Cahill: No, you do not. (Laughter)
When those hearings were broadecast on existing standards
. 45,000,000 people could look at them. . If RCA color were
; V adopted, agaln, everybody could sce them as black and whlte
pictures without touching the receivers, and anyéne having
an RCA color recelver could receive them in color.
: Justice Burton:. I the CBS order, the present order,
were In effect, those same people receiving it could réceive
1% in black and white under that order, 18 that right?
Mr. Cahill: ©No, they could get nothing, absolutely
nothing.
Justice Burton: Even though RCA 18 putting 1t on as it

18 now, they could not get what they are getting now?

i Mr. Cahlll: I the brcadcast we are talking about were
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a broadcast of CBS color, the exilsting recelvers as they stand

g
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would obtaln no picture whatsoever.
Justlice Burvon. I am talking about a RCA broadcasting of
the Kefauver Commltiee. Suppose the present order that we have
© peen talling about here that was 1ssued by the F.C.C. were in

effect and the Kefauver Commlttee hearing was on, and the RCA

s i L et Lo VAU e i i

broadcast 1t as they broadcast 1t now, couldn?®t the people with

the sets see it Jjust the same as they do now?

Mr, Cahill: Yes, Mr. Justice.

R R e S

o “

Justlce Burton: Under the CBS order?

{1 i R

Y

Mr. Cahill: No. Mpr, Justice, you keep talking about %the

RCA black and white system, there 18 no such thing as the RCA

e R R T

black and white system.

L Justice Burton: The present system.

g

Mr. Cahill: The present system of black and white would
be recelvable by all existlng receivers, as it is today.

Justice Burton: Just as it 18 today under the F.C.C.
order. You could see it then just as jou can see 1t ﬁow?

Mr. Cahill: The F.C.C., order has nothing to do with that.

Justice Burton: So the people would not be cut off from
the Kefauver Committee by this order going into effect?

Mr, Cahill: Uader the exisfing orders; but 1f the broadcasts
1 were under the terus of the order -~ that is, a transmission of
the CBS color system ~< the existlng recelvers woulﬁ_gat

§ absolutely nothing.
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Justice Burton: But 1f you kept on doing what you are
doing now, they could get Jjust what they are getting now?

Mr. Cahill: That is right, 1f you do not broadcast under
the order we are talking about here, nothing happens. The
time that something happens 18 when you begin %o opgrate under
this order. That is the time The existing recelvers get
nothing. | .

| Justice Reed: There is no reason why both systems should
not be focused, 1f that 1s the word, upon the Kefauver Committee,
is thére? |

Mr. Cahill: There is no reason why a person who buys an
adaptef should not recelve 1it.

Justice Reed: I mean, Jjust right now if this was in effect
and the Columbia Broadcasting System of television were there
and also the other ordinary black and white, both would be
transmitted?

Mr. Cahill: Not by the one transmitter.

Justice Reed: No?

Mr. Cahill: By two transmitters, using two channels?
Justice Reed: Yes,

Mr, Cahille That 1s correct.

Justice Reed: And 18 that the usual practlice for three

- or four broadcasting companies to go on the sane «-

Mr. Cahill: ©No, 1t has aever been done before. This use

"of two transmitters for the one service has never erept up before,
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an extenslve part of my nrgusent, that this 1s

4
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washaful in requiring the ude of two channels, and I would
1ike to go into thakt at Some length guite a while later.

Juntice Glavit: They do have two transmitiers oo radio
snd televisiong they would have sepavate ones, would they not ?

Mr. Canill: I bem vour pagdon?

Justice Clark: Ag of today, when they have a Separaie
srensmiszter for vadio and a sepsrats transwltter for television -
Do they not?

Mr, Cahill: Those are separate services, Mr. Justice,
you are quite right. |

Justice Clark: And you could not have a separate trans-
mitter for black and white and a sSeparate transmitter for
color?

Mr. Cahill: Yés, 1f you want %o be very wasteful énd
double the expenditure of the scarcest thing we have, which
this Court said the Commission was created to conserve,
namely, these channels.,

Justice Clark: I thought the record lindicated that it
did not cost much on the CBS to change over to color. -

"Mr. Cahill: Oh,'it costy qﬁite a bit, your Honor. I
have not come yet to what 1t costs to change over. I have
dealt how'only with what it cost8 Ho get even a'degradea

black and white plcture. I shall cowe in a moment to uwhat

it costs %o get color,
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Justlce Clark. Of course, that i1s the ultimate objective,
18 i$~not; color?

Mr. Cahill: That 1s the ultimate obJective, your Honor.

Now, the third color system considered at these hearings
was a theoretically compatible color System of a company called
Color Television, Incorporated. That third system 1s not
1n§olved in this 1itigation;

Now, the Commission®s order here before us is based on two
reports, and the two rep;rts are professedly founded wholly

and entirely on technical engineering consideratlons, but the

arresting fact is what the Commission has done is to distort

" the most cowpelling reason for the rejection of the CBS

system ~- namely, 1ts incowpatlbllity -~ into the sole reason
for its immediate adoption.

Now, that 18 the rationale of both these reports. The
Commission reasons that they must not allow the problem
of compatibility to become any greater, because 1f they do
1t will never be possible to adopt an incompatible system -~
and, by the way, the CBS is the only incompatible system -

because of fthe ever-increasing number of sSets in the hands

of the public.

Now, these two reports of the Commission purport to be

based on hearings which lasted nine months. During those

hearings nobody advocated the adoptlon of the incompatible

CBS system except CBS itself.
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There appeared before the Commlssion the leading experts

of the television industry -- Dr. Allen DuMont, who bestified,

of the DuMont Laboratories; Dr. Baker of General Electrlc;
D. B._Sﬁith of Philco; Dr. Lee DeForest, father of radio, co-
called; and Axel thnéon of the Bell Labortories of A. T. and
T., who tesﬁified as the Commission®s own witnese; and Independent
experts, such as Donald Fink of the-Jbint Technieal Advisory
Committee, who appeared.

Now; all of these wltnesses gave testimony supporting the
adbption of a compatible, high quality system. All of

these men have years'behind them of experience and honorable

reputafions in their chosen profession of radio and televisilon

engineering.
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A1l these men have heret§fore been respected and honored
by the Commission. None of them advocated the adoption of the
incompatible CBS system.

The Commlesion in 1ts first report makes 1t expressly
plain that it réjected all of thelr testimony. This is the
first time that anything of the kind hae oeccurred in the
history of radio or television,

Heretofore the Commission has relied upon the professiounsi

opinion of the engineers of the lndustry. This disregard of

the professional opinion of the engineers is epitomized in
the separate cohcurring opinion of Commissioner Jones, a

lawyer with no technical background. The Opinion of Commisgsiounwu:

Joneg =-

A R

Justlce Frankfurter. Do you think that helps?

ST W S g At

Mr. Cahill., I beg your pardon?

i

Justice Frankfurter. Do you think that helps the solution

of this problem, because 1f it does, it is the first encouraging

R S R B

words I have heard about it.

X 5

Mr, Cehi1l, T trust that it will in = moment, Your Honor.

The. opinion of Commisszloner Jones consists almost entiretiy
of a dlatribe agalnst the entire radio engineering profession.
It 1s devoted to the theme that the scientistes of this in-

% dustry have glven sham testimony throughout the years on the

matter of color television, It goes to the extent of clearly

Tz ey et
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impiying that tho pedcdesgional opinicn of these digtingrished
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scientists has been prostituted to the commercial deslres of
thelr respective companies.

Now there 1s incorporéted in this record an editorial by
Donald Fink, himself a distinguished and outstanding engineer.
Mr. Fink says of Commissloner Jones’ opinion, and I quote
very briefly:

"The burden of this opus is thet the industry committees
wvhich he testified before the FCC oun televislion matters have
systematically obstructed the introducfion of color television
hy sham eungilineering testlmony.

"Accérding to Jones none of the nembers ~-

Justice Black. On what page is the opus to whieh’gou
refer?

Mr., Cah11l. The opus of Commissioner Jones 1s at Record
193.
| The Chief Justice, wés there any testimony before the
Commission other‘thap the sclentists, the experts to whom you
refer?

. Mr. Céhill. There was no testimony, 1f I understand
The Chief Justice’s question, supporting the adoption of an
incompatible system. A1l the testimony except that of the €3S
engineers, was In favor of a compatible systeé.

The Chief Justice. Then evidently they had some testimony;
is that right?

Mr. Cehil1l. The CRS englneers,
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The Chief Justice. Yes.

Mr. Cahill. Yes, Your Honor, and I want to deal with that.

The Chief Justice. Now the FCC has to make a determination,
does it not, when you have contrary evidence?

Mr. Cahill. Oh, yes, Your Honor; and I shall say that
here they dld not have enough evidence, and they said so then~
selves.  They said in three 1mpor£ant respects, as I shall
discuss, that they had to base thelr decision on wvhat they
called,.and I guote, "speculation and hope", and I say that
that is-ﬁﬁe first time that any cbmmission has ever come be-

fore this Court asking that its order be upheld on the basis

. of nothing more substantlial than what they have been pleased

to call "speculation and hope".

Thé Chief Justice. What dld they say ahout the end product
of the testimony of the scientists? Had thejy characterized that
relative to "hope"?

Mpr., Cehill. They found, as I will discuss, Your Honor,
.that they needed more information in order to enable theﬁ to
reach a decislon,

The first repcort of the Commission reached no decision.
Thereafter, without taking any evidence whatsoever, 40 days |
later, the Commission came down with a second report and an
order exclusively adopting the CBS system,

Now finishing this comment on Commissioner Jones:

"hecordling S0 Jonun, come of the membors of these engineer
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ing groups, excepting the two CBS members, have presented
censistent, reliable and trustworthy testimony during the
past ten years. We wonder whether the worthy Commissioner
xnows the men he so recklessly and immoderately attacks.
"The comhined membership of those committees comprises
171 men, 45 of whom are Fellows of the Institute of Radio
Engilneers; P5 dilrectors, past and present, of that hody: e
past presidents: 6 men who hold the IRE Medal of Honor: and
Y othérs who have won the Morris Liebman prize.

"An indietment of these men is an indlctment of the

whole profession of radio engineering. They have dealt with the

radlo service of the United States from the earliest days.

N e e e £ gl S e e TS e et TR S S B
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"They have managed the technical effort in electronics

during two wars. Without thelr cooperation, the FCC simply

s
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cannot functlon in regulating its highly technical domain.

-

"When one man aligns himself against a whole. profession,

falr minded men will consider that the man is wrong. The

% only systematic‘aspect of this r;cord presented by Jones

% is his own systematic rejectlon of any testimony that dis-

% agrees with his own noiions, Moreover, the testimony 1s re-
% Jjected not merely as wvrong but as inten*ionaliy dishonest,

§ That 1s-demagoguery.”

; Now, as T eaid, Mr. Chief Justice, one might well expect
3

 % after these lengthy hearings that the Commission would have
% come up with a decision in its {irst report. That is not

3, .'""i*‘-?iia" Al
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the fact.

In the first report the Commission adopts no system,
It'says that if the Coummission adopts the ilncompatible CBS
system, it will be basing its decision on "speculation and
hope" in several important respects.

~Juystice Clark. VWhere is that statement in the record

about "speculation and hope"?

i
DN
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Mr. Cahill. It is at Record Page 165, paragraph 146,
both the third and fourth 1line and the last two lines of the

paragraph.

Turning now to the three important respects in which
this Commission by its express admission acted on "specula-~
tion and hope" -- and I might say, ﬁhat the order adopting
the CBS system was by a divided vote, five to two ~=- first,
the Commission gpeculated and hoped that the all important
limitation on picture size of the CBS color system might be

eliminated at some future time.

vl A T R S el i R N BRI R

Now let me explaln why this limitation exlsts. Duriung

e

the ten years that CBS has been tinkering with this system
1t has not changed in any fundamental respect whatscever

the apparatus which it uses to get color.

Ten years ago CBS used mechanical spinning wheels. Today

LA R R e N B 4

it sti1l1 uses mechanical spinning wheels to produce the color.

The one spinning wheel is In front of the camera in the studio,

the other spinning wheel ls In front of the picture tube in
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your living room.

Now it is this mechanical aspect of the CBS color system

which puts this terrific limitation on the maximum size of 1lts

picture.

I might say still further that the disc in front of the

recelver in your home, since 1t must cover the euntire picture,
requires that the center of the disc be st one side of the
plcture. Every recelver under the CBS system will have a

separate electyric motor in your room, which will turn the

e e D e s R S T 2 Sl
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dise at a rate of 1,440 revolutions per minute, the same specd

ey g 2k N e
(e

as the speed of %“he motor in front of the camera in the tele-

g vigion étudio. |
h% Now these whirling dlscs contain plastic filters of red.
% green and blue, and 1t is the presence of'those plagtic fllters
% in the splnning discs in front of the degraded black and white
% picture which adds the color in the CBS system.

% Since those plastie spinning discs have got to be slighie-
% 1ly more than twice the size of the face of the pilcture tube

% on your réceiver, it 1s conceded that the maximum direct-view

é pleture that can be obtained in coior undef the CBS system is
% only 12 1/2 inches.

% Now the American pzople, on the other hand -- and this is
i not disputéd -~ are dally expressing thelr decided preference

g to the extent of 90 per cent of the sets belng sold for plcture

g sizes 16 inches and larger,
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So that the Commission in exclusively adopting a system
with pictures limited to 12 1/2 inches, is setting 1ts judg-
ment agalnst that of the public which it is created to serve.
That 1s, by standardlzing on something midget sized as con~
_tragted with the public wish for iarge screen television.

Again 1t is asvif some.mythical commission were to
standardize on four-cylinder automobiles when the six and eight
cylinder cars were known to exist and they were being bought
by praéticalls everybody. Or to take an analogy from the
fleld of sports, it is as if we were to standardize exélusively

on minigture golf when the public had been accustomed to play-

ing on elghteen hole golf courses.
Not even CBS really belileves that the American pubiic

will be satisfied with midget screen television. As far bvack

o
Seind

. . T T T T
o it . i e st a8y e, SRl ik i 9
Gt i by T e 4 ARl Sl PR ATSY ;i T 2

as 1944 CBS thought that an 18-inch screen -- and I quote --
"was the size most folks seemed to want in their living room."
Today 30-inch black and white sets are being offered to the
publiec.

Now CBS proposes that these spinning wheels be added both
in new receivers and in existing receivers after the ifty-

dollar job to produce the degraded black and white pieture is

7 e Pt St S o e SR N e el s B AR

first done to the existing recelver.

3
e, S

The DuMont Iaboratories in the hearings showed the

S e e

Commission what a spinning disec converter would be like on

one of their 19-Iinch black and whilte recelvers, not one of
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thelir realily big receivers, not one of the 30~-inch receivers.

The counverter had all the aspects of a Rube Goldberg
cartooan or one of ths equally fancy inventions of the comedian
Joe Cook, ‘ .

These converters, these spinning wheels, introduced to an
all-electronic art, a mechanical device as archaic as the
magic lantern is to the modern movie projector, and they do
not come f'or free.

Eﬁerybody who wants one of these splinning wheels wlll
first have to adapt his set at the cost of $50, plus a $15
instaliation charge, and then lay out an additional $100, plus
another installation charge of approximgtely $15 in order to
get the mechanical spimning eonverter before he ever getsy a
CBS color picture for the first time., In other words, 1t is
$150 to adapt and convert his existing set, plus two instal-
lation charges of about $15 each.

Now one has but to look at the dailly newspapers to
reallize that the cost of sets today, new, many of them, is
not equal to $150. But let us 1look at the average receiver
owner in his living room.

Today he turns his television set on by touching one
button, If he has to do anything by wey of tuning the picture
brightness or turning the contrast range, he feels he has

been called on to perform a skilled operation. But that is

all he has to do todas.
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Now let us see what he gets after he spends his more than

' $150 to adapt and convert and receive this CBS color. The

whifling dise converter that he pays $150 must be moved out
of the way when present-day standard black and white broad-
casts are on the alr. It 1s, therefore, essential that this
converter be portable.

If he owns a cabinet model receiver, the CB3 manufacturing
wltness recommended that the converter housling, which includes

the eleétric motor and the whirling dise, be mounted on a

pedestal with wheels.
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What he would have would be a big box welghing between
25 and 30 pounds, mounted on top of a plece of pipe long enough
to0 veach from the floor to the level of hls pilcture tube, with
wheels under the whole affair.

Now assume this television set owner is sitting in his
living room watching an existing broadcast of black and white
and then the broadcaster starts sending transmissions under tiw
¢BS Color System.

Well, first the owner must get up and trundle his hand
truck over in front of his receivér; then he must flip a switeh
to turn on the electric motor; then he has to walt until the
spinning disc gets up to a speed of 1,4&0 revolutions per
minute.

That amount of time will vary with how powerful the moiox
is, but CBS concedes that 30 seconds is a reascnable time.

Then he has to flip a button to change from the standard
525-1ine broadcast to the 405-line CBS System. Then he must
push the phasing button to lock the colors into this whirling
dise in proper sequence; because if he does not perform that
last operation, since the filter disc at the recelver is in

pPrecise synchronization with the filter dise in front of the
camera in the broadcasting studio, the viewer might £ind himsgeli.’
looking at red grass and at an American Flag with blue stripes.

Now after doing all that, the viewer drops wearily into a

chalr in the hope that it all will work.




i

SR

i R

ok

i

St

ST

R L e TR

TR RN TR

4
el

Pl

5 gt

28

This 1s not the testimony of those opposed to the CBS
Color System. OUn the contrary, this was the testimony on cross
exanination of CBI's own witnesses, including the president
of that company. And there 12 no way of avolding all those
steps in regard to the 12 million existing recelvers, except
1t will be possible with some small table model receilvers to
£ix these clumsy ﬁechanical dises permanently to the receiver
and to slide them out of the way with a track arrangement.

it is the monot complicated series of electrical operation:
that the average citlzen has ever been called upoh to perfornm.

fhe Chlef Justice: Do you reckon anyone would buy any of
them? | |

Mr. Cahill: I do not know about that, Mr. Chief Justice.
Certainly the bugs in the things are going to be worked out 2t
the expense of the public and not in the laboratory, as they
should have been.,

This system L an unveady system because any system that
is 1n¢ompatib1e has a fundamental defect in it and 1t should h&v
been worked out over 10 years, and Whereas thisAopinion is
based on "speculatiocn and hope®, there is not the slighiest
hope held out that the basic difficuliy with the CBS System has
ever been 1icked or that there is a hope of its veing licked, .
I refer to incompatibility.

Justice Clark: Would it be fair to say this is a sort of

interim type ¢of ingtrument vo be used oOr not?
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Mr. Cahlll: Mr. Justice, only in respect of certain parts
of it. You will always have to have the spinning disc even in
neﬁ recelvers. You will always have to have the electric motoz.
You will always have lncompatibility, and you will always have
60 percent degradation of the exlsting picture. Those are
things that they cannot get away from.

Justice Clark: What I meant was the ultimate objective
is color, so we will say the order is in effect, and they starc
color.

Mr. Cahill: We are gll for color, Mr, Justice.

Justice Clark: Yes, sir. Then some people, of course, &
going to buy color radlos, are they not?

Mr. Cahill: I think so, yes.

Jugstice Clark: And eventually these television sets in tiw

hands of the public, these 12 million, are going %o be sort of

\?.» like mine, they will be a little outmoded and they are going to
vi start buying, and the 1ldea of the Commission, I thought, was

.g they would buy color, and if you did not have some type of colu.
é that was avallable now, of course, they would buy black and

§ white, would they not?

|

! Mr., Cahlll: They will, yes, sir, Mr. Justice.

Justice Clark: There 1s not any question about that?

e STERLTIELE

Mr. Cahill: Yes, Mr. Justice. If you buy that color, whi

gt

will you get for your money? Tou will get a maximum pictuxre

e o e s

size of 12 1/2 inches, and that in the opinion of the public
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‘today 1s midget size. You will get an incompatible system, You
will get a system that will cause you to lose 60 percent of the
picture detall of the existing service.

Justice Clark: OCranting all that, what I was getting at
was: Would not the new television sets -- they would not have
this flying disc.

Mr. Cahill: They will have it.

Justice Clark: They will have 1it?

Mﬁ. Cahill: They will have it.

Juatice Clark: I thought they would have a different
system and it would be Jjust color?

Mr. Canill: No, they will always have on the demonsiratic:

on this record -- the new receivers will have the spinning
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Now I will come to a contention that CBS makes in vegard
%o the RCA tri-color tube, but I would like to take that up,

if I may, in the sequence I have here.

St

Justice Frankfurter: Supposing everything you say is sog-

Would 1t make any difference provided the field were left open

ot g b s L e
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to other color btransmissions?

Mr. Cahill: But 1t is not, Mp. Justice; I mean it is
expressly prohiblted.

T I L Lt A INE

Justice Frankfurter: Is that not the real gravamen of the
complalint you can have here, if you have got one¢

Mr. Cahili: It is an inmporitant one and serious grounds,
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Me. Justige, but there are other grounds.

Justice Frankfuriter: But if there is a real basis, unlesc
yoﬁ can say on this record a Commission having the discretionar:
range that thils Commission was given and must have, unless you
can gay that no allowable judgment should have permitted this |
order, as I see it, the only claim you can have is that here
was an order made, although allowable, which needlessly cui ol

other interests which should have been subserved and served --

are those your conieniions?
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Mr. Cahill: No. I can say more‘than that, Mr. Justice.
I can say under the opinion of this Oouft'in NBC against the
United States that this Court held that the statutory touch-
stone for this Commission, the standard of the public interest,
convenience and necessity, was further defined by Seétion 303
of the Communications Act, which laid dowvn upon this Commissicy
the duty of exploiting the fuller use of vradio, and I say that
by that touchstone, as you called 1t;, this Commission has
~exceeded 1%s lawful authority when 1t adopted an incompatible
system which puts out of business every set there 15 today ‘n
the hands of the publle ~- 12 million sets, completely out of
business..

Justice Frankfurters Puts them out of business only 1f
fﬁey‘want color.

Mr. Cshill: No, it puts them outlof business 1f they wani
to listen to a CBS color broadcast, not if they want éélor aﬁ
all. . If they just want black and white, if they just say,

" just what what I bought this set to get," that has been baltct

~awaj from them by thls order, and they have a right to complai:.
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and I say in doing that to them, the Commission took away a

£

g right which 1s lawfully protected.

é' Justice Frankfurter: I do not think I will go along with
;% ybu‘at this monent, becausge «-

f% Mr. Cahill: I am sorry, Mr. Justice, you do no%,

% Justice Frankfurter: DBecause even assuming that, sir, you
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have to balance that, as the Commission, L take 1it, does, as
against the advantage -~ never mind what I think of it ~- as
against the advantzaze of also getting color, the exigent necd
of getting color, sfich brzathes through these reports.

Mr. Cahill: Mr. Juscice, we are all for coior, and we 2.
for color on a cocunatible basis -~ that 18, a bhasis whieh wilil
enable the man who spent his money -~ and there are 12 m'Liton
of those Tauilies ~- ¢ get what he vought nis rereiver to
obtain.

Justice fronkfurter: But the Uomsission gays n effeb,
taking your figures of 12 million outstanding nets now getil nr

100 percent black and white from (BS, the dlsadvantzge of
reducing that to %) as against the advantage of having colow
‘18 a conservation of the public interest.

Mr. Cahill: ‘“Yhere 12 ne Finding here cthat the only way
ettain color 18 thirrough the adoption of a system that will
deprive the public of what they purchased their sa2ts %o get.
There is no such finding in the record.

Justice Frankfurter: That 18 the balanclag they dtd ia
the firgt report, and they will gee what they car find =6 the
end of six weeks. and at the end cof gix weeks, thay rould not
wailt any longer.

Mr. Cshili: ir. Justice, there is no finding that the ow'

way they could attaln color was Lo take away fycwm the public

ve Lo
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substantially what the public vought these willicns of se



obtain. UYliere 15 nc such iindling.

Counsel gppueg Lthat ot length, Tut the record 1¢ tarven of

@)

any sueh Iinding.
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sugtice Franlrfurser. But that uaderlien the w

L

sicn, Mr. Cahill, does 1t not? IT underlies their oprder.

Mr. Cshilll: It underlles thelr order, that they were
uagwilliag ©vo glve the aodarate length of tiug thab was nernca: -
to a further Loer ot those imporitant respects, whnitell T am noy
discugsing, as 1> wiich they imperiled the Jnterests of 45
million peanle hy »riciatiag therm to uere sneculaiticon and hnd
and that 18 now suHxwbantial evidence.

Jugtice Ferankfueier., You must say, &8 a lagsl preopoui’.
as I understand 1%, vour srgument 18 that 1t wes not allovenis
for the Couwmlseciocwn to make that holancing, o say that aiikoo
e decresse the black and white value of these sebo, we inco
the uae of the 2ir hecouse of the depreciation of whe black

~

whilte at the sone Llue of the enhoncemnent of a wawv joy ¥ oo

~

& thing called teloevigion.”
Mr. Canills: &, Jusiice, I thinlk there wes no such

balancing. "That f= nr gorrslaint. Thoy did nos walh wo zoh o

“ ., L T P R |
balance. They wvon qLoad

on what they coafessed

b

and

02

v
~

their vords, was “aore speaulation and hone,” =mnd I sheit (o
with how umreazonshle theinr failure was in just a moment,
nay.

Justic2 Reed. Ara you goiny Lo toke uan the order oand
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soint out to us --

Mr. Cahill: Yes, indeed.

Justice Reed: =~ and point out just exactly what 1t was
lthat stopped you from doing?

Mr. Cghill: Yes, I shall.

I might say here, Mr. Justlce, in response to your question,
‘that the order 1in its form 18 an amendment of the Commiszion's
Standards'of go~called Good Enginesring Practiée, and by failure
to allow the broadcast of a compatible color system it has the
effect of prohibiting, there 1s:no question about that.

Justice Reedr Do you have experimental chammels?

Mr. Cahill: There are experimental channels.

Justice Reed: Are you allowed to use them?

Mr. Cghill: We are allowed for certain hours of the day
to. send over experimental channels, Your Honor, but we are not
allowed to broadcast for commercial purposes.

Justice Reed: And e

Mp. Cahill: That is right.

Justice Reed: If the Comulssion thinks that you have a
system that would be acceptable to the publie, they could then
allow you other channels?

Mr. Cahill: In theory, but we have already had s taste of
vhat we will get, Mr. Justice, when we filed our petition hefore
this order was adopted, asking them %o look ab acecomplished

Pacts set forth in our progress report, which had taken place
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after the hearings had closed. It was denied out of hand with
the statement thet they were not worth looking at, that these
weré mere paper improveuents -~ and, mind you, the facts to
which I refer were facts as ascertalnable of objective view as
the fact that we had three times the brightness on the face of

our tri-color tube as we had at the time the hearling closed.

- That 18, I think, an indication of the kind of arbltrary action

with vhich this record is replete. In its failure to look I
thinlk thé Commisgsslon was guilty of the most arblirary action 1%
has ever #aken.

Justlice Clark: Did you ask thém %o reopen the hearings?

Mr. Cehill: As the appellees say, in effect, our petition
to look ig substance was a petition to re-open. That was filead
on October 4, several days before the order was adopted.

Justice Frankfurter: Could you tell me what page of the
record that is?

Mr. Cahill: Yes.

Justice Frankfurter: Because there is a controversy about

that. There 18 a controversy as to what 1t did or did not mean.

Mr. Cahill: I sm quoting to you accurately what the
sppellees sald in their brief in the District Court, that 1t was
a ﬁetition in substance to re-open the record. That 1s om page
408 of the record. |

Justice Clark: "Speculation and hepe® was in the May 1

repory, was it not?
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Mr. Canili: Yes, ¥our Yonor, and'there was no evidence
vaken.

Justice Frankiurter: September -- in the first repori?

Mr. Cahill: Yes, the "speculation and Hope® was 1n %he
first report. But the polnt I wanted to make to Mr. Justice
Clark is notwithstanding the propriety of the statements
expressed by the Coimission in three lmportant respects =- thaow
18, plcture size, lack of picture definition, and lack of piciurs
brightness -~ no further evidence wss taken.

Without any further evidence helng taken, the Coumisstion
swvallowed 1ts ¥gpeculation and hope® and forthwith adopted the
CBS incoupatible system as the exclusive systeun.

dJusvice Clark: You did not ask 1%t %o re-open the hearing
at that time, did you?

Mr. Cahili: We did.

Justice Clark: You did not esk them to re-open 1%, A4id wou,
when you heard about the "syeculation and hope"?

Mr. Gahiil: We dld. Our petition of Ootober 4, asking ihem
to look at our improvements --

Justice Clark: “hat is after the order, is 1t not?
Mr. Cahill: ©NTo, that was before the order, several days

before the order. Thelr crder wrs dated Octorer 10. We filead

this petition October 4.
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Justice Clark: Sepntewber 1?2

Mr. Cahill: And as scoun as that caue down and we read 1%

and submitted our ccuments, about which my colleague, Judge

Rifiind, will talk, we filed this petition asking them to look,
and they refused to look, which I think is arbitrary in the
extrene.

Now the "speculation and hope," as I have sald, 1s that in
the hands of and at the expense of the publlie the bugs in this
unready OBS sybem may be iféned out.

Now, whereas the Commissﬁcn in one braath deprecates the
RCA tri-color tudbe, one of'the greaf invéntions of the electronic
art, as though it 8id not really exist, on the other hand, it
expresses the hope that it may improve vhe CBS system.

The record is devold of any demonstrabtion that 1t will.

We do not dispute, on the other hand, that our tri-color tube
would e an inprovement 6ver the CBS system, but wé say why
éha;kle shis modern miracle to the body of a Model T Ford?

Now there 1s no answer to the fact that, admlttedly, so

doing will not correct the incompatibllity of the CBS systeum,

will not iwprove their 60 percent loss of picture detall.
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Now I should like to turn to this matter of picture.detail
because.that 1s the second great area in which the Commission
confessedly speculated and hoped. The 60 per cent loss of
picture detail by CBS occuréed when 1t crowded 1ts color
system Into a six megacycle band; whereas, previously 1t had
operated in a 16 megacycle band. |

Now not even CBS thinks that this low definition system
18 good. Back in 1940, more than 10 years ago, CES had a
gix megacycle color system which had'zo per cent more picture
detall than it has today. But even that was considered
inadequate by CBS, and that is the reason it went from six to
16 megacycles.
| Now CBS is back behind the plaqe that 1t was 10 years
ago. The yardstick, accvording to thils report in 1950 is
that CBS should receive the accolade in progressing in 1950
to a point below whore they were in 1940; and the entire
body of the radio and televislon ehgineers should be
castigated for making great progress in all-electronic
compatible high—definition systenms.

The Commisslon speculates again. It may be after the
CBS system gets going that the use of another RCA Technigue
called the horizontal dot interlace may improve the poor
quality of the CBS picture.

I should iike to turn to the last of the three great

facets on which vl (i lreiou syeutlaved and hoped. Theat
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1o the limitation on dbrightness in the CBS systen.

I might say at this point that a careful reading of the

commission report is a rewarding study in semantics. Whenever
0BS5S 18 considered, the findings open on a gentle n&te of
asclogy ilor thne deficiencies of that system and close on a
plous expression of“speculation and hope" that maybe tomorrou
may eradicate those defects.

That is nowhere better 1llustrated than in regard to
brightneés and flicker. Taking the summary of the

Commisgsion's finding on this point, which CBS itself made,

-~

I'quote:
"That though the CBS system is susceptible to
flicker to a greater degree than standard black
‘and white, the problem is not serious since flicker,
which resulis fron brightness, does not appear at
the brightness level which is adequate for home use.”
How in 1947 the Commission had the following to say about
the vrightness and tlicker of the CBS system, and again I quobe:
®In the absence of more convincing evidence on

the point, the Commission 1s of the opinion that

on the point of brightness and flicker alone the
j risk of approving the Columbia standards at this time
I is that color telivision might be forced to limp

along with a picture that is not sufficilently bright

for general home use or is subject to objectionable
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flicker."

Now the brightness and flicker characterlstics of the
bBS system which the Commission has now adopted are precisely
the same as those of the CBS-wlde band system which the
‘Commissibn rejected in those words in 1947.

As in many other important respecte, the Commission
report is more important for what 1t does not say regarding
the brightness and rlicker than for what it does say.

Now the vital fact not mentioned in the report, which is
a matter of scientific principle, and which was nowhere dis-
puted at the hearing, is that the RCA system permits nine to
10 times the flicker-free brightness than does the CBS
system.

Now in concluding the {irst report of the Commission on
which I have spent so much time, I want to turn finally to
the all-important question which we have here discussed of
the efflciency of chamnel utilizatlon. |

Now certalnly this involves one of the Commission's
most important duties, & duty which prompted the Congr;ss
to create the Comﬁissioms to conserve and to utilize most
effectively the scarcelradio'spectrum space.

Every one of the Commisgion's cases in court heretofore
have been based on the need to p;omote what this Court pointed

; out ﬁas their touchstone, the more effective utilization of

these scarcs channeiu.



42

The entire iandustry has been raised on that basis.
Endless hearings ars held on every subJect to promote that
worthy end.

Now here for the first time the Commission has picked
a systembleast-saving of channel utilizatlon, because there
can be no dispute that this system, the only incompatible
system, 1s wasterful of channels.

It requires that in the same broadcast band and for the

pame service transmitters serving existing black and white

operate and transmitters sending out CBS incompatible color
also operate. They can not operate simultaneously on the
same band, because they are sending out signals ol different
characteristics, one of 525 lines, the other 405, incompatible
characteristics.

It is not possible for one transmitter on one wave length
simulbaneously to send out CBS type signalé and standard
signals. It just can not be done.

The Commission could not even "speculatz and hope" on
that. It is out of the question.

In this area of the case we can not even draw thne
charitable curtain of "speculation and hope" asbout the
Commission's action.

Now, ;n the other hand, in the RCA system we have the

utmost utilization of this great national heritage of channels,

because all that has to be done im %o add cerihain color
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characterlstics which will enable color receivers to receive
those transmiassions in color.

Now 1f black and white and color television were truly
gseparate services, the Commission would have no concern about
the number of receivers in the hands of the public, which can
not get CBS color, even as degraded black and whlte.

In its first report the Cpmmission clearly recognized 1its
need for further information before it would adopt an order
setting the CBS system as the standard. The Commission also
sald that it needed ‘further information about the RCA system.

Nevertheless, as I have sald, i1t went ahead anyway.

Now the Commission in 1ts first report set forth two
conditions on which it would listen to further evidence. Thesa
had to do with something that had never been discussed in the

hearings at all, never mentioned. They were not set forth

in the notice of the hearings.
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They were something called bracket standards, about which
fmy colleague, Judge Rifkind, will argue at length. A1l I want
“to say of them is that the Commission called for formal written
~comments on bracket stendards.
RCA submltted its comments on this novel.prOposal, never
‘heard before, and it also submitted not only the RCA progress
report, but as well the report of the so-called Condon Committec.

Now the Condon Committee 1is the most dlstinguished group
of sclentists ever to have studied and reported on color tele-
vision. This Committee was organized at the request of the
Chairman of the Unlted States Senate Committee on Interstate
and Foreign Commerce. | '

It was heacded by the Director of the Nationral Bupreau of
Standards of the United States, and none of its members was
'connected uwith any television manufacturer or broadcaster,
These scilentists in thelr report made findings on the highiy
technlcal matters involved in a judgmen®: of the relative
merits of the respective color Systems;

With respect to the Condon Report, the majority of the
District Courts sald, snd I quote,

"No doubt this report refutes numerous of the findings
made by the Commission and gives a far more favorasle appraise-
ment of the RCA system than that attrivated to it by the Com=-
mission.”

These two reports, the RCA progress report and the Condon
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Report, were entirely ignored.

Justice Frankfurteri What was the date of the Condon
ﬁeport? I do not seem to find it in the documentuy, |

Mr. Cahills July 10, 1950, ailmost six weeks prior to the
firgt report.

Justice Frankfurter: When did the hearings close before
the Commission?

Mr. - Csh11ll At the end of May.

Justice Frankfurter. Was this report explicitly called
to each of thelr attention --

Mr. Cahlll: It was.

Justice Frankfurters -- by subsequent doéument?

Mr, Cahlll: Yes, Your Honor, it was called %o their
attention in the RCA comments that were submitted: and I
should 1ike to say before I turn to the points that I will
argue, Mr, Chilef Justice, that the effective date of this
order was November 20, 3s I recall, and has been stayed by
a restraining order of the District Court, and I aave a
motion here to extend the stay beyond April lst, because
that 1s the términation date of the stay by the order of
the Distriet Court, and I have submitted that motion,

Now I shall argue four points:

First, that the édoption of the CBS system 1s contrary

to the standards of the public interest, convenience, and

necessity, as defined by the Commission itseif;
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Second, that the action of the Commission in adopting the
CBS system and rejecting the RCA system 1s not on the basils

| of the record taken as s whole supported by substantial

evidence;

Third, the outlawing of the commercial broadcasting of
compatible color in competition with the incompatible CBS
gsystem is contrary to law; and

Last, that the Commission?!s reliance upon a member of its
staff who had an interest in the outcome was improper.

Jﬁstice Reed: Can there be any commercial color broad=
casting now?

Mr, Cshill: There cannot, Your Honor, under the terms of
the stay.

Justice Reed: No, but I mean before this orduor was ten-~
dered.

Mr. Cahill: No.

Justice Reed: There has never been any, as I understand
1t°

Mr. Cahil1l: No.

Justice Reed: No commercial color broadcast?

Mr. Cahill: N§.

Not, as early as 1940 --

Justice Reed: Excuse me, just a moment. This order on

page 432 ~- is that the order we are dealing with at this time?

Mr. Cshill: Yes, sir; that is correct.




XA

47

Justice Reed: what that Jdoes 1s give CBS certaia bands?

Mr., Cahlll: TWo.

Juatlice Reed : Channels?

Me. Cehill: No, It amends the capitalized siandards of
good englneering practice to provide the character.sties of
signals that may be broadcast, and those are the cuaracteris-
tics 9f the CBS system,

Justice Reed: Well, that would do them no goud unless
they had a channei, would it not, CBS? Perhaps I do not
unéerstand.

Mr. Cahill: They have exlsting licenses.

Justlce Reed: ‘They have already an existing channel
that they can use? |

Mr. Cahlll: Yes, they have existing llcenses.

Justlce Frankfurter. Anybody else can produc: color If
they come within the standards?

Mpr. Cshili: You can do 1t if you come within the CBS

. system. You can not do it if you do not.

Justice Frankfurter; They do not say CBSE.

Mr. Cshill: They o not ssy CBS, but that is the effect.
You tailor to¢ fit CBE and nobody else.

Justice Kkeed: The specifications fit one person and no-
body else.

Mr. Cgh1il: It fits one and nohody else.

Justlce Reed£ Iif CBS bprosdeasts on the channels allotted
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o 1t in color, it can broadcast that much less in black and

yhite; 1s that right or wrong?

Mr. Cghill: That is right. That 1s so. Now a3 early as
1940 the Commission -~

| Justice Reed: I have Just one more question.

Mr, Cahill: That is all right.

Justice Reed: 4nd 1f RCA de&elops a color system that the
Commission thinks 1s effective, they can use their channels
for that new color system?

Nr., Cahill; Not under this order; they.are prohiblted.
Justice Reed: Not under this order, but there is no

- reason why the Commission could not give them asn ¢rder to use
that system, too.

| Mr., Cah1ll: ©&ir, as I say, we have little reason to hope
that will happen, because we tried to show the Cormission

what we had by way of improvements,

Justice Reed: They sald. you nad unone.

Mr. Cahlll: They sald that without looking at it. They
would not 1look.

Justice Reed: They sald, "You have nothing that we can
appreciate now and we will wait untll later"; is that 1t?

MNr. Cahill: No, they just say, "We won't look at it."
Justice Frankfurter: That does not prevent you from go=-
ing before them next'June -

Mr. Cahill: I know, but the treatment we have receivead
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at thelr hands with respect to the great accomplishment that
we made in brightness does not give us the slightest confi-

: dence that we are golng to get anything but the back of their
hands again. |

Justice Frankfurter: Isn't the situation that although
you may come before them next June or next October with some-
thing far in advance, coancededly, of anything that then
exlisted and cheaper in every other way, 1s there anything
that leads you'to say they would not listen to you then or
is your argument that even though they 1llisten.to you, the
situation will have been created which compllicates the situa-
tion?

Mr, Cahlll: That is the second part of my argument.

By that time the public would have been put to the expenditure
of millions on a gsystem that 1s obsolete hefore it ever is
put out,

| This system is as archaic as the old disco dises that
they used to produce color in the movies years age, and by
that time great damage would have been done to the public
because this system 1s an unready systen.

Now tufning to the Comnissionts own concept of the
.public?s 1nte£est ten years ago, thelCommissioﬁ 1laild these
three priﬁciples down'for television standards. They,saia; Flesy,
that the standards must permlt all receivers to Qﬁtain pic~

tures from all transmissions. Certainly CBS does not live up
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.. to that standard.

| Second, that they must permit the highest quality of
service known to the art. Well, 1t 1s the unanimous approval
on the record here, except for CBS, that that 1s not true.
This is a low~definition system, with 60 per cent loss of
plcture detail.

Third, they are adopted only after the potentiaglitics of
basic research are e¢xhausted. Well, it 18 gquite apparent that
the potentiaiities of bhasic research are not exhausted. 1In
fact, the Commission report says 1t recognizes that great
- " inventions do not ceccur on schedule, and it ﬁay be that great
developments in this fileld are now just pourlug out of the
laboratories.

Nevertheless, it shuts the door in the face of those
developments and gdopts this obsolete system.

I submit thet any system wvhich violates all three of the
Commission’s own fundamental principles 1s too high a price
to pay for color.

Justice Frankfurter: Suppose, Mr, Cehill, that CBS had
come before the Commission on exactly the same record, noth-
ing more than what we now have, before them, but with no
competing color scheme which had been put before them, would
they ﬁhen not have veen Justifled in maklng this order?
Suppose nothing else had been put before them.

Mr. Cahlll: Mr. Justice, I would say to take from the
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public what they spent $3 billion to get 1s too high a price
to pay for a mechanicai, degraded, incompatible, low-definiticn
system of color.

Justice Frankfurter: That 1is, you would szy that they
should have said =--

Mr., Cahlll: Iet us walt.

Justice Frankfurter: (Continuing) -- let us walt.

Mr. Cshill: Iet us wait and get something that will not

Justice Frankfurter; Even though there is scmething
where there 1s no alternative proposed.

Mr., Cahill: The rstionale of these two reports --

Justice Frankfurter: IAam not suggesting the situation
is the came.

Mr. Cahill: It does not exist., It 1s purely hypothetical.
But you know therc las & catch phrase on whilch they swing these
reports, and that Is that compatibility is too high a price to
pay for color.

Well, I say what price color? I say when you put out of
business the $3 billion which the people of this country have
invested'in this system,.it is too high a price to pay for a
system that in ten years of testing affords no promise of
licking 1ts most basic defect, and that is the incompatl-

bility.

Justice Frankfurter: I might say to you that the Com-




L B

52

mission 1s probably presumably better capable of mscertaining
that indefinable something called public opinion or publie
interest than nine lawyers or judges.

Mr. Cahill: No, but I say when what the puovlic wants 1s
go easlly ascertained asg 1t is in this field that 1s not true.

Justice Frankfurter: What?

Mr. Cahill: When the public is buying 90 per cent of
gsets 16 inches and over and this Commission seeks to folst on
them a maximum size of 12 1/2 inches, I say then that no
Commission -- |

Justice Frankfurter.? Plus color?

Mr. Cshill: No, Mr. Justice. May I say =-

Justice Frankfurter: How can I determine whet the
appetite of the pubile is in color?

Mr. Cahill: Mr. Justice, may I state for the moment --

Justlce Frankfurter: I am sure 1t is not mine to deter-
mine.

Mr. Cahill: May I state for the moment what has been
done here and may I say for the moment when they glve them a
degraded black and white picture, a pleture only 42 per cent
as good as what théy are getting today, I say people can
Judge these things, these objective facts, as well as this
Commission.

Justice Clark: You say the objective 1s color. How

much would it cost me to get your color?
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Mr. Cehill: That is true. -

Justice Clark: Suppose they adopted your systein.

Mr. Cah11ll: Mr. Justice, you would get the exlsting
black and white on our system without spending a penny.

Justice Clark: No, on color.

Mr. Cahi11l: If you want color, Mr. Justice ~-

Justice Clark: Yes.

Mr. Cahl11ll: =~ color receivers will be avallable on ouf
system, |

Justice Clark: What willl that cost me?

Mr. Cahill: I beg your pardon?

Justice Clark: What will that cost me?

Mr. Cahill: It is futlle to estimate what these things

will cost today. Nobody is tooled up.

Justice Clark: <VYou can not estimate what thet new set
will cost?

Mr., Cahill: No. so far as this record '8 ccncerned, no
demonstrations were made of our converter, but we tried to
show in our petitloun of October 4 prototypes of our converter,

and that was the patltisa denied out of hand and ve described

on this record what ous converter would be 1ike, but sc great
was the speed that nobody took time to see it.
Justice Clark: Iet us see. They heard the testimony for

nine months?

Mr., Cahilll: Yes, Mr», Justice. but hesr in mind the one
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all important thing =--

Justice Clark; Why didn*t you showy your converter then?

Mrf Cahill: Because, Mr. Justice, we were pushing along
at the maximum rate possible. We did not come out with our
tri-color tube untll thzse hearings were more than half over.
Our men vere working 24 hours a day.

This hearing was called unexpectedly early. The testimony
of this Commission before the Congress was that it would take
three or four years more to have these compatible sets attain
their’objective.. Neverthelesgs and notwithstanding that tes-
timony, this hearing was called within two years, so that the
laboratories of these companies that are working cn high-
definition compatible systems certainly sweated 1t out while
these hearings were on,

Justice Frankfurter: Isn't that the real down-to-the-

bottom bgsis of the case so far as you have got one? Namely,
that you are dealing with a revolutionary process which is
8t111 in its earliest stages, and a decision should not have
been reached. Isn’t that the real bottom?
' Mr. Cshill: It certainly is one. You are dealing with
the most dynamic écientific art that has ever been kinown, and
you are going to put a mechanlcal system into an all-electronic
art, .

As I say, it is iike folsting a magic lantern on the

modern movie projector. That 1s what they have done here, and
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they shut the door on the greatest series of 1nveﬁtions that
- have come along. They Jjust would not ivok at them. They
Vdenied them out of hand aud said they were not worth looking
at, they =aid they were Jjust paper developments.

Justice Black: Fardon me, I have not yet understood wiy
that has necessarily shut the door. I mean this:

Suppose your company should invent something better?
Suppose your company should invent something undoubtediy better
as I'know youb company -

Mr. Cahill: We think we have, Mr. Justice.

Justlice Black: Suppose théy do and you get 1t so much
better that you can show 1t beyond any doubt, and you go
down to the Commission and they stiil do something to keep
you from showing it. Then I presume thaf would be what you
would cali an arbitrary denial, and you are saying'nou this
is arbitrary.

Mr. Cahiill: We have had it already.

Justice Black: But the troubie I have up to date,
frankly, I am not éufficiently familiar with the issues ==

Mr. CAhiii: Tes,

Justice Black: It seems to me that the argument jou are
making would be a very persuasive argument up to date if I
vere a member Of the_Commission,‘but I am not sure what the
legal effect of 1t is. ‘ .

Mr. Cahill; No, Mr. Justice, we have had the arbitrary
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_and capricious action in refusing to look. I will take that
up after the recess.

(Mid-session recess, 2:0C to 2:30 p.m.)

Mr. Cahl11l: Mr, Justice, we were on ﬁhe question of
, arbitrary and caprilcious action, and you were just asking a
~question.

Justice Black: And why 1t can be said that the door 15‘
 ghut against these improvements =-

Mr. Cahill: VYes.

‘-Justice Black: -~ and putting them into effect if they
happen. ’

Mr. Cahill: Yes, I w1ll take as my example, in answer
to your question, the action with respect to our petition
of early October.

-After the first fepovt and prior to the adoptién-of.the
‘order ~- I will cite that for this purpose as being the most
arbltrary action the Coumission hasz ever taken, bccause,
taking Just one facet of that report, the question of br&ghtu
ness of thé pieture on our tri~color tube, the first report
had eriticized the luclkt of brightness.,

We showed 15 our progress report that the pleture bright-
nesg had veen Increased thrze times, you see. There 1s an
ob jective ascertainable faet. We asked the Commission to
"Look before you leap" and "don'!t make an order here until

you have looked,"
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Well, we had all this protestation that they would look,

7& the 1llke, but without ever looking, and in respect to that

3

“think you are asking me about.

Jugtice Black: Suppose that is not enough. Buppose

Let us face up to how 1t ddes it: I will use s railroad

analogy on this argument. Television up to now has operated

That is startling enough because 1t is unnecessary, but
,ﬁhen they cerﬁy their narrow~gauge track to the extreme that
they prohi'b'it the carrying of sll possible traffic on the
tandard-gauge track, then they have violated the fundamental
oliecy behind the -creation 6f the Commission -- namely, the
ull ptilization of that great national heritage, the scarce

adlo spectrum,



Not only that, but I submlt they violated the competi-
" tive philosophy which this Court has held they ave obliged
fto enforce,

By this order the Commission says that you can not pull
colored cars over standaerd-gauge track, TYou may only draw
black and white care over that track.

Now it 1s a= sbsurd as that, because concededly you can
dravw colored cars over standard-gauge track as well as black
and white cars without interfering with anybody, even the
narroﬁ-gauge fellow, CBS. That is the undigputed testimony
of the developer of the CBS system, 1tg vice president and
chief research engineer, Dr. Goldmark, who sald, and I
quote:

"I couldn’t sit here and tell you not to adopt standards
referring to the RCA system because nobody would get hurt by
1t if gyou did."

As I have sald, all the RCA color systeimn does, the
compatible system, 1s to add color characteristics to the
existing signal, and the color transmission takes place over
the exlisting wave length. 7¥You do not have to use twc wave
lengths., It does ﬁot crowd the air one lota when you use the
RCA color system. |

Now it is the CBS system, because it is incompatible,
which crowds the air because you can not simultaneously over

the one channel transmlt the standard black and white and
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the progosed lncompatible CBE signals.

Justice Black: Do I understand by that it is your caaim
that your client has a color system now ready to use which ig
equal to thelrs?

Mr. Cahlill: That is our c¢laim,

Justice Black: And they are ready to put it on right away,
and you claim they have selected theirs over yours?

Nr. CahillE Yes.
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Justice Frankfurter: As of September 30, the Commission

denied that.

What you are employing is that the showlng you were pre-
pared to make as of Septewmber 30, by your notice dated Cctober
-4, you invited the Commission to find that you now have a

claim which would be as good as the CBS, is that 1t?
| Mr, Cahlills No, that 15 not my po;aitiono

There 18 absolutely no showing, Mr. Justice, and that is
my polnt here, that the Commisslon denied that on September
30, There 18 no showing on eilther of these reports that the
- Commission ever considered the question of whether the RCA
system should be permitted to go ahead in commerclal competi-
- tion simultaneous with the CBS system.

Justice Frankfurter: Did they not find it unsatisfactory
- by the standards which they thought were appropriate?

Mr. Cahill: The RCA system has never been found %o be
80 bad that it should not be allowed to go ahead in competition
with the CBS systen.

This argument that the RCA color system is so bad that it
should not be allowed %o compete with CBS comes, strangely,
from the 1ips of those who seek to be protected against that
very competition.

In contrast to that are the comments of the members of
the Commission on the quality of RCA color.

The Acting Chairman sald on thé record, of RCA color:
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"Your plcture 1s greatly improved since your first
showing."

Another Commissioner:

"We have seen the RCA system and it produced beautirful
color.”

The same Commissioner:

"I noticedthe marked improvement in your color the
other morning'at Laurel, and I think we all did, and I
was complétely purprised particularly in the final RCA
plcture where the man inserted flbwers in that shallow
dish."

Justice Clark: When was that? Can I gef in tthe record
what date those remarks were made?

Mr. Cahill: The record date, 1f your Honor please, of the

last remark, was February 27, after half the hearing had been
going on.

Justice Clark: 19502

Mr. Cahill: - 1950. The other was March 16, 1950, and the
third one was April 11, 1950.

Justice Ciarkg They held, did they not, that yours was not
good? |

Mrn Cahlll: I beg your pardon?

Justiée Clark: The éommission held yours was not equal to
‘the other system after that date.

Mr. Cahill: No, hut these are remarks of the Commisaion
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that are addressed to the hyperbole of Commiasion advoeacy,
- which went go far that 1n the Distriet Court in this case
they told the District Court that the RCA:system produced
mere aplotches of color in the laboratory.

| Justice Clark: That was not your improved system?

Mr. Cahlll: The system‘to which these comments refer?

Justlce Clark: Yes. .

Mr, Cahilia Yes, this 1is notvour dmproved system alone.
It 18 our tri-color tube they are referring to there.

Justice Clark: The Commissilon saw it, too? They saw it
then?

Mr, Cahill: The Commission saw 1t towards the end and,
on the one hand, treats it as though 1t does not ¢xist, and,
on the other hand, 1% says it may help the CBS system, although
it has not demonstrated that it will.

Justice Black: Is your obJection to that order that it
permits CBS to use this or that 1t does not also permit you
to use yours? |

Mr., Cahill: On this phase of the argument, my obJectlion
is the 1attef, that 1% does not permit the public to see ours,
that nobody can he huri by allowlng the public to see ours as
well as the CBS®.

If our sys;em i3 bad, we are the only ones8 who wWlll be huri

because we have a srade name for turning out good merchandise.

CBS has admitted through its chief er:glneer that nobody
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elevision 18 allowed competitively alongside incompatible."”

Justice Frankfurter: In what context dld the chief enginecr
 of CBS say that? Because, as you quote it; it seems to contra-
dict their whole position.

Mr. Cahill: Weil, tﬁat 18 1t, and 1t 18 in respect of this
- very [leld that we are talking about.

You know, they say here, Mr. Justice, that this matter was
even considered before the Commigsion. That is not ®o.

General Sarnof'f, chairman of the Board of the RCA, testified
‘here, and he said that if aﬁ incompatible system were to be
adopted, then the Commisslon should as well go along and let

a compatible systém go on the air, because the existing service
thereby would be preserved and the public would be the Jury

in accordance with the good old American way of letting the
publlic decide.

Justice Frankfurter: If they allowed you to have your
compatible system, I doubt very much whether you would be in a
position to object to thelr allowing an 1n£5mpat1ble system,

CBS, because I do not think you would be a party 1nvinterest

to that, and I do not think you would be affected by 1it.

| Mr. Cahill: Mr. Justice, on this facet, on thilas point,
IAam.talking solely, your Honor, now, that the order is violativs
of the public interest because it does not allow free'comﬁetitiom

between incompatible color and the compatlible color.
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To sum it up ==

Justice Black: May I Jjust ask you thils one questidn?

Mr. Cahill: Surely.

Justice Black: Your time is up, 8o I will ask you a ques-
tion on my time.

Mr. Cahill: Thank you very much.

Justice Black: What 1s your claim with reference --= Where
- “do they say they find in the statute, what section of the stétute
dé they rely on to say that there shall not be a chance to

- compete 1f you can put on a better color system thaﬁ the other
people that the public wants to buy?

Mr. Cahill: They can cite no section, they cite no sec-
tion, they rely on nothing.

Justice Black: Do they rely on some section?

Mf. Cahill: They rely on nothing. 7This 1s the first time,
Mr. Justice, ln my research -~ and I think I am very familiar
with this act == where the Comﬁission has departed from the
field of unlimited competition.

Here, for the first time, wlthout any authorization, without
any citation, they go in for restralnt of competition. In other
words, under their order there wlll be three classes of competi-
tion.

There will be coupetition between existing black and white,
between the low-definition CBS black and white, and the

incompatible CBS color. The fourth class of competition would
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be that of compatible color. That they debar, and they do
that solely on their argument of confusion. That 1s the only
argunment that 18 ==

Justice Black: Confusion in the 3ir?

Mr. Cahill: Confuslon 1n the public mind. There is no
confusion in the air. It is conceded that we create no con-
fusion, no eleoctrical interference, 1f we add color characteris.
tics to our exlsting signals. | |

Justice Black: You mean the basls of 1t i8, so0 far as
you know, i1f you are permitted to offer to the publlc your
comparative color system, that that would somehow confuse the
public?

Mr. Cahill: That is right, plus the argument fhét I had
with Mr. Justice Pranikfurter a minute ago, thut CBS argues
that our system 1s so bad colorwise that 1t shouid not be
allowed to go on ¢he alr, you see. It is on that dual facet
that they rely.

Justice Frankfurter: Should not be allowed? Why? Who
Wwould be hurt?

Mr, Cahlll: I cincede that nobody would be hurt, because,
as they concede, nobody would be hurt; and we, a3 2 manufacturer,

would be taking the chance. The public will decidej the public

- Wlll go into stores, they will see CBS color alengside our

color, and they will make their choice.

If we are wrong, we are the ones who lose. CBS will not
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»1ose 1f they are wrong. CBS is not backing this one i1ota in the
manufacturing business.

Justice Black: Who has the patents?

Mr, Cahill: If your Honor please, I suppolSe we have.

Justice Black: I presume that 1s the basis of 1%, that
eaéh one was gettiﬁg the patents, and each one wanted his
gystem adopted.

Mr. Cahill: That 1s not the basis of 1it, so far as we
are concerﬁed, Mr. Justice. We have a moral responsibility
t owards the millions of people who have bought these sets that
are now ln use to see To 1t that they get the service for whiclh:
they paid theilr money, and under thls order a substantial part
of the service for which they paid 1s going to be taken away
from them, -

The Chlef Justice: Do you not think though‘that the
Commission has some responsibility in seeing that if color
goes on the air, 1t is god color? You say that you run the risk.
Well, you might lose in thaf battle, hut hag not the Commisslen
a responsibility in determining whether any old color may go
on the air?

Me, Cahill: M, Calef Justlce, let me say first that I
do not concede, cf coursze, that our color is not good color.

The Chief Justice. I know, but you are arguing if it

were bad, that you are the only person in interest and that

you would lcse in cownetition and lose money.
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Mr. Cahill: No, I am arguing, Mr. Chief Justice, where
you have the state of facts that you have here, where to sdd
color characteristics to the existing system does not in any
way 1interfere or lupede the existing system <o

The Chief Justlice: I understood that, but I understood
you to say -~ and I want to see 1f it is clear -= that you
said it was up to the public fo determine whether yours was
good or bad and that you would run the risk, and if ysu lost
you would lose a stalke and that you, maybe X, Y, Z, who had
different systems, should be permltted to put it on the air,

Mr, Cahill: Yes.

The Chief Justice: It seems to me that the Commission has
responsibility in determining what goes on the alr,

Mr., Cahill: Mr. Chief Justice, the Commission has a
‘certailn responsibility but you have my point, that where you
have a compatible system, where you add signals that give
color characteristics without interfering with the existing
Service, that where you interfere with nobody else on the air
and the questlon 1s only, really, the quality of the receivers,
because that 18 the point we are talklng about -- we are not
talking of transmissions here -- in this phase of our argument
we are talking only of receivers «~ and there 18 rno guestion
under the law that this Commisslon has no Jurisdiction over

the components of the receivers that are manufactured.

Justice ¥rankiurter: Aam I right in understanding that thers
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is involved 1in thls order to no extent or in no way wavelengths.
distribution of available channels, use of the aid, but really
what you can recelve through what you now have?
Mr, Cahlll: To thils extent: Wavelengths zre involved to

the extent that 1t 1s iwpossible for a broadcaste:» simultaneous .

to broadcast under the CBS'incompatible color'system and the
existling bliack and white. He cannot do it.

Justice Frankfurter: I understand that.

Mr, Cahlll: That is wmost important,

Justice Frankfurter: If whac you want you have got, you
wonld not b2 getiiag any more or any better wavelength,

Mr., Cahill: If w2 got what we want, we would not bz takir:
up one iota more of chz2nnel 8pace.

Justice Frankfurter: Yes,

Mr. Cahlll: ¥e would simply be more fully utilizing what
we now have. We would sSimply be drawing colored cars on the
tracks that we now use to draw black and white cares. Ve
would not be doing arything except glving additioral competitic
of a system for which all the industry engineers in basic
Principle -« that i3, the compatiirle system - advocated .
because unless a system 18 compatible and unless % .8 @ll-

electronic, you are haraessing an all-electronic &rt to a

B mechanical, archalc structure.

Justice Frankrfurter: Is the jurisdictlon of the Commissic..

T in this matter, the whole basis of this order, referable to the




' fact that the Commission may determine the uses to which ~= I am

not talking about -- but the uses to which the wavelengths may

be put. Is that the question, the baéic of the Cemmissicals

jurisdiction? | -
Mr, Cahill: Well, I would think ~=

Justice Frankfurter: Otherwise, what Jjurlsdiction has it

ags to what set I should have in my house?

Mr, Cahill: It has none, and Judge Riflkiind, of course, is
going to devote hlmself entirely to that polnt. I do not want %o
take his tlme, because that 18 a very important.phase of the caa:
to which he 18 going %o devote himselfl exclusively.

Justice Clark: It does have the authority to promulgate
standards, does 1t not?

Mr, Cahill: Well, 1ts authority has never been challenged
in that regard, because heretofore the Commlssion has adhered
to the proposition that all receilvers must be able to receive
all transmissions.

Now, we have .&ll agreed to that. This is the first time,
Mr. Justice, when they have declded to violate that principle,
and that 18 the reason, among others, that we are here. They
are golng to put a substantial number, 12,000,000 receivers,
out of business unless The people have the money to dig up
to make the change with these adapters and these converters.

Justice Clark: I wonder, 1f you had two standards -« You

would have un have two standards te guave you and UBS both the
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right to broadcast color television; would you not? 

Mr. Cahill: 7Yes, but you would not have to change anything
about our channels. We would operate --

Justice Clark: %¥You would have two standards.

Mr. Cahill: We would operate Jjust as we are today.

Justice Clark: If I wanted to llsten to your systen
tonight, say, at eight o'clock, and then there was a program

-

on CBS at nine'o}clock, I would have to have one of your

-~

recelvers, would I not, and I would have to have one of CBS
recelvers --

Mr. Cahill: No.

Juétice Clark: == %o get both of them?

Mr., Cahill: No, if you started at eight o’clock tonight,
you would do nothing tn your receiver to get oués, and if you
wanted it in black and white ==

Justice Clark: I am talking about colori I love color.

Mr. Cahill: Ch, all right.

(Laughter.)

Justice Clarks: So, tonight at elght ot'clock you have a
terrific program on color and I want to get“it. Now, I have
ﬁo buy one of your sets, do I not?

Mr., Cahill: Well, it is not necesséry, Mr. Adrian Murphy

of CBS was asked that preclse question by Commissioner Hennock

at the hearing. The question was put to him as follows, and I

world 1like %o quobte it
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"Commissioner Hennock: Now, can-you envision a

RCA color set with that new RCA tube in it and all the

other equipment that goes with the RCA color set, snd

assuming that there was a Columbla adapter in that set,
and then one of those converters of Mr. Chapints in that
set, would you be able to get both the Columbié color
system and the RCA system through that set?

"Phe Witness: VYes, Miss Hennock, you would.

"Commissioner Hennock: Then, what 1s wrong with
that idea? |

"The Witness: That 18 a fine idea."

Then, with an omission that is immaterial:

"I said before" -~ continued the vice president of

CBS in charge of color == "I said before that the Commis-

s8ion has a choice of saying whether there will be one

system or there will be two or more systems,"

Justice Clark: And you could not, irf yoﬁ had the right
to the patents, manufacture a set that had CBS receiving
potential and also yours?

Mr., Cahill: Well, there is no questlon as %o The patents
so far as we are concerned, because we license freely all

applicants at reasonable rates of royalty and have for yeérs,

Our patents are open to everybody; they are on the public
register,

Justice Reed: I8 there a yproblem of wultilple ssandards
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here?

Mr. Cahill: Yes,; on the competition point, that is it
preclsely, Mr. Justice Reed.

Justice Reed: Now, the Government brief says that ques-
"#ion was never raisecd, as I understand it, |

Mr. Cahlll: I am moet sorry %o differ with the Government
in that respect. Brigadier General David Sarnoff, chairman
of the Board of RCA, was asked that very question, and he said
that 1f an incompatible system were adopted, that there should
be competition in the public 1ntgrest wlth compatible color
televislion as well. The point was raised as direcily as that.

Justice Reed: What the Government brief says 1s that no
alternative was formally proposed and there was no dispute
refore the Commisaicn that single standards were %o Ee preferred.

Mr. Cahlll: There 18 no queStion, Mr. Justice Reed, that
we would prefer to have only compatible color, and that was
our positlion. But cur position as well a8 taken a8 expressly
ag I have put it to you, that 1f the Commission were to adopt
incompatible color;, then by all means that there be compatilble
color as well.

Justice Reed: How would that be presented to thé Comnis~
Bilon, by a motion or by a petition for rehearing, or does the
mere fact that General Sarnoff to it, in your view, bring that

before the Commisslion?

Mr. Cabizlle: § thainix very defialtely.
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Justice Reed: Do you have an exception to the order
because it did not grant you multiple «« because it did not
create multiple standards?

Mr., Cahill: I think so. I think there is no question
that 1s here, and the lower court sc treated 1t, and I think
1t is oge of the lmportant facets of the case, because, Mr.
Justice, this Court has held heretofore that the principles
of the antlitrust law are lmplicit in this Act, and that this
Commission 18 charged with the duty to enforce them.

Now, here for the first time 18 8 ==

Justiée Reed: But as Justice Black suggeéted a moment
ago, there is no reason why you cannot go and ask for permission
to use the channels in pursuit of your color or to go to éolor
broadcasting if you later prove it to the satisfaction of the
Commission.

Mr. Cahill: We have already satisfied that, and been
denied, and that 18 why we are here.

Justice Reed: They said at that time you were not sufficlent.
1y advanced?

Mr. Cahill: Without looking. There 1s no question; they
dld not look. It 18 conceded that they did not look. They
Would not take the time; they denied it out of hand. They
8aild these were papelr developments; although in respect of the
greatest inventlon I think I have segen in my Es‘yeafs’ profes-

Sional connection with this industry, the trl-color Gube, we
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had increased from 300,000 to 600,000 the number of dots on
the face of the tube. Woulid they look at 1t? No, they would
not .

The Chief Justice: Did you not have also something else
tacked onto that asXing them to look at it? Was there not
something 1n regard to continulng the matter to one of twc
dates?

Mr. Cahill: Yes, but they could have adopted the date,
Mr. Ghiéf Justice.

The Chief Justlce: How long after that motion was denied
did they come Gown with their ofder?

Mr. Cahill: The order came down the day 1t was denied,
and, Mr. Chlef Justice, the pericC we asked them was very
closely referable vo the period the Commission was willing to
have granted had we acceded to what we believed were the

1llegal and impossible conditions that were appended as the

price for gebting more time to the first repdrtc
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Those are the proposals which the dissenting Commissioner,
the former Chief Englneer of the Commisslon, sald we had never
been apprised of during the hearing and were never mentioned
in the notice, you see, the so-called bracket standards proposal
about which Judge Rifkind will argue.

The Chief Juatice: .Thankryou.

Mr. Cahill: Thank you, Me. Chief Justice.

The Chief Justice: Judge Rifkind.

ARGUMENT ON BEHALF OF APPELLANT EMERSON
by Mr. Rifleind -

Mr. Rifkind: Me. Chlef Justice, do I have 20 minutes
from thls point forward?

The Chief Justlce: Yes,

Me. Rifkind: Thank yduo

In view of the limitation of time, I should like to
dlspense with the amenities that sometimes accompany an argu-
ment of this kind. I shall skip and oalt some of the things
that I thought I would address myself to and get down to the
precise points that I want to make.

I should l1like to state those points now, s0 thai the

Court might have an idea of the territery I interd Lo cover,

which is not coterminus with the entire argument.

I am going to argue first in establishing the context

of this whole case that this 1s one of the extraordinary cases.

the unusual cases of review of adminlstrative action, where
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the wisdom of the agency 1g in issue.

I recognlze how great a burden it is to suggest such a
course to this Court, but I make bold to say that is precisely
what.we propose to do, that thls is a case where the Commission
departed so far from the standards of ordinary wisdom that its
action may be called arbitrary.

More specificelly, and dealing with the action of the
Court, I shall assert that thls was not a2 case to which the
remedy of summary Jjudgment was a sultable énd appropriate
remedy; that this was not a case which came within the reguire-
ments of the rules concerning summary Judgment.

I shall argue that we have not had until this minute a
Judieial review of the order madé by the Commission.

And now, to get 40 the Commisslon’s order, I shall state
in advance that I shall not at all deai with the evidence., I
shal not deal witﬁ it for the simple reason that the Commissiown.
having denied my c¢clients the right to appear before the Commis-
slon, I do not know the evidence, but I do know the findings
made by the Commission; and my entire argument will therefore
be focused upon the adeqguacy of the findings %o support the
order rather than on the adequacy of the evidence Lo support
the findings; and in that respect I shall assert and argue thai
the order made by the Commission was invalid because it is not
. Bupported by the findings which underlie it.

I shall say that the order is invalid because it is the
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product of an unlawful attempt on the part of the Commission
to regulate an lndustry wlth respect to which Congress has not
conferred regulatory power upon the agency.

I shall fﬁrther argue that the order 1s invalld because
the findings themselves do not support the major implicit
premise of this order -- namely, that the time has come for
any color, not whether one or another system is superior.

And, finally,; that thé order 18 invalld because they do
not support, if we are to have any éolor, they do not support
the conclusion that only one system rather than a multipliclty
of systems ghall be allowed to go on the alr. |

That 1s the major Pramework of my discussion. I should
1ike to say at the outset that we are dealing heré with what
at first blush seems like a very complicated sclence, but in
the final analysis 18 not a very complicated gquestion of law.

This is the familia: proplen of regulating transportation
agencies, because television is a tramsportation system.

By means of television images, visual images are trans-
ported from the point of origin, which is the broadcasfing
station, to the multiple polnts of destination, which are the
receivers in the homes of the audience.

What we are concerned with here is the attempt to intro-
duce a new style of transmission -~ namely, a style of trans-~.
éorting color images -- and what the Commission is concerned

with 18 to determine,or ought to be concerned with, is %o
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determine whether the art had reached a stage where such an
innoﬁation is in the public interest, and, secondly, if it is
. in the public interest, and the art has achieved that status,
by what track, what gauge track, shall those color images
move from the broadcaster to the radio receiving sets of the
audience?

Now this case, I think, has 168t something in the fact
that two greast corporations happen to be named as litigants
- and the result is Ghat T suspect that both in the Commission
and in the court below and possibly here there is a misconcep-
tion as to what the issue is.

It 1s no% whether RCA may broadeast or whether CBS may
broadcast. Neither CBS nor RCA appears In this Court today iun
thelr roles as broadcaatera.v Broadcasting 1is perforﬁed by
radlo or television stations, each of whom holds a license
1ssued b& the Pederal Oommunications Comnission.,

That 18 not the role in which CBS appears here this
.morning, nor RCA appears heré° They happen to appear here aé
champlons, champions of pérticular iGea, but thosé 1deés are
of general application.

In qfher words, if the Commission adopts;dhe system of
trackage, then all broadcasters Station A, B, €, all through
the land, they may use that system of trackage. It may be they
must use the system of tTrackage or lose their l;cense if the

Commlssion shouvld find that by thelr failure toc take advantage
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of that permlssion they have not adequately served the public

interest.

But that becomes a highway, an electronic highway, for
the traunsportation of images from any broadcaster to any
recelving set.

That 1s what we are talking about, and in order to simpliis
that issue I should 1like to fofget about RCA and CBS and talk
about two numbers. These two numbers arve easily remembered .

The CBS System operates on a number, 305, and the RCA
Systenm operates on a number, 525,

wa there are a great many other differences between the
two systems, but it 1s sufficient for us to know that 305
means the scanning of 405 lines per second in the transmission
of the pleture; whereas, 525 has the same reference to that
number of lines.

Now the significance of those numbers in the study here
today 1s that whereas we are today, everybody, all stations

all over the United States are today sending monochrome plceture:

- through the alr on 525 lines, a 525 gauge system; the'Commission

now proposes that color pilctures should be sent by a different
systen.
If we could send colored plctures on 525, 1t follows that

the same set could get images no matter what the broadcaster

vwas broadcasting, whether color images or black and white

images. They would arprlive on the same system or same highway.
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If we change to 405, then those sets which are equipped
for 525 receptlion will not get anything, will not get anything
unless they are changed in some important respecets.

Now, Mr. Justice Black'asked a questlion, which iss What
is there in this order which would prevent some other proponens
of 2 system from caﬁing before the Commission a month hence -
or three months heuce and say, "We now have a system which 1is
superior to the one you have approved in your order of Cctobex
10, Whﬁ don't you now authorize thls new system, either as an
additional ;ystem or as a substitute system?"

Of course, I think that question goes to the heart of the
issue here, because the answer, regardless of what the law nay
say about that, as & practlcal nmatter,; once this decision is
allowed to stand, such change 18 foreclosed for at least 2
generation.

Justice Black: Why?

Mro Rifkindﬁ The reason is very simple. Highly complex
and expensive equipment is involved in imstalling the preseni
proposed system. Consequently, 1f you accommodate the receilwii
'equipment and transmitting equipment to a #05-1line system, it
would involve a uremendous expense, & tremendous outlay of
money, to change to a new system.

It 1ls comparable to trying now to bulld a locomotive with
a different gauge distance between their wheels. It would

involve practlcally reconstructing the trackage of the United.
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Even though I might come forward and persuade the I.C.C.
that a locomotive with twice the width of axle distance 18 a
petter locomotive, as a practical matter nobody could latro-
guce such a locomotive because you could not tear up the tracks
all over the United States.

Justlce Black: Would it be qulte that expensive if the
other people were permitted to do 1t?

Mro'Rifkindé It would be inexpensive 1P the other system
were lntroduced now because then the consumer would have a
cholce. He could either wait, and the manufacturer would have
a choice, he could tell the consumer to wailt, "You will get
all.the broadcasts that are eoming out over the ailr. Very true,
you will get it la black and white even.though it 1s broadcast
in color, but you will get the pleture; if your favorite actor
is Jones or Smlith, you will see Jonee and Smith; but walt until
we give you.a gadget, a recelver or a tube, which will not make
your set obsolete.”

Justice Black: May I ask you, is your client interested
becéuae 1t prefers the Columbla System, the RCA System, or
because 1t wants 1t left open for a different system?

Mr. Rifkind: I will answer that question dirvectly. My
client is a manufécturer of television equipment, recelving
equipment. It is utterly unconcerned whether 1t is the CBS

System or the RCA System or the CTI System or a system ag yeb
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undeveloped.

It has one concern. Having sold over T00,000 sets to the
public, 1t does not, in obhedlence to the dictates of 1ts own
self-interest, want %o see those sets made obsolete.

No. 2, it does no% want by competitive necessity to be
subJjected to the need of selling a new plece of eguipment ~-
converters and adapters, and so forth -- to adapt and convert
its equipment, which in its opinion, and supported by the
findings, I migﬁt say, will be obsolete in very short order.

Justice Black: Could you not do it without any extra
expense except what 1t cost tq manufacture 1t? Would this
independent manufacturer be left free to manufacture the
Columbia equlpment?

Mr. Rifkind: Yes. There would ﬁe nothing to prevens
Emerson from produclng sets which will receive imsges trans-
mitted on the Columbla Sysbem by any station in the Unlted
States. |

Justlce Black:  How would you be hurt by either order?

Mr. Rifkind: I beg your pardon?

Justice Black: How would you be hurt by either order?

Mr. Riflkind: We'll be hurt because, No. 1, the consumers
wWho now have Emeraon éets ~« and the same goes fox all the otho:-
ﬁanuracturers ~-- I should say that in the District Court I held
the flag of all of these manufactucers, who united on this

proposition -~ they Ao noh want to see those sets hecome ohaslaita
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today --

Justice Black: Why?

'mr. Rifkind: ~- which in effect they would be.

Justice Black: Ordinérily I have not seen any reluctance
about that. |

Mr. Rifkind: Nermally you are right, that a manufaciturer
is interested in chaonge, and these manufacturers are interested
in change. They have embraced every change that has come alorg
in the television industry and in the radlo industry from 1is
very beginning.

They are the ones, after all, who ploneered the cheapening
of the large screen, whicn 1ls today the greatly deé&red articie
in television, but they do not want to make a chéwge which is
going to ruin their reputatlions, and they say, the manufacturer: .
who after all have the pulse of the public, they sell them thiw
commodlty, they say that the public will not be content with
7 or 8 or 9 or 10-inch plctures on 12-inch tubes; they will not
be content with whirling, splnning wheels, in froat ot thelr
sets; and, moveover, they will be unhappy because a wvast majori:.
of the outstanding sets cannot physically be converted.

Justice Black: Vhy would you have to manvfacture and

| sell those if yéu are afraid it willl hurt your business?

Mr. Rinfkind: Well, it is truve that we have a sort of
common law right not to stay in business.

Justice Black: UWhy would you have to go cut of business?
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i do not quite undersﬁand'that.

Mr. Rinfikind: Odace the publice is told that you can get
color over the als and you can get coloyr over the air by this
gsystem, they wlll come in and as& Tor color television sets.

Justice Black: Suppose they sort of left it free for
the other people also to have color. Would you then haﬁe no
objeetion?

¥ip o Rificind1 We have less ob jection.

éustice Black: Why would you have any?

Mr. Rifkind: We mou;d have 1ess'obdection bLecause we wou.il
then be able to offer our customers & choice, bud we would
still have obJjection because we still think that we would be
offering the public, to the extent that we sold them these
new deviees which the UBS System requires, lan ouwr Judgnent we
would be giving them shoddy merchandise, substandard merchan-
dise.

Justice Clark: ¥ou say a cholce; could you give him bHoih
in one rather than a cheice?

Mr. Rifkind: %he Commission suggesived That possibility
py throwlng i1t out iike a bolt out of the blue in the Sepbembal:
firgt order; they invited the inﬁustfy -= I think threatened
the industry -~ that unlens they came up with Jjuwt sueh a
guggestion as Mr, Justice Clark has now proposed, they would
impose the system, which they sald was not good enouvgh %o be

accepted.-
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The industry almost unanimously -- unanimously so far as
I know -- produced The facts, and the answer, which indicated
thét the idea has not yet been developed to the point of
commercial exploitation.

Justice Clark: In other words, you could not do it

ingofar as your present knowledge of the subject is concerned?

Mr. Rifkind: And thet, assuming that you could do both,
you s8till could not do without the whirling, spinning wheel, o
the gadget which Ls necestary in order to introduce the idea
of color ontd the picture.

The Chief Justice: I assume that you have not got any

CBS in here and you have no order from the Commission and the

sltuation is in the state of development, as it is, and

Communications would 1lssue an order favoring the RCA device,
would your positipn be the same?

Mr. Rifkind: Our position would be different, and therec
1s a reason. The RCA set belng compatible -- in other words,
since 1t operates on 525 lines -- we can sell every set we nou’
have without changing 1t and the public would not be inJured
in the slightest.

The Chief Justice: Well, your position would not be
changed completely; it would be changed 1ln degree, would it
not? You stlill would, would you not, think that the color

might not be good?

Mr. Riflkind: Well, 1F¥ you ask me to make a cholce, I wouid
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gay that we think this F.C.C. ought to do what the BBC has done,
the British Broadcasting, which is to say color has not arrived
yet. That 1s the fact which these findings sustain.

The Chief Justice: So then while you would not have the
exact same attlitude as to the whole because you have black and
white on the RCA, your objection as to color --

Mr. Rifkind: Would 5till be the same.

' The Chief Justice: -~ would stilli be the same.

Wr. Rifkind: That is true, but 1t would be of a very
minute order, since we could continue manufacturing and selling
the identical sets we have beeh manufacturing and selling
without in}any way mlsrepresenting the sltuation to the public.

The Chief Justice: As I understand it, you think this
Court should in effect mak® the determination that the bime
has not arrived for color %o go on the ailr.

Mr., Rifkind: No, I do not say that. I would not ask this
Court to act as a surrogate for the Commission, to make a
decision which the Commission should make.

I say that the findings made by the Commission, their
findings, not mine or this Courtis, sustaln only one answer;
and that is 1t is not ripe, 1t i; not ready, and Juzst to
indicate a detall which supporte that proposition, and la line
with the question of both the Chiefl Justice and Mr. Justice
Black, whiéh'they asked; on page 419 of the record the Commisz-

sion called attention in its second report to The fact that by
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adopting thils order they reallze that they are closing the
door to two lines o luprovement, or three lines of improvemens,
to which they adverited in their first report.

For instance, they say:

"Since receivers without brackets could not"--

Justice Black: Which part of the page?

Mr. Rifkind: 1 beg your pardon?

Justice Black: VWhat part of the page?

Mr. Rifkind: It is page 419, and i1s the last few lines
of the uppermost section --

Justice Black: I sac.

Mr. Rifkind: "Since receivers without brackets could not
be adjusted to.a dlfferent line rate, our inability to adopt
brackets at this tine orobably means as a practical matter whes
and 1f horizontal iaterlace 1s adopted, the improvement may
be confined ohly to horizontal resolution and not to vertlcal
resolution.”

Although they had expressed the hope that we eould have
both horizontal and vertical -~ that ls what they sald.

There 1s the same thing in the next paragravh, whefe they
talk about long persistence phosphors, the last sentence of
that paragraph states:

"Since we are not able to adopt bracket standards,

improvements from long persistence phosphors might as a pracitic:

~matter be limited to increasing brightness withoubs oﬁjecﬁionablm
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flieker."”

But the other virtues of this device, about which I know
iittle, could not be achleved.

Justice Reed: Now turn thet page, Judge Rifkind, %o pagec
420,

Mr. Rifkind: 420%

Justice Reed: Yesn.

Mr. Rifkind: Yes, I have read that section, Mr. Justice.
3ustice Heed: They peem to imply there, if I read it
correctly, that there is to be further experimentation that iu

%0 be generally offepred. |

Vr. Rifkind: T again call attention to the Tact that it
is legally posslible, it 18 conceivable, duit I suggest to Your
Honor that the burden which would have to be ovefcome by Some-
body who would come along a year from now or two years f£iron
now and who would suggest that his system requires the scrappiw:
of i2 or 15 million sets or 20 or 30 million sets, at the rate
of which they are being sold today, that would be a burden noA
Commission would carry because Commissions are composed of
human beings who have to account to the Ooﬁgressa

Justice Franifurter: The counbervailing consideration is,
ag I get the Commissionls decision, the countervailing conside:

atlon is that if we wult, as Comnissioner Hennoclt suggeested,

at least for the time, i we wait, in the meantime these 12

million sets may become -- they multiply like rabbitcs.
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(Laughter.)
And these sets a year from now or two years from now wilghi
-be; whatever they are, 20 million, and by that time too thers
nay be no lmprovements in the art beyond what CBS now vifers,
and by that time the replacement of or the converting or
adapting requirements would be so vast that thers would be thas
obJeetion to adopting CBS, when in the meauntime ithere would
be no improvement. Is that not thelr case?

Mr. Rifkinds Yes, but, Your Honor, if that were so aund ir
the COﬁmission acted on this prémisé, then they uwould have ¢
tear up thelr order tecause the only reason they said they
.could get by in fhis order is because they have the hope of
the.tri-colored tube.

If the tri-colored tube, whilch makes the RCiA System
feasible, were not avallable, then thls order would never have
been made. They agree that this 1llttle picture is not what
the public is going to stand for, but they say, "We hope theb
the tri-colored tube is going to correct that,” that is when
they used that pretty language about "an important part of
our declsion is based on speculation and hope" -~ $that and
three or four other Litems.

So the fact 1s that the Commission knows that Shis
Andustry 1s bursting and bubbling with inventiveness. Why,
Your Honor, between the time these hearilngs opaned and the

time'the-heariags closad the opening pages read like some
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apchaeological document. That is how rapid the rate of change
o | that took piace in this very fecund industry -- it was that
rapid.

Now, the Commission 1s awave of that. They know there ig
an automobile on the horizon, bubt they are discussing whether
we should standardize on the horse or the nule.

Justice Frankiuriter: But, Mr. Rifkind, the public eraze

for color is the underlyinz thesls of this decisilon.

it Mr. Rifkind: [ suggest, Your Honor, the only man whe
2 eried for color is one member of the Commission, who on page
e 19%, I think, of my record, says:

"I am for color now.”

That is his major premlse. .He does nob say why. He does
not say how. He does not say:

"is color ready?”

tie says: "I am for color now."

That is an ariiecle of faith. That kind of sn article

of faith I call an obmession, because «-
i Justice Frenkfurter: Yes, but he was not alone. One man
could not have made thiasa owrder.

Mr. Rifkind: Oh, he persuaded the others to adopt i1t.

(Yaughter.)
This idolatrous conception, because it is manifest, Your

Honor, that once you 83y you have to have color now regardles:s,

then guality, publlic interest, cost, effect on fubure inventlon.
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everything goes by the board.

N But I say that"I am for color now" is a hope, 2 prayer --

1t is not a reason. It is not a vational thing. It 1s not

¢ gsomething -- |
xiy | Justice Franifurter: ‘But it 1s an intultive Ga;lup poll.
4 ¥e. Rifkind: Tt is an intultive Gallup poll bus he is
1:*%”;' the only person being questioned.

%ﬁf}
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The Chief Justice: Did you understand Mr. Cahtil to
gay that "We were all for color™"?

.Mro Rifkind: I dissent from that. (Laughter)

Mr. Chief Justice, 1 aﬁ for color when color ls ready.

I will be for color vhen they mapufacture a device which we wiil
be glad to sell, shich will receive color for the average con-
sumer in a satisfactory quality and at a price he can pay.

I say to Your Honor that these findings will demonstrate
to you, these findings, not the evidence, that that has not yeu
happened, as.far as this record is concerned.

Justice Fraenkiurter: By findlngs you mean these numbered
baragraphs? | |

Mr. Rifkind: They call 1t thelr findings. I call it that
because the Commission calls 1t that.

Justice Frankfurtérs I just want to ldentify 1%.

The Chief Justice: Your time has expired.

Mr. Rifkind: My time has expired? Thank you, s'r.

ARGUMENT ON BEHALF OF APPELLANT INTERNATIONWAL BROTHER-

HOOD OF ELECTRICAL WORKERS
By Hr. Kamin
Mr. Kamin: Msy 1% please the Court, I represent before

Your Honors a labor'organization which has a membership of

21,000 people, 18,000 of whom are employed *n and around Chicau:

ﬁy manufacturers of television receivers and of parts and

equlpment therefor.
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These workers whom I represent average in their aggregate -
annual earnings of about $50 million a year. The'r very sub-
stantial intereswu wém recognized by the ceuft below whilgh, over
fhe objections of the defendants, gave the union Leave ©o
intervene in the proceedings.

The union took ne part In the proceedings hefore the
Comnission, and we shall explain that very shortly. It iz one
of the polnts that w2 raisead.

Béfore the court and before this Court, the unton asserted
the rights and interests c¢f its members not only as employees
in the television manvfacturing business, but as owners and
operators of television receiveé equipment.

| Wow, i1f Your Honors, please, the unionts conﬁent1ong 1n
this matter are brief and rather narrow. We assert that
proceedings, developments in the television indusury while the
.proceedings were going on tefore the Federal 00mmun1cations
Comnisslon were so fazd aﬁd 8o rapid that before the record
was closed, before the data upon which the Commisaion relied
in 1t8 ultimate findings, the data were obsolete, so obsolete
that they did not relate at éll to an ex!sting economic
sltuation.

Becouse the Ccmriscsion relied upon obsolete édats *%

. departed so far from 1ts8 notice of rule making as to deprive
partieé in the position of this appellant, telewiston

namifacturers, other nevsons similarly s*tuéted; of the right
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and opportunity to be heard in the rule making proceedings.
We assert, Your Honorg, that a court whiech *s reviewing
ageﬁcy action in a rule making proceeding whereln an effort 1s

made to fix standards for long-term regulation, such a court

" may inguire 1nto the validity, the current validity, of the dais

upon which the ageﬁcy action 1s predicated.

This Court may do so in order to determine whether or no%b
there is a rational basis for the action of the agency, not by
way of appraising tche agency policy, not by way of subststuting
judicial jJudgmen® for,administrati#e Judgment, but to determin:
whether or not there is some real basis in fact for the
agency's action.

N;w, if Your Honors please, the Nation?’s television
system consists of 107 broadcasting stations and 12 m*ilion
receiving stations. These receiving stations are in the homes
of the Nation.

When the Commission's hearing started in September, 1940 ..

that is Just eighteen months ago today -~ they proceeded on

the basis of the receiver survey made during the month of

March, 191!’9 °
This survey showed that there were slightly over one

million sets in use in the country, 82 percent of which were

ilo-inch sets or Smalier, 15 percent of which were 12-1nch sets.

and only 3 percent of which were larger than 12-1/2. All

demonstrations of adaptatlion and conversion sﬁstems before the
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Cormission were not of the sets that are being manufactured,
being purchased today. They were of small, absolete, or
antequated, in any event, 7, 10, and 12-inch sets.

Let me demonstrate, Your Homors. This 18 a Du Mont
recelver, abqut ag compact an 18- or lg-ﬁnéh receiver as you
can find. This 18 the viewing area here in white.

I place over thls area-fhe viewing surlace of a 12-inch
tube. Thils is the largest set that was belng made in quantitcy
at the fime the Coumission's proceedings started. So that we
have an inventory, a natioﬁal inventory, at that time of about
a million recelvers, most of which are that sige.

Now what has happaned 8lnce the Commission started 1%s
hearings is tha% the manufaeturing industry has gone ahead with
all this %talk about the publie clamor for color -~ the fact is
they have been buyiﬁg and buying sets in great quant'ty, with
all of the publicity given to the proceedings before the
Comuission.

Now there are 6 million sets today 'n Amer!ecs, Y-ur Honors;
of this larger size. This smaller si1ze represents the maximum

color picture that may be obtained.

Now when the Conmission talks about converting and adapt® .

== yhen the Commission talks of adapting and couverting a

larger set, the record is somewhat confused. Actually, 1f they

were frank about 1%, 1%t would have to be found that on thé bagis

of the standards they sebt, 1t is impossible to convert and adapt
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a set of 16 inches completely so that it will receive the
color broaécast.

This, Your Honors, represents the largest wheel that the
Comiission recommends, 26 inches In diameter. They say 1f 1%
gets any larger than this, you cannot get it 1n the home, 1%
will put the family out of the living room.

Now, this must be on a comversion placed 'n some relation-
ship to the tube. On %this &ery compact set, 1f we piace % on
the set in relationship to tﬁe tube, making all reassonable
allowances for a motor on the top of the set, that *s the
coverage we get. ZHven 1f we reduced the pleture 'n hepe -~ and
mind you, Your Honors, there is no device invented yet, you can
search this record, you can search the records of the United
States Patent Office -~ theré is no device invented whereby the
DPlecture on the tube this size can be reduced down o this size
for Columbia color.

But even assuming that 1t ecculd, the relatiornship of this
wheel to the set demonstrates on the basis of simple arithmetic -

and geometry that sets in this size cannot be converted; they

cannot be comverted to color, existing recelvers.

‘ Then, what are we left with?
Justice Black: What does th'g wheel do?
| Mr. Kamin: This wheel rotates with filters across the
fa;e of the tube.

Justice Black: How faat?
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Mr. Kamin: 1340 timei: per minute. There are 6 £1lters
in there. As each color field comes off thig Columhia Pield
. sequential sﬁstem, 1% is stpposed to match one of these filters
and that is how you get the color. You get the 1ilusion of
color.
This is nechanlcal coloﬁ. It 18 not color 1nuside the seb.

It 13 color imposed from outside the set.

Now, Your IHonors, thg net effect then from a legal w«-

Justice Black: How 1s 1t guarded?

Mr. Keming I beg your pardon?

Justice Black: How 1s 1t guarded?.

Mr. Kemin: I sssume that,ﬁhere will be a housing; on the
smaller setg, I do not mind saying that OBS has ccoked up sonme
rather attractive designs that conta’n this small wheel, so
ﬁhat they are fully protected.

There has never been a demonstration of the CBS vheel on
a seb even as large as 12-1/2 inches having a tube of 12~1/2
inches.. Certainly no demonstrétion,has been hed of a GBS

wheel on a 1€-inch or a 19-4inch set. The record i3 devoid of 1%.

Inﬁall of the proceedlngs before the Couwmiassion and all of
these demonstrations of the UBS system, the record 13 devoid of
1%, so we wind up, Your Honors, with the fact thail n terms bf

' the inventory of available sets throughout this country today

this Commlesion’s order does not establish for these 12 m*llion

Awericon fenilise o rtandzrd of cclory bresdcasting, hut o
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second standard of black and white broadcasting.

I wish I had time to go into that. Thank you.

The Chief Justice: Judge Rosemman. /

ARGUMENT ON BEHALF OF APPELLEE COLUMBIA BROADCASTING SYSTEM
By Mr. Rosemman

Mr. Rosenmans If the Court please, I represent here the
Columbia Broadcasting System, which before the Comm’sston was 2
proponent'of its so-called field sequential color system, and
a8 I sat here and listened to the arguments of the appellants
today, I am sure that some of you must believe that this
Comnission of seven people, appointed by the President and
confirmed by the Senate, were perverse individuals, who were
mischievous and with malice went out of their way to find an
incompatible system when they had the.;hofce of selecting a
g20d, workable . compatible system; that they thougnt 1t would
be too easy td adopt a compatible system, 1t would be ton easy
on the publiec, it would create no problems; and, therefore,
they went out of thelr way to say, "Let us adopt an tnccmpat'ble’
system and cause all this confusion.”

Justice Frankifurter: It has heen known, even In this
Court, that a single dissenting volce eventually becomes the
voice of wisdon.

Mr. Rosenman: In this case, Your Honor, they had no

single dissenting voice because they had no choice at all.

Justice Frankfurter: I mean, Commlssioner Hennock's vtew
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vags different from the others.

'My. Rosenman: I will come to Commissloner Hemnock'!s view,
Your Honor, especially in connection with the se;ond report.

In this case vhey had no chéioe. They had %tried couwpatib:..
systems and had tried them for ten years, and they had two
compatible systems before them, so~called dot sequential sysiben,
the RCA system, and the so~called line sequential system, the
CTI system.

They found, Your Honors, that there was no cholees that the
only one that»could.wark, the only one that could produce a
aatisfgctory color pleiture, was the incompatible system, and
that that had been true for ten years.

Théy'went further and found that from the wvery nature of
%he dpt sequential system and the line sequentﬁél system that
the probability was that a bamﬁatible system would never work.

I shall coﬁe to polnt out to Your Honors the inaccuracy ci
Mr. Cahill’s argument that the Cormission's first report was
based on s;eculation and hcpe, but I thinﬁ that 1% will be
conceded that the Cormisslion found that so far as a compaf*blé
systen was concerned taere probably was no hope'and never would
be any hope that 1t would work.

Now these facts were 21l sustained by the rerord before
the.Oommission, and we shall come to the record and quotg From

1%, and we will show the certainty of the findings by the

raference bto tha eecosd.
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be the appellants take exception to the fact ‘that we
rely exclusively on the record, and they make the astounding
statément in their brief, as a sort of climax to their argument:
charging us, the appcllees, and I quote this extraordinary
gstatement, that we "take refuge in the existence sf a record
and ?n rubrles vrelating to administrative finallity and the
limitations on judicial review."

We plead gullty to those charges that we do look to the

- record made before the Commission, that we do cal! this (ourtie

Qttention to the well defined precedents on judictal review.

Now we go to ﬁhe rebord to find oﬁt, Your Hororsa, axaétly
vhat the Federal Communicatlons Cormisston é1d, how ;arefully
and thoroughly and rationally and how soundly they considered
all of the facts of these three systems and how every finding
that they made and every action that they took was based on
evidence before thém, and how thelr findings and conclugd ons
were based on cormon sense and upon publlc policy and carried
out the public convenlence, interest and necessity, as 11 was
their duty to do.

Now a word about the proceedings which took nlace belfors

this Commission. ‘These proceedings were conducted in a Formal

- mauner, although the statute does not requirve it.

The hearing record consumed some 10,000 pages of testimony

and over 260 exhibits. There were 53 witnesses whé testif1ed,

occupying 62 actual trial days.
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In addition toc this testimony, Your Honors -- and this 1s
very'importaﬁt - these>00mmissioners saw eight demonstrations
on the record of these systems. There was a demonstration om
an actual receiving set of RCA, there was one of (BE, there was
one of CTI.

In addition to that, they had comparative demonstrat!ons,
£\ which.means that on two occasions they placed a rene*v*ng sed
for a dot sequential systen, RCA, and recelving set for a field
sequential system, and they compared those %wo ptfertures, and
their findings are based on those demonstrations, on what thoze
Commissioners saw with their own eyes in looking at these colox
plotures.

Iﬁ addition %o that, they had reports of certaln public
reaction surveys. It was not a one-man intuitive Gallup poll,
Your Honor. There were three actual’ public reaction sﬁrveys.
One was conducted cunly for doctors viewing a telecast 1n color
in Washington of an operation which was belng performed in the
Johns Hopkins Hospibal. |

In addition to that, there were two series In the Walker
Bullding here in Washington to which people were *nvited, and
%0 which the genersal publﬁe wvere admitted, and w'th respeet to
eaéh 6f these surveys quéstionnaires were distributed and £5ila
out and subnmitted on the record and ére in the record.

After these were done, the Commission, after the close of

the hegring in May of 1952, the fczmiaction deliboratad zhoug
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this matter for three months and then issuved 1ts first report,
which covers 157 different paragraphs, each one containing
findings, and then later a second report, and the answer %o
every charge which has been made here by the appellants will
be found within the coafin2s of those reporis. |

In order to present the background agalnst which these
findings were msde and.the reports were i1ssued 1t will t2
necessary for me to tell Your Honors something about these
three'systema -~ pather, two systems, because only two are herec,
because nelther of the appellants has as yebt undertsken to tell
you anything about the way these systems work.

The reason I am lmpelled %o do that 15 so that Your Honor:
w1ll realize the basis on which this Commission,-after.hear*ng
the testimony and after seeing the pictures, csme to the
conclusion that the so-called dot sequential system, RCA sysben,
would probably néver work.

First, gbout hlack and white televigion, with which YTour
Honorg are familiar,'l am sure, you have a camera some place
in the s8tudio or out on a football field; you have a receiving
set in your own home.

At that camera an electron beam scans the picoture which 1

being taken, and 1t séans 1% from left to right 1m lines.

~ Your Honors have been able to see the lines. That line starts

up here and goes across and goes down to the bottom right and

then 18 snapped up again and does the same thing.
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Each time 1t goes down from the upper left to the lover
right 1% has covered a field, and'when 1% éovers two f1elds, %
has covered a frame.

Now in black and white, Your Honors, under the standards
set by this Commission some nine years ago thaé electron heam
goes down to the bottom and back again 60 fields each seéondg
1% goes from here to there 60 times each second, and at leas®
theoreticallﬁ there are 525 lines on each of those fields.
That is called the verticsl resolution. That eleétron bean
Plcks up parts of the picture as it goes along, just as is
reflected on a photographié DPlate, the high blaé: and the lovw
vhite and the grays, the intermediate mixtures, so that when
that is transmitted to the recelver, you see an aoéurate
picture of vhat the camera saw.

Now color must be done differently. It 1s 4mpcssible for
a camera to pick up a coior and gend it out in one feli swoop.
E? _ The camera muat do it by plecking up three separate colors,

Alale which we call the primary colors, in this case red, blue, and
green; and there are two ways of sending those colors out. I

can do 1t either by trylng to send them all out at once,

simultaneously, by three cameras or three tubes, that is

called the simultanecous system, which I will come to in a
‘minute; but the syztems which were used here were systems of

sénding those colors out sequentially, one after the other,

so fast that the retina of the eye retalng them and they are
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blended on the retina of the eﬁe to produce color. So that
red, blue, green, i put together on the retina, will produce
the color, dependling upon the intensity of the red and %the
blue and the green which are sent.

The field sequential system, Your Honors, whieh 18 the
CBS system -~ and I must say here I am sure Mr. Cahill did
. this inadverteatly, but he misrepresented to the Court that
the CBS system, tha Tield sequential system, could be sent
only by CBS -~ that is not so.
It 1s celled the CBS system beecause we are the one who
¢ proposed it. Its technlical name is the fielad sequential
system, and this order in adopting 1t permits anybody who
wanis to broadcast that system. Du Mont can do 1%, RCA ecan &n
1t, every station here in wasﬁington ctan do 1t 'f they want to.
It compels nobody %o do it.
Justine Black: What 1s the real meat of the controversy
‘between you? Columbiz does Intend to do 1t <=
Mr. Rosenman: I would say, sir; that the Gommﬁssﬁon found
-~ gnd we say properly -- that Columbla can start to do 1%
tomorrow, Columbia can start to do it tomorrow -- anybhody who
wants to bulld the ¢quipment can do 1t the day afser towmorrow,

but that nobody can send out a dot sequential or an RCA systen

~ because the system will not work.

Justice Frankfurter: Well, if a thing does not work,

what would be the harm in letting people try 1%2
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Mr. Rosenman: The harm, Your Honor, 1s threefold, and
I will come to that when I talk about multiple stondards, 17
Jou will permit me {irst to show you --

Justice Frankfuvrter: We will permit that.

Mr. Rosenmman: - why the Commission held 1% cannot
possibly work.

Justice Frankfurter: "Never" is an awfully blg word.in
this Court.

Mr; Rosemman: Maybe whep I explaln the cowmplexity of
this, the'Commission's Pinding at least will be held reasonable.
It did not have to g& go far aé to say i1t never would work. I-
is sufficilent if it seys am between the two if does not worlk
nov, end there 1s mo probsbility that 1t will worlk within the
foreseesble future, snd that is the actual findinz of the
Commission.

Justice Clark: Does CBS make the recetvers?

Mr. Rogsenman: Wo, siv.

Justice Black: Where would Columbia be heard 1f others
wexre left free to use the other system? Where would Columb?a
bé heard?

Mr. Rosenman: That, too, Mr. Justlce Black, 18 a qguestio:

'of multiple standards which I wish you would let wme defer unti’

-Iﬁfinish the exposition of this system.

Justice Black: All right.

&

n P1eld gequertial gystew g a

Mr. Rovermerns  The Coluibl

<
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system of taking one field, as I explained to Your Honors, in
one color and sending 1%t out. Then they would take the next
one in the second color and send 1%t out -- red, blue, green,
re?, blue, green -~ so that the color ;hanges eaéh 144%h of a
second and the color goes out as complete fields.

When they are recelved, they are merged into an acerurate
color picture.

Jugtice Burton: It ls the same way they print a color
picture on a printed page, first one and then another until
they have 1t? |

Mr. Rosenmans TYes, that is abou£ the same. Roughly, they
use different colors for primary colors, but 1t 18 roughly the
game. When they mefge, you get an accurate color picture. You
gét an accurate plecture of the red, maroon, and the different
colors by sending out red, blue, and green.

Now, the.so~ca11ed RCA system, which 1s the dot sequential
system, works very differently, and the reason 1% works df fier-
ently 1s they have:tried to maintain the 525 lines.

We have realized that in the field sequenttsl system
we ;annot malntain the 525 lines and at the same time Tnéressc
the field rate from 60 %o 144 and st1ll keep *t within 6

megacycles; but if you want to keep 1t in 6 megacycles and keep

the same lines, the field rate and the line rate the same ae

the dot sequential system does, then you run into d'fficulties.

Iy the dob seqﬁentiai systen what 18 tranent Gicd frow Ghe
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camera over the alr to your receiver 1s not a feld of red
follqwed by a field of blue, by a field of green, but as this
electron beam moves along the line it piéks up f1rst a red dot,
then a blue dot, then a green dot, and that is ﬁhy it 4s
calied the dot sequential system, and 1% sends that out eacﬁ
line being in dlfferent dots, and those dote appear on your
color receiver at home.
Now because we send thém out in flelds. our color switches
134 times a second, and because the RCA system sends them out
in dots, the color changes 11 million times per s<cond.
In addition to that, coming to apparatus, the apparatus
of the RCA camera consists of three tubes, each of which piéks
out a different color and sends it out.
These threé tubes in the camera must be placed 30 minutely.
8o nicely, that the 1ﬁage of the three will h1t the same point
on the transmitting apparatus -- physically they must be *n
one position, and 1f they move so much as 2/1000 of an %nch,
4f some one were to bump up against the camera, 1% would
immediately throw it out of focus.
I; addition tc that, the phosphor, the face of these
tubes, the chemical substarice on the tube, must be exactly the
game. Otherwise, the cmissions that go out w1ll not be correct.
These phosphors deteriorate as a matter of phys?tcal
science, and they must be deteriorate at exactly the saﬁe rave,

no% only with sack othar, Tut the surlace must detertorate at
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exactly the same rate.

Now if all those things happen, and 1f there i1s no m!shake
in the 1/11,000,000 of a second, the system will work.

Now the fact is that 1f there is a mistzke 1n 1/11,000,000
of a second, you wﬁll get a red vhen you should get a blue or
'you will get a green when you should get a red, and I saw that
happen at these demonstrations, vhile what I saw 1s not 1n “he
record, vhat the Comnlssioners saw with their own eyss is in
the record.

Now an independent consulting engineer, test!fy'ng not for
us, but testifying for CTI, a third proponen€ of a system, the
so~called line sequential system, testifted as a physicist
as an expert 1n this business that as a result of these ertticy:
folerances, as a result of this extreme nfcety wh'eh must be
malntained not only in the system but in the apparatus through
which the system works, thet 1f there is a varlation of
1/7,000,000,000 of a;second we 1/7,000,000,000 of = secona arin
there will be a mixturé of color, and this ke ccmputed was the
same as hitting a target LCO feet wide on the sunm 93 million
miles away.

Transferring that into non-astroncmical language, 1% 8
like hitting a l-ineh target some 19,000 miles away.

Wow sometimes the dot sequential system will do ¢, bub
the Cormissioners held and fourd that within a reasonable time

1% just cannot masntaln the accuracy which that requ’ires.
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Justice Black: The way you described 1t, just to a layman,
it sounds to we when that is done, that will be a very
excellent method.

Mr. Rosemnman. If 1t 41s done.

Justice.Black: That would be an estimate.

Mr. Rosemman: The Cormission has found, s'vr, from viewing
the demonstrations that 1%t cannot be done, that the colop
fidelity cannot be maintained, and what the Comm?szsion didlin
making 1ts fin&ings wes to set up, after f1né'ng that ecolor
was a fundamental improvement to televiston, not merely a
soclal smenity, as oune of the appellants! brtefs rontend here,
but a fundamental improvement which adds realism and opens new
fields for effective broadcasting, the Comm'ssion found, after
finding that of color, set up certalin criteria whiech 1% satd
formed the almost minimum of a decent color system.

Those criteria are se® forth in the record at page 155,
and they provide, first, that a color system to b2 adopted -~-
and this was the Comwmizsion performing 1ts statutory duty of
protecting the public interest by seteing a minimum which %
would take before they would permit a color systes to be
broadcast ~- the first is that 1t go 'n 6 megacycles.

That is one of the things that causes the d'fftculty, and

the reason they kept it 4n 6 megacycles 18 that 's what the

present black and vhite gauge 18 and they do not want to waste

frequencles; so they sald, "You munt have it in 6 megacyeles.”
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Tpen they sald for No. 2 that 1t must be capable of produén
ing a color pieture which has a high quality of color ftdeld vy.
The meaning of that is obvious.

That.it has adequate apperent definttion; and that 't has
a good picture texture, and that 1t s not marred by such
defects as misregistration, line crawl, jitter, or unduly
prominent dot or cther structure. I would llke to explaln a
few of those phrases.

| You will notice i1t says that it must have adequate
apparent definition. ¥You have heard Mr. Cahill refer several
times to a degraded resolution. By that he means that the 525
has been reduced to 405, and 380 horizontal resolution has beern
reduced to 205.

It is true that those theoretical piéture elemeuts have
been reduced in the CBS color. That s what makeis 't *ncom-
patible, and that 18 the way we get i1t into 6 megacycles.

What the Commlssion sald was that the listener and the
viewer in the home was not interested 'n some geouetry of
‘resolution. What the viewer in the home was "nterested *'n was
what he saw, what was the definition of th's picture, what
was the apparent definition, and that was the combination of
this geometric resoclution, 1t was a combination of that and
color and contrast and cri spness and sharpness, and that is what

the Cormission found, and they based 1t not only on the testi-~

mony , but what they saw coming into a recelver recelving the
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CBS system;

_Juatice Frankfurter: Do I infer from that statement that
you challenge -~ '

Mr. Rosenman: I beg your pardon?

Justice Frankfurter: ¥You challenge the argument that the
OBS color scheme would involve a reduction'1n the black and
white reception? I co not mean an abstract mathemati;al matter
to the viewer, but those remarks were directed to meet that.

ﬁr. Rdsenman: That 1s right, and when you get a color
picture, 1ts apparent definition, with the color =nd the éonu
trast and the crispness,‘presenté a much better p*cture than
the black and white picture which you get.

Justice Frankfurter: But 1f I do not want or some one
does not want the color, his black and wh'te would be reduced
In definition; 18 that right? |

Mr. Rosenman: No.

Justice Frankfurter: As I understood that, that was the
argument. |

Mr. Rosemman: . That 1s not so, Your Honmor. I am sure you
misunderstood what either Mr. Cahill said or he must have mis-
understood your question.

Justice Frankfurter: I do not know what the 40 percent
means. What dld he mean? What d1d he mean by that? .

Mr. Rosenman: The 40 percent means this: It CBS 1s

broadcasting in color and they put an adapter on or a rece!ver




puts an adapter on zu that he gets that color n bHlack and wh oo

that will be a reduced resolution victure. That ‘s truc.

Jugtice Frenkfurtir:s Not merely for color but alsc bleel:

anéd white?

My. Rosemman: Bleek and white. He will not get 1%

-4
e |

color, but he will get it in black and white.
Jugtice Freanwivrters Black =nd white?
Mr. Rosewmign: %hat 18 right
Justice Frankiurter: What he will see will be lest sei-

evle than what he v hefore.

Mr. Rosenuens UThev ig right. That 1s equally true, Youu

honov, and the Comnllsaion o founa of the RCA col:r syshou.
Waen the RCA eolor oysuem is broaécast, you do noi need an
adanter co see hHiaclk and whitvte on 1t, but the bila-k a2nd vh'vs

you 3ee 1s a reduced pleture from what you would :e zebt:iing

from stiraight bHilaclk and white from RCA.

Justice Fraukfurter: He did not leave thst ‘mperession on

ma; L darelsay 2 2aigd 1t.

Justice Clark: Your contentiosn 18 that the :lzek and i
oa neither systzn woulsd be the sane?

Mpr. Ro senpmans  Sir?

Justice Clark: If the systems were ln eolcr but you

wanted to get them in black ané white, why, taey would be 2bcu.

the same in bleck and white.

My, Rofepnmpr: T oam ofpratd Toegrth agy o thew wortd he 31
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Bame, Your Homor, becsuse the ¢BS éolox-, which comes in when
1t is changed to black and white, has the 405 lines instead of
the 525 lines.

Justice Frankfurter: ¥You are now getting at what is
called, if I may use the classie term of theFday, the package;
Jou get a black and white and color package wh*;h reduées the
form of good black and white but 1% s worth 1t, s that tt?9

Mr. Rosenman: It is not only worth 1%, Your Honor, but
if I may add one other thing that you get with CB3 that you do
not get with the dot seqﬁentﬁal system -~ and I 4> no% think
Mr. Cahiil frankly answered that question ~~ 1g that in dés ¢
you have & black and white set in your home and we begin to
broadcast in color, most of the sets can be converted -- I am
not talking about thi's kind of thing we saw here -- but most
of the sets, and we demoﬁstrated those, we had them n the
Walker Building and nobedy complained about them there, they
converted your black and white which you have at home to
re¢eiving CBS color, and they did it by puté*ng,not a whirling
'disé, but a piece of fﬁrniture, a contraption which had a dise
in 1%, which no one saw, which revolved in there so fast that
no one can see it ~~ certainly no one at the Walker Bu*ld*ng
objected to 1%, and they were aSkgd, "What defects do you see?”

Now, . CBS ;an éonvert to éolof‘and can take your set,

Mr. Justice Frankfurter, which you have at home, *f 1% 18 a

table met, and can put a converter in front of 1t so that when
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ve begin to broadcast color here, you will get 1%t 1n color,

! and that is what we are interested in here =~ color =- and not

black and white.
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Now 1f RCA were %o try to broadcast the dot .sequential
'systeﬁ or if anybody were to try to broadcast the doﬁ
'sequéntial gystem, so far as this record shows, no matter
~what you spent and no matter how hard you tried, you can not
convert that set to color. It 1s useless.

Justice Minton: The Commission had as a result of the
question then a cholce between compatibility and no color and
1ncompatibility and color.

Mr. Rosenman: That is exactly right, Mr. Justice Minton.
That 18 what the Qommission meant when 1% sald that com-
patibility is tob high a price t§ pay for colér. In:other
words, we wané-color, we contend that it ls reasonable for
this Commission, charged with the public interest ; to
say; "We want color, here is something new and erciting, we
want to give color to the public." Now 1f the only way we
can do 1t 1s by an incompatible aystem, is it not reasonable
or certalinly is it arbitrary and capricious for this group
of seven people to saj, "We will glive color to the public
even though we have to give it in an incompatible system"?

Justice Frankfurter: Is that the real issue? 1Is 1%
the real issue between 1néompatib111ty and color or cou-
patibility and no color? Is not rather-thﬁ 1ssue a 1little
different: color and incompatibil?ty ncw or color and

incompativility exciusively?

Mr. Rosenuan: Color and iuncompatiblility what?
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Justice Frénkfurter: Exclusively.

Mr.‘Rosenman: Well, I will come right now to these
multiple standards, as long as you press me.

Justice Frankfurter: No, you take your time.

Mr. Rosenman: Sir?

Justice frankfurtert You take the ofder of your argument
because you are prepared té report and I am not.

Mr. Rosenman: I am prepared. for that, but I assure you
I am coming to muitiple standards.

N&w after they set these criteria -~ I have not finished
the criteria yet, I got off on other things -~ but they had
the criteria, that the color pilcture must be sufficiently
bright so as to permit an adequate contrast range at honme

and so that under normal home conditions you can look at

Jthem.

Then it said 1t must operate through a recelver which
would not cost too much, so that the normal Americen citizen
could buy it. |

It sald it would have to §perateffrom a camera which would
not cost too much and would not be co complex that the

ordinary station owner could not afford to operate 1t because

"~ he d1d not have enough research men and engineers.

Then They went on to add another critefion, number ¥,

that it must not be unduly suscepbible %o interference with

the present monochroms system. I have te explain that to yonr
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Honors.

Your Honors each have a black and white television set
which recelves signals.

It does something else which you do not realize. It
enits signals. It emits weak signals. That is called
oscillator radlatlon, and the Commission in pursuing the
public interest, convenlence and necessity has saild that
1T we are going to adopt a color system, we want to adopt a
color system which at least will not be too susceptible
to thié, because if it is, what good 1s 1t°?

As I shall come later on, they found that the dot
sequential system is very susceptible to this, and the field
sequential system is not.

Then 1t sald as another criterion, a minimum criterion,
that a good television system must be capable of transmitting
color programs over intercity relay facilities. That means
if we broadcast a Senate hearing here in Washington, we
should be able to transmit 1t in color over the coaxial
cable which runs between Washington and New York. That
would seem to be a legitimate criterion.

All of these criteria we urge your Honors are reasonable.
None of them is éapricious. None of them 1s afbitrary. They
were the criteria which were laid down by this Commission,

charged with the Job of doing that.

dJustlce Frankfurier. Is any one of these criteria
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specifically challenged by the appellants?
Mr. Rosenman: They are not challenged directly. They

are challenged in twn ways, your Honor:

Firgt, they say the Commission should have adopled

additional criteria. They also say the Commission should have
pald more attention to one of the criteria than they did.

Now after laying down these criteria, the Commission did
the normal thing which any Judge of the facts would do. They
laid as against these criteria the two systems -- dot
sequentlal system and field sequential system,

They also laid the line sequentilial system and found it so
faulty -~ and 1t 1s not a party here, so I will.disregard
it -- and their over-all conclusion was that in almost
every lmportant respect the field sequentlal sjétem meets
the criteria and that in almost every iuwportant respect the
dot sequential system does not meet the criteria.

The findings and conclusions with respect to that are
all set out in pages 8 to 23 of our brief; which obviousiy I
do not have to take up seriatim, but your Honors will find
them all there with the record references sustaining the
findings.

Their conclusions, for example, as toc the RCA system -~
I call 1t that, it is the dot sequential system which they

proposed -- their conclusions are sobt forth in the reports.

First of all, its color fidelity is not satisfactory.
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That means if they are broadcasting a red sweater, it does
npot appear as a red sweater, it 1s not faithful to the color.
They further went and sald there 1s no reasonable prospect
of overcoming this difficulty. The reason they said there is
no reasonable prospect of overcoming this difficulty -- and
it is all in the findings -- 1s that, one, there is mis-
registration. That means these three tubes do not hit.
Two,_the principle of mixed higha as used is fundamental
tc the RCA system.
I nmust take a word %o explain what that is. You see,
we have four megacycles of the six in which to broadcast
video and two megacycles to broadcast sound. So what you
get on your television is four megacycles of sight and two
ﬁegacycles of sound, and a 11ttie bit to take care of thé
next channel.
What the‘RCA gystem does, because they insist on
keeping the 525, they insist on that, so what they have
to do in order to crowd everything into this four megacycles;

they have adopted something called +the mixed highs., which

means that thelr contentlon is that the human eye does not
see the finé detall of color, it only sees the coarse detail
of color; therefore, they do not send four megacycles of
color out, they only send two megacycles of color, and then

they send two megacycles of gray, mixed highs, mixed black

and mixed white, and that is gray, and that goes out in two
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megacycles and two megacycles of color, and these combine and

| producé what they call a color and what the Commission saild

is ﬁot a faithful color.

Thén thé Commission found that no reasonable prospect
of overcoming color infidelity existed bécause of 2ross-
talk. A Cross-talk, I must® explain, is the diffusion of a
red dot over into a blue dot or a green dot into a red dot,
something which the Commission found happens in the dot
sequentlal system.

Above ail, they said they do not think this difficulty
will eyer be overcome in a normal home receiver vecause of this
terrific switching rate of 11,000,000 times per second.

Justice Black: Haven'!t more impossible things than
that happened? )

Mr. Rosenman: The Commission, sir, charged with
determining whether they would be willing now to authorize
anyone to transmit a dot sequential system, 1t seems to me,
sir, had to declde whether or not this would be hurtful
to the public to permilt -~-

Justice Black: You are talking about now. But 1f the
order goes far enough to do something which precludes it
so thaf we wlll never do it, 1t glves me pause.

Mr . Rosenman: The second order, sSlr, dees not do that.

The gecond order says very d¢lstinetly it 1s not Toreclosing

all systens forever. It 1s foreclosing the dot sequentlal
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-gystem as of now, because of these difficulties that I
’refer.t§; but I think it was your Honor who called Judge
Rifkinds attention to page 420, the statement in the second
report; 420 of the record, where the Commission said that
when such improvement does come along ~- That means a system
which works, another system which works -- the Commisslon can
not refuse to consider it merely because the owners of
existing receivers might be compelled to spend additional money
to continue recelving programs.

In other words, the Commlission, although it said that
the RCA system would be hurtiul to'the public -- and, 1f your
Honor please, I want to call your Honor's attention to that
specific finding, because both Judge Ri;kind and Mr. Cahill
denied that there was such a finding -- if you will look at
the record page 159, you will find a direct finding that
"to permit the dot sequential system to be broadcast -- in
the first piace;71t says in paragraph 132 there on page 159:

"The RCA system also falls short of the criteria
set forth above. In the first place, the color
f1deliby of the RCA plcture is not satisfactory, and

1% would obvicusly not be in the publié interest to

adopt as standard a color system which does not produce

a satisfactory color piciture."”

That 1s what they found happens in the dot sequential

system.
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The Chief Justice: dJust below that they have these words:

"There appears to be no reagonable prospect that these
difficulties of the RCA system can be overcome -- mis-
regisbtration, mixed highs, cross-talk between picture
elements" --
~and then your 1/11,000,000th.

Justice Frankfurter: Do you think such a statement is
in the domain of expertise, not inthe light of what I know
about it, but I know enough of the history of sclence to know
thatAsgience is the achlevement of the impossible.

Mr. Rosenman: But certainly, your Honor, 1s 1% not
enough to warrant the Commission in refusing to permit the
dot sequentilal system to be broadcast as of now? I think what
they -=

Justice Frankfurter: If there 1s tle establishment of
harm in doing so, but not merely because today 1t is a still
unrealized thing.

Mr. Rosemman: The establishment of harm, your Hoﬁor -
and T wlll come %o that now ~-- the establishment of harm 1s
that if I know, as a citizen of the Tnited States, that the
Federal Communications fCommission of the United States has
authorized the broadeasting of the ddt seqqential systen,

I certainly am entitled}to rely uvupon thoh authorization to go
out and buy me a color sct uhlch would receive RCA color.

Now;the Commission has found that it would not be in the
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ubllc infterest to permit that because as of now a very un-

satisfacbory picture 18 presented and not only is an unsatis-
factory plcture prease wed; but all of the other inadequacies
of the RCA system wonld prevaill, |

For example -- well, one example, as yet there is no
assurance, as the Commlasion found, that an RCA system can go
- over the coaxial cable. That would be a huvrt to.the publie.
If the_public bough®t a color set thinking that this will
produce a color picture and it does not produce a color
picture, that would be a hurt to the public.
If, 2s a matter of fact, it is found, as 1t was by the
icommission, that this color system is susceptible to osecillator
t‘rar..i:’u':ﬂ:ion, that 1t loses color as a resnlt of 1%, 1t seems to
me that 1t is against the public interest for the Commission
to pérmit it.
Justice Frankfurter: You mean that the Cormisslonis
authorization is a kind of representation of desirabilit;?
Mr. Rosenman: I do not think it has to go that far,
s8ir, but if I ¥mow that the Federal Communications Commission
has authorized an RCA color, and I read that an RCA =olor set
is around for me to buy, I am led to buy it on the repre-
sentatlon that what I am going tn get is nmy moneyts worth.
Juatice Frankfurter: I& all depends on whatﬂrepresenta-

tions are made by public azenciles. It all depends on what

- overbslancing, if any, congideratlions there are in closing %he
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door to quick unéxpected results of experimentation which may

be balked because you have built up vested interests in

_denying the right to make those experiments.

Mr. Rosemman: I do not think, sir, that the door has been
foreclosed.

Justice Frankiurter: Practicall& it happens.

Me. Rosenman: In what way?

Justice PFrankfurter: In creating financial interests of
too great an importance to allow future perpissionSeto do
experimentation, to conduct new experimeﬁts.

Mr. Rosenman: I% has sald that if experimentation were
to continue and if a satisfactory result were tc be produced,
that it would not hesitate to validate ana authorize that
satisfactory result merely because it would cause an additional
expensé.

Justice Frankfurter: I do not think men can leglaslate

against the weight and momentum of existing interests. The

industry would not be affected by 1%,

Mr. Rosenman: So far as the law 1s concerned, your

Honor, with respect to multiple standards, we contend -- I

might point out another difficulty wlth the RCA gystem, and it

i1s very pertinent here In respect to your Honoris statement about
the Xefauver Committee. Mr. Cahlll talked abqut broadcasting

the proceedings of the‘Rbinuver Committee in color. The

fact is that it Just conld no% happen hHecause the Commission has
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"peld in its finding that they have no field camera which can

~do 1%, and by a fleld camera I mean a camera that can be taken
from the studio into a hearing room of the United States
Senate and installed there.

The RCA system never showed a f{ield camera and the reason
they did not show a field camera 1s because of the complexity
of the field camera with these three tubes. They have never
been able to develop a camera whlich they could take out into the
field and subject to the rough handling which a camera gets
there.

On the other hand, in the demonstrations CBS showed a foot-
béll game by taklng a camera -- or a bazeball game -~ by taking
a camera to an athletic field and broadcasting it in color,

That i1s another reason why the public would be hurt if
they were permitted, if representations were made that this
RCA color system 1s something good enough for the American
public and they bought RCA receivers; so far as this present
record goes, they could not get a baseball game, They could
not get.the Kefauver Comlittee. All they could get in such
form as the Commission found was an unfaithful plcture, not
good color fidelity, all of the dot sgtructure and all of the
defects; they could only get it from the studlo, and that

is another reason why I contend that the Commisslion was

certainly within the amblt of its discretion and jurisdiction and
statubory authority in saying that "We will permit the field
sequential system and not the dot sgequential system."
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Justice Black: May I ask é guegtion? Suppose the Com~
mission had before it three systems, all of which cculd glve
colof to some extent. There 1s g difference in their quality.
Do you think the Commlission has authority merely by reazon of
a difference In the quallty of the color pilcture uo select
one and glve 1t a monopoly over the others?

Mr, Rosenman: I will say, sir --

Justice Black: I will get away from the word "monopoly®.
I did not mean to say that.

Mr., Rosenman: I would say, sir, if it hag ==~

Justice Black: The right to use it exclusively.

Mr, Rosenman: When you say the right to use it ex-
clusively, you understand that the right 1s not given to CBS
to use 1t exclusively.

Justice Black: I understand that, but does it have the
power to select from different gquality machinegs or machinery,
equipment, and say thils one only can be used?

Mr, Rosenmun: 7That 1g exactly what 1t has dune; Your
Honor, in black and white. There is one set of standérds
that anybody can brogdeast in in black and white,., That is
525 lines, 60 flelds, 30 frames.

Justice Black: Now here is what I meant. Sippose some~
body found, suppose twd Or three other people found you can

get black and white without following those standards and

provide others about which there might be a dispute as to




whether they were equal in quality. Could they continue to
xeep them out of this field?

Mf. Rosenman: I think they could, Your Honor, uander
theilr statutory -

Justlece Black: Maybe they could.

Mr. Rosenman: -~ under thelr statutory authority of pre-
scribing the nature of the service to be rendered by each class
of llcensged statlon, to regulate the kind of apparatus tou be
used with respect to its externsl effects. They have done
this ever since the Commission was started and its predecesgaor
in 1926. They have always consistently and without deviation
adopted the rule that for any one service there should be
. set of standards; and the reason is that to do anything
2 else would be chaotic,

Let us assﬁme, sir, that both of these color systems
vere on the éir. RCA, the dot sequential; CBS, the field
y . sequentigl.

You go down to Woodward and Lothrop to buy a receiver,
and they will say to you, Justlce Black, "Do you want a re-
-ceiver that wlll take RCA'broadcasts or one that wiil take
CBS broadecasts?”

I am sure you will be aghast at that because you are
used to going in and getting a black and wnlte receiver which

will take them all, take CBS, take RCA, take DuMont, which

will take eight or nine of these different stations.
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Now for the first time they are urging that this Com-
missioin deviate from this long consigtent historical practice
of providing for one set of standards for one service, as they
do in radio, as they do in AM radilo, as they do iu FM radlo,
as they do in bilack and white television.

They are asking the Commission for the first time to
deviate from that long practiée of making sure that if any~-
body goes Intc a stere to buy a radio, they willl get every
radio station, or goes In %o buy & black and white television,
they will get black and white television from sny station.

Now they say if you go in to buy a color television, for
the first time since 1926, you are going to have to go in and
make up your mind whether you want to get a CBS color tele-
vision or an RCA color television receiver.

Now the Condon Committee discussed this. This 1s the
group of sclentists that M, Cohlll was talking about. They
made it very clear -- they studied what happened la other
countries -~ they made it very clear. This is what they said:

"Any authorization of color television transmission on
a multiple standard basls 1s a guarantee of confusicun that
may well impose a much greater delay in the devslopment of
the color telévision service.”

Ivshould add that everybody who testified bvefore the

Commigsion testifled in favor of a single standard rather

than multiple standards.
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It never was before the Commission below. The only pos-
sible exception was the Chairman of the Board 6f the RCA, and
he éaid something which I thought at first he intended to mean
as facetlousness bﬁt which 1s now brought into this record in
e the éupreme Court.

He said, "I believe 1n s1ng1e standards. That is the
best way to promote research because you will get a healthy
industry."”

But then he sald:

Y "If you are going to adopt CBS, the fleld sequential
system, then I believe In multiple standards; you should
also adopt RCA."

But the record is very cleawa- and we have it In our
briefs here «- he said:

"If you are going to adopt RCA, then for heaven’s sake,

dontt adopt another system hecause then you will have mul-

tiple standards with all of the confusion which that results
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Justice Reed: I was interested in that phase of the
argument before. Did the Commission take up and consider
the questlon of multlple standards?

Mr. Rosenman: They took i1t up to this extent, your Honor:

They said == they certainly said that 1t would be against

public interest to adopt, permit the RCA standards to be
transmitted.

Justice Reed: Well, I understand that, but that is becausec.
as I understand it, they did not think the RCA could Then
furnish adeguate broadecasting for the public use..

Mr. Roserman: That is right.

Justlce Reed: But now my inquiry ls different. Did the
Commission conslder whethex or not it would be in the puklic
interest to have multiple standar§s of color broadcasting?

Mr. Rosenman: They did not, your Honor, and wmay I suggest
at least three reasocnt why they did not. '

The first one 1s that no one never propoged 1%, The
testimony was unanimously against it, except this straﬁge
testiuwony I have Just referred to.

In the second placz, when proposed findlngs and 2onclusions
were submitted to the Commission at the end of the hearings,
no one suggested muliiple standards. Cur proposed findings
were that CBS be adopted as the only system that worked. The

RCA findings were that the RCA system be adopted.

No one sugzestad ginat they both be adopted, aud haw <cocula
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we expect this Commission which, 1in the flrst place, said that
o  the RCA would not, could not, in the public interest be authorized%
| u-,hu% could we expect the Commission to make a spzeifiec finding J
discussing multiple standards when no one suggested 1%, either
at the hearing or in the findings which followed it, when no
one teétified for 1t, where there was practically, with this
one exception, universal testimony against it?

Justice Reed: I understand your argument now to be that
should tﬁe RCA develop a broadeasting dot system that would be
usable, then the Commission would have authority to immediately
1ssue multiple standards,

Mr. Rosenman: I would not go that far, sir.. I say, first,
the question does not arise.

Justice Reed: At least they would have authorlty to.

Mr. Rosenman: If they would -~ and I am not prepa?ed to
Say they would not have authorlty -~ they would be doing some=~
thing for the first time in their 25 years of exiitence, of
having a gituation where on one service -~ on one servigce «-
there were more than one standard of transmission.

Justice Reed: Wny do you say one service?

Mr. Rosenman: Well, because color television ie the one
service.

Justice Reed: That ;s one service to 1tself?

Mr. Rosenman: Yes, sir. |

Justice Reed: Even though you might have 525 on one and

ol her o the cthen?
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Mr. Rosenman: Well, there would stlll be color. You see
the color plcture you would be interested in, and if you want t
get color 1t would lead to the confusion and chaos that is
mentioned by the Condon Committee, 1f you had to make up your
mind which statlion you are going to listen to, to get a cclor
plcture, if you had to make up your mind whether you would
listen to Station 1, 2, or 3, and 1f you know they are broad-
cast;ng the line sequential system, you will get -me receiver,
and if you know they are broadcasting the dot seguential
system, you wilill get another receiver, because thare was no
testimony that 1t was possible to get a unlversal recelver
which would take both RCA and CBS.

Justice Reedé I have to make up my mind every night
whether I tune in one commentator or another.

Mr. Rogsenman: Yes, sir, but you have the pawer to turn

on any one you want just by changlng the knob, but if you had

. multiple standards for color and you wanted to get somebody

that was broadecasting on CBS color, you would use this
machine, but if you wanted to get someone who was broadcasting
on RCA color, you would have to go over and use ancther wmachin:
The same machlne would not get bovh colors. It eouldfnot,
because they transmli on different standards.

I might add one other thing to explain why there was no
finding below, there was no discussion before the Commlssion

wlith respect to multinle standards, which was, as I am inforqzi
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conclusions which were submitted to the Commission, CBS
explicltly recommended against multiple standards.

It had in 1ts proposed findings and conclusions a definite
recommendation agalnst wmultiple standards.

When RCA replied to those proposed conclusions, they %took
no exception to that, whicha would seem to indicate that they
agreed with that below.

It was only after thé second report, when they r2alized
that the field sequential system had been adopted and it was
only when we got intc the District Court in Chicagc that for
the first time, much to everybody's surprise, RCA advanced
for the first time the argunent tgat two systems should be
allowed to broadcast on the same service.

If you allow two, you would necessarily allow thi’ee and
four, so that there would be an unlimited number o pzople
broadcasting in color; so that you would have to make up your
mind, and unfortunately 1t would not be you, sir, who would
make up your mind. I: would be the set! manufacturer, because
the set manufacturer would decide whether he would nake sets
to take CBS color or RCA color or ABC color or DEF 20lor, or
any number of systems, and it certalnly cannot be resasonably

suggested that thls Commission must, as soon as a satisfactory

color system 1s presented -- must, of necessity, allow everybody

to broadcast in a different color system, different color

standard, sc that acdudy who had a color recelver can gev theuw

ali, but wubke DU oty &8 o unluh he A ool %o

-
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Justice PFrankfuarter: J@dge Rosenman, since it sometimes
happens that the odd man determines the decision here, I should
like to tell you what troubles me about this cas® because we
are going over untii tomorrow.

I think it is falpr to say that nobody on this Court
pelieves more deeply thanr I do or has tried t¢ bz more con-
sigtent in deferrirvg Lo the discretionary Judgment of adminis-
trative agenciles then Y have -- 1 think in this very industry .-
I éid'thaﬁ to such an extent that there were eveir grievances
in the industry sbout my deference to the Communications
Commission, which you are now seeking to support -~ ﬁut I thing
it is very lmportans Lo determine in & field 1lik: thls what
the field of expertise is.

let me be very speclfic: Judge Major referi to the
Condon Committen report, which I have not read bat shall rcead
in view of the authority, in view of the membership of the
Conmission.

Now, Judge Major says that in that report filed'on July
10, about two months after the Commission?s proceedings closed,
that report already controverted some of ;he findings of the
Commission and placsd a different estimate wpon the materials
that were before the Commission; and I assume, for all I know.
may have had some new data.

Before thls order was issued suggestians'were made to The

Commission for further consideration of data.
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§ What I should like to have you deal with at asome time
before you conclude your argument, or the Solicitor General in
the division of timwe, is Just what my respousiblliity -- and I
speak of myself decause that is the only vote that I finmally
have to cast -- what my responglbllity is in a field thet
necessarily is as revolutionary, &s uncharted, as sudden, as
shifting so quickly. in such an unexpected, almost (uantum
theory way as thils field; and I do not think for myself 1 can
foreclose it by saying these seven members of the Commission
know better than I do.

What L want to imow is what do they know beitier than Y do.
What are they charged wlth that that leaves their word to be
the final word? |

I would like to add one more thing: This ralses very
profound questions, namely, to what extent sclentific develop-
ment, technological develoﬁment, of this extraordinary charactc:
can be foreclosed from judicial review by the say-so of people
who, after all, are not themselves experts in this particular
field, although they have been entrusted with prinary respongi-
bllity, and as to which thefe is no expertise.

As Justice Black suggested, who would have m:zde some of

the forecasts of ithe things that have happened in tke last 10

Yyears compared to the progress made a year before, six monbths

before, sometimes three months hHefore the happening?

Mr. Rosenman. Shouvld I start answering thet now?
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Justice Frankfurier. Sult yourself. I Jjust want it
before you. Those are very serious questions.

Justice Douvglas. There is one cuestion I have, and since
the time is getting to the close, you may answer my question
tomorrow. That 1s the scope of review.

This case was dacided by the court below bhefore the
Universal Camera caie was declded here --

Mr. Rosenman. Yeis, sir.

Justice Douglas. -- and Judge Major!s opinion -- it strucy
me he is looking for 2 little bit of eviéence rather than for
substantial evidence in the sense in which Universal Camera
uses 1t; whether or not the Administrative Procecure Act is
applicable to a three-Jjudge court, whether or not we should
do it if he did not do 1it, whether or not we should send it
back for him to do it in case he did not do it.

Those are some of the things that bother me.

Mr. Rosenman., All »ight. That is covered in ocur brief.
I will be very glad to take it vp tomorrow. Shail we' do that
tomorrow?

The Chief Justlce. Yes.

(Whereupon, at 4330 otelock p.m., the Court :recessed; to

reconvene at 12:00 olclock noon, Tuesday, March 27, 1951.)
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QCEERINGS

The Chief J‘ustﬂ.c;e: Fo. 565, Radio Corporatfon of Amer!ca,
Na*ciorjal Broadcasting Company, and others, versus the United
States of America and the Federal Commun®cations Commission.

The Clerk: Counsel are present.

The Chief Justice: 3udge Rogerman, yesterday there was &
notion filed for an extension of the stay that had been gran*aeé
by the District Court, and a stay pending the 1ssuance of the
mandate of this Court may be entered.

ARGUMENT ON BEHALF OF APPELLEE COLUMBIA BROADCASTING SYSTEM
By Mr. Rosemman w- Resumed -

Mr. Rosenman: May I, Mr. Chlef J’ustice, befoz'e proceed‘lnr
to answer the two questions, take a second to correct a mjs-
statement in my remarks of yesterday, which has been called
to my attention.

I stated that after the Commission had latd dovn these
criteria, they lald the two systems alongs? de those cri teria,
and my misstatement was with respect to the RCA sygtem -~ they
found that with respect to the CBS system, they found ¢n almosv
every important respect 1% complied with the criteria. That
was not only a misstatement, it was an understatement.

What they found was that in every respect the CBS system,
the line sequent.ial system, met with these criteria.

Turning to the guestion that Mr. Justice Frankfurter

directed to me at the close of the session yesterday, as I




undersband the question it involves The relationship between

a Jusﬁiée of this Court and an administrative agency, where the
administrative agency has made a flat statement or has taken
actlon on the assumption that in a rapidly changing scientific
milien that a compatible system, or that a certain thing can
never happen, and I should say, sir, in dﬁreét answer to that,
that if, as a matter of fact, that 1s what the ageney has held,
that in a scientific development somethihg will never happén,
or if the agency took action on such an assuﬁption, I shounld
say that in such g situation, a Justice of th's Court might
find, under such circumstances, tﬁat'that has been an abuse cf
diseretiong that that has been‘arbgtrary and capri cious.

I should polnt ou%t, however, that {n this situation none
of those things has happened. - There was no such find'ng; there
wag no assumption as the basis »f any éctﬂon, and there was no
necessity of any such fMnding under any circumstances.

What the Commisslon did here was not to state that a cch
patible system would never happen and could never work; they
had before them two‘compatible systems, the dot seéuential
system of RCA, and the line sequential system of CTI.

They examined thbse gystems; they saw them demonstrated:
~ they hesrd testimony sbout them, and they made a judgment as
to whether such gystems were satisfactory or were not sattsface

tory, and they also made a judgment that 1f they were not sat’u-

’ 2ePey ety & S - et gy s o - 2 . o e » -~
Lactory, 2 whoyy sc forad, thoy vade a judpuent as te vhether
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there was any assurance of thelr becoming satﬁsfactory'wﬂfhﬁn
any reasongsble foreseeable time.

Take, for example, the all important question of éolor
fidelity, the question as to whether when the United States
fléglis telecast the image which you see om your recelver beari
an accurate resemblance to the flag.

What they salid after exanining all the @' fficulties
sufrounding the transmission of falthful color by the dot
sequential gystem, what they‘éaid was not that a compatibvle
system could never have color fideltty, but they. spoke very
explicitly and vith.nigetyk at papge 159 of the record, they
séid, after analyzing the difficulties:

“There appears to be no reasonable prospect that
these difficuliies in the RCA system can be overcome
because of misrezistration, mixed highs, cross tallk,
criticalneas of color control, implicit in a system
vhere a time errbr of 1/11,000,000 of a second results
in color contamination."

Wow, they did the seame thing with the other 'mportant
performance characteristics; so that I urge, slr, that this g
not a case where an administrative agency has made a flat pre-

diction for the future based upon unknowms of the present.
In my opinion, what it did was to make an examination and

analysis. of kmown principles, and things which they saw with

their own eyes in order to determine what the reasonable
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prospects of that systew were in'the fubure. And that, I urge,
is the typicael kind of Judgment which many admintstrative
agencies make every day ih Passing upon facts presented to thew
to determine what reasonably is going %o hapi)en 1n..'.the future; A
and ag to those findings we urge that this Court should give’
' the administrative agency and 1ts conclusions particular welght.

- Ir»m:lgh'b, perhaps, in a homely analogy try to draw the
dii‘fe_rence 'betweeﬁ ﬁhat the question of Mr. Jus.t#ce Frankfurter.
and thé doubts of Mr. Justice Black, expressed yesterday, were,
and what, in Im',y view, the Comm’ssion has done.

I would say, sﬁfrs_.._ that all of you .are equally expert

with any sport eritic in the world as to who 18 gotng to win'
the pennant in 1970 or 1980, but I think that with respect to
who is going to win the pemnant in 1951, sports writers and
sports critics who go to every game and who watch the per-
formance before them of the different éeams, and who look at the
past performances of those teams, are in a betier position %o
predict the reasonable prospect of who I8 going to win the
pennant or at least a reasonable prospeat of who 1s not going o
win the pennant in 1951. | '

. The Chief Justlces OFf course, you may be on weak ground
in that analogy.

(L.aughter)

Mr. Rosenman; Xnowing Your Honor's past expertence with

bhagehall, and rresont csperience witk: bageball, I shovld say,
-]
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gir, that even if Your Honor considered yourself as equally
adept in prognosticating pennant winners or pemnant losers 1n
1951, that the tradltional relationship between the agen;y

and thls Court would lead Your Honor, perhaps, to defer to the
Judgment of the ecritic just as I think Your Honor should not
defer to the judgment of the administrative agen;y, but to say
that that is the peculliar function of the agency, and that -
Your Honor will not seek to interfere wifh the conélus*on which
the agency has reached.

The Chief Justice: Which erities? I am just fearful thatb
if we get into that field, with the different v1eﬁpo#nts‘that
would be expressed by the critics, that we might be even more
confused.

Mr. Rosenman: Well, in this situation before the Commissicy
there wvas testimony on both sides. The Commission looked ab
the testimony -~ the Commission itself, the Comm!szs’oners them-
selves -- being not expert technicians themselves, and relied
upon one Bet of critice rather than ﬁpon another set of crttvica:
and in answer to Justice Frankfurter and to Mr. Justice Black,
we think -~ I think -- that in such a situation this Court has
no responsibility to overturn the judgment of the Comm'ssion
based upon that conflict of the evidence, but should allow such
a detefmination to stand.

Justice Jackson: Your position is that we do not need tc

understand the case in order to decide 1%,




142

Mr. Rosenuian: Wot exactly, sirg any more than, I am

Bure, you understand the baseball game when you go to it.
Justice Jackson: I am hoping that éould be established.
(Laughter)

- -

M. Rosenmah§ I think that 1n a technical demonstration
and a technlcal case such as this, that as long as the
Commission has not said that never, never will a.;ompat4b1e
system vork, that the polloy announced by the Commission and
the judgment meet the traditional orthodox test. of adm! nd gtra-
tive agency finding, to which I urgé this cdurt should gﬂvg the
usual normai respect. | | _

Justice Frankfurier: I suggest thls may be a's1tda§10n
where one of Justice Holmes! favorite observat!ons appl;es'
when he saié, %I don't know.the factas; 1 merély understand
thelr significance.“~ -

Mr. Rosenman: I was thinking >f another statement of
Justice Hdlﬁes, with which Your Honor has had some relat?onshii,
~that in a technical thing like this, the Commission, or the
aiministrative agency, should have 1its experts on tap rather
than on top; and we think, sir, that in this case the admiwnis-
trati#e agency did have 1ts experts on tap, and came to a -
;on;1u81on vhich, on the evidence, fhis Court should not find

arbitrary or capriciouns.

A part of Justice Ffankfurter‘s question involved the

Condon peport, ond wey 1 gtate very briefly scuething abeunt
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that Condon report, because I think 1t i1s necessary to a complete
answer to your quesition.

: i think your question, sir, inferred and 1ndticated that
the report itself cast some doubt on the éonelus*ons rea;hed
by the Commission because of some of the new developments whiéh
gppeared in 1t a:ter the hearing record had been élosed.

That, sir, is not the fact. The fact 1s that the Condon
Commaittee, which wag appointed by Senator Johnson before thesme
hearings started, and indeed before the Commisston announced
that 1t waé going to have these hearings by formal notjice, was
appointed by Senator Johnson for the purpose of making an
evaluation of the three gystems, and repbrt1ng to Senator
Johnson something about them, because at that time thé
Commission had refused to authorize any color standards..

It turned down the CBS application in 1947, and although
there had been agitation for color in the three years or two
and a half years following that, the Commission had done nothing
gbout 1t; and Senator Johnson, in whose jurﬁsd*ct*?n these
matters are, so far as the leglslative process is concérneé,
was anxious to find out what he could about color television
because he thought that color television ought to be given to
ﬁhe American public.

So, he appointed -- he asked Mr. Condon to organize a

committee of experts in order to evaluate these systems. And

when Your Honors come to read the Condon report you will see
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that by 1vs very terms 1t states that that s {ts lim!ted
function;.that 1t has no function to mske any recommendat’ons

as to which system should be adopted, and that it has no functis:
to give any weight t0 various social and economtc problews,

such as what the cost of the aifferent recelvers would be, hoy
long itlwoula %aké to develop.a recetver whjch could Hake éolor,
how long 1% would teke to Aevelop a transm) tti ng systen.

They specifically, by thelr own terms, precluded any
consideration by them of those factoré; épd tﬁird{ and most
important, they stated in specific language, which 15 called
to your abttentlon im our brief, that in their cons*deratﬁén cf
these three systems they were only going by the demonstrat! ony
which they saw, and also by.the arguments, by. the theor! es made
by the proponents of each system.

In other words, as they evaluvate each system they say
“These éoncluslons are bhased upon the demonstration of thtgm
system and also by vhat 1%s proponents tell us."

In no event d1@ they examine the cr*t*na? analygsig nf ear
system made by the proponents of other gsystems, so.that sc Far
as the Condon report 18 concerned, 1t does not have any analyst.
of. these claims; tut solely what the proponents of each par-

ticular system submitited with respeet to its own system.

o mee% your question, sir, sbout the fact that 1t pre-

sented developments which were shown or'uh#ch were created

aftter the clcose of the boering, 1% creeifeslly stated that 4
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considered only thing which had becn developed up to May 1;
80 that so far as the Condon Committee was éoncerned, 18
recbrd was closed at the time that the Comission's reéord way
closed, with one minor exception, on¢ demonstration of the
Hézeltine syatam..

Justice Frankiurters D1d the pelttfoner maske offer of
further proof before the order was isaied?

Mr. Rosenman: It 4ld not, sir.

What 1t 414 was, on October %4, after»ﬁt had become spparcrs
%o anyone with knowledge n the 1ndustry that the 1'mne sequentiy:
sysfem wag going %o be approved -~ I am sorry, that the fleld
sequential system was going to be approved because bracket
standards, which has not yet been explained fully to Your
Honors ~~ I have not had the time -~ but beéause bracket stand-

ards could not be adopted by the 1ndustry, 1n response to the

Invitation of the Commission, when i1t had become clear. that

bracket standards could not be adopted, so that, In fact, the
field sequentlal system was going to be adopted, as the |
Commission in its first repért sa*é 1t would be, *f bracket
standards could not be adopted, then and thea only, for the
first time, on Octcber 4, the appellants here, RCA, subm'tted
a petition that was 8ix days before the ' nal concluston, the
seéond order -~ presented a petition to-the Comm?!ss’on, which

I agk Your Honor to look at, a petlition congsisting of two papes,

1n the record, and 1% 13 on page 408 of the record; that




146

petition did not In 1ts terms ask that the record be immediately
reopened. It did not say: |
™e have something %o show you, Mr. Commission,

which we ﬁould like you to get today."

If you will look at page 408 of the record you will see
that what RCA is asking the Coumission to do are two things -
this is October 4 == 1% 18 asking them to wa't two months, two
nore mqnths; to wit, on Decewber 5, and look at some Improvemenit:
"which we claim we have made," and then 1t goes further in B,
and it says, "After you have done that, then we ésk you to wa't
8ix more months to June 30, i951, and during those six months,
we ask you %o look at some more demonstrations of these three
sggfems," and them, quite obviously, after those demonstrat?ous
vere concluded, there 18 implicit in here some gstatement -~ ﬁhe9u
is explicit in here something to the effect that hear'ngs would
have to be had even after Juﬁe 30, 1951{ in order %o have testi-
mony about these demonstrations. | |

So what the Commission was be%ng petitioned here was not,
"™fe want to show you something right now of what we have done,
%o show you how wrong you were," but % 1s ask*ng to wa't for
another eight months, and they asked thém‘to wa't for another
- eight months, so that =~ 1f you will loék ét tﬁé last paragrapi,
by June 30, "We will show that theAlaboratory apparatus which

RCA has heretofore demonstrated has been brought to fruition n

1

. > Ty J- : - y Jee K s PRI 2% 3
g eomzerceial, fully coupebible and alli-elecimwonte,” and go fonii.
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In other words, what they sald was, "If you will do all
these things, then we promise you that by June 30 we will have
a vbrkdble system."

Now, the fact 1s, as the record shows and as our brief
points out, they:had made this same proﬁ*se back 1n 1949 vhen
these hearings started. They sa'd that, "We have now a systen
which will work," and after 19%9 had gone by, and 1950, and
Just on the evidence of decision, they come to the Conrmission
and 82y, "If you will give us eight months more, we prom!se thui
on June 30, 1951, we will have what we prom*sed you *n 1949 we
already have."

Justice Frankfurter: What is the reference toc that monthic

period between Decewber 5, and Jamuary 5 referred to by the

majority on page 4097

Mr. Rosenman: Page what?
.k Justice Frankfurter: Page 409. They suggested a month
i from December 5 to January 5, that period referred to by the
majority. What is that? Get the record, please.

Mr. Rosemman: That period was the suggestion wh'ch was

made by the Commission in its first report that *f bracket
standards ave adopted so that the problem of compat'btlity w'll
be contained -- in other words, 1f we can be assured now that

'3 ‘ bracket standards will be adopted so that every new set that goes

out -~ and there were 900,000 going out every month -~ 4f we cau

be asggured that as these 900,000 go out every month they do netd
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increase the incompatibillty problem, 1f a gadget can be put

in there so that we will lmow that when CBS' system, the

field sgquential system, is Pinally adqpted-that those recelver:
will recelve black and vhite, 1f you can assure us of that,
then we are willing to look at certaln iuprovements between
December 5 and January 5. That 1s wvhat they satd.

Justice Frankfurters"Well, in the opening pet!tion, *f
that is what it 1s, on page %08, ROA petitions the Comm'ssion,
A, "buring the period December 5, 1950, to Janmuary 5, 1951, to
review the improvements made in the performance of the RCA
gysten."

Now, I follov.you when you say'they'made.a previous proffei
that there had been improvemeﬁts s but there certatnly *s a

speclfic statement thgt'ﬁhey are ready to show the Commission

the improvements made just for one month, s that not r*éht?

Mr. Rosenman: That 18 right, yes.

¥§  Remember that December 5 1s two months from the date of
'éﬁ;- this petition. There are 900,000 receivers going out every

month, which means that if the Commlssion watted to December 5,

the incompatibility problem would have been increased by

1,800,000 receivers.

,Qfﬂ | The Commission had to determine *n 1%s own d'scretion, s

1% going to walt for two months and then for six months more,

‘and then for wvhatever is required in the hearings, wh'le the

300,000 are zodng ovb overy month? Was 11 reasonakle for the

d Loy
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Commission to say:

"We will not walt for that unless we can do some-
thing to hold on to this bird 1n the hand that we have.
We have a bird in hand now, a system uh*éh works, which
produces a satisfactory picture. Are we g§ ng to let
tha? bird go by the very welght of the reéeﬁvers,“
which was the wvery language of the Comm?'sston -- "the
verw'weight of the number of the recelvers wh'ch get
out into the public each month, 900,0007? We w'll let
the bird In the hand go," sald the Commission, ™ ¢ we
look for the two birds-in the bush, and unless we can
£ind some way of holding on to that bird" -~ and that one
way was by bracket standards, which would have éonta*ned
the incompétibility'problem -~ "unless we can do that,
we will not walt any longer, because® -~ and 1% enumerste:
its reasons in its denial of the motion, which 18 on page
10 of the record.

It goes into the fact that there has been ample opporiuntty

to be heard, and that new 1mproveménts are occurying every weel:,

and they find that the question of approving a color televizicn
system whlch will best serve the Tnterests of the Amer?!can peopic
i8 one whlch has been before the Commission Por alwost ten yesaw:.
There must come sometime wheén the administrative process comes

%o an end, and the Comm!'ssion determine, 'n view of the history

af thig, and in vicy -~ a7 e potat cut in ouy brief «- of many
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broken promises by RCA, promises about a fleld camera, promises
about a converter, promises about fleld testing 1ts system «-
all bf.which promises were broken -- and they are deta’led, ali
detailed, in our brief ~~ 80 we urge that the Commission was
gbsolutely righi,not only d'd 1t not violate or abuse *ts dtg-
cretion, but we think a contrary view might even have been an
abuse of discretion, because of this long history of broken
promises. | |

It sald, "We will bring an end to these proceedings, and
we will enbter our order."

Justice Reed: What if they had pneséﬁted some ev!dence
or statement as to some new dﬁscoﬁery; woﬁld the Commisefon havs
been justified in closing 1% anyway because 1t came too late,
this discovery?

Mr. Rosenman: You mean 1f on December 5 they could have -

Justice Reed: Yes -~ or no, whenever they filed this
petition.

Justice Frankfurter: October X4.

Justice Reed: October .,

Mr. Rosenman: If they had presented a new lmprovement
vhich had éhoﬁn e

:Justiee Reed: ﬁhich thej gatd showed -=- '

Mr. Roaeﬁman: ‘(Continuing) -= and the Comn?sston had found
after 1t was seen --

Justice Reed: Wo. As I understand 1t, the Commission had
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before 1t this petitlon, and immedlately closed the matter and
said, "We will not listen any more."

Mr. Rogsenman: I think, s'r, the Commission was justified
in that, in view of the eircumstances --

Justice Reed: Tes.

Mr. Rosenman: (Continuing) -~ 1n view of the c¢ircumstances
of what had transpired before this petition, nsmely, a long
series_of similar representafions by RCA wh'ch never mater’alizd:
the fact that the industry had made 1t clear that @he i ncom-
patibillity problen could not be contained, and the fact that
they now had a satisfactory sﬁstem which, *f they vﬁntjnued to
take chancegﬁon whether a compatible system would wofk, that
the incompaéible systen i1{self would have been ‘mpossible of
adoption because, as they say, the time sometimes éomeg when

eventually there are so many receivers out in the hands of the

public that 1t is 1mpossible to do énything about 3t.

Justice Reed: Yes, sir. But that was not quite what I
wanted your comments on.

Yhat 1f the RCA had proposed and had stated that they had
made a significant discovery since the Cowuisston closed, or

significant progress. Would the Commission have been justificd

in closing the hearing and entering thelr order?

. 1

Mr. Rosenman: Perhaps not, 1f anyth'ng like that had been

submitted to the Commlission. There was no such thing.

Juatlee Hoeds Well, wnow, 1u congldering the motion on
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petition, we also have to consider the report which they made,
the,progress report, Go we not?

.Mr. Rosemnan: ¥Yes, sir; and, as we point out n great
detail in our brief as to both of those, the progress repors
and this petition, nothimg 18 shoun of any specific nabure o
the Comnmission to indlcate that any of these inherent defecty
1a the RCA system to which I have just referred, the cross tall
and the 1/1,000,000 of a second, nothing to indlcate that those
fundamental difficulties had been met and overcome. '

The Commission had held that those were fundamental defects
in the system; and 1f Your Homor wlll look at the progress
report and look at this petition, you will f1nd noth*ng there
of a nature representing that, "We have been able to overcomo
these inherent defects which you have found with respect to ouw
system.”

3 ‘ I think that the Cormigsion was justified in refusing to

| open up this long hesring on some general cla*ﬁ of jmprovement
because, as a matter of fact, as I polnted out yesterday, and
read, the Commission @14 say that they would still hold the doux
open %o anything which was shown to them as a real ‘uprovement,
8o that 1f the RCA were to say now, 'We have met -~ we have sone-
thing to show you now which shows that we have overcome these
eritical defects," the Commission specifically sald that "We will

hold the door opén to seeing that."

May I answer what --
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Justice Frankfurter: That 1s, after making the order,
laying down this order, after the order was ouﬁ, with all the
situation that that would thereby create.

Mr. Rosenman: When the order éame out they satd, ™e
will hold the door open.™

If RCA then could say to the Commission, "We have someblru:
%o show you %o the effect that all of these defe;ts which you
have held are linherent in the system, have been obviated," 1#
they had even said anything like that, we have a 4! fferent
problem.

Justice Black: Judge Roseﬁman, may I ask you, just in 1ixnc
with what you are saying, suppose on June 30, this year, th's
order had been approved, assume that 7% had been approved, and
the Radio Corporation goes down there and shows the Commission
reasonable grounds for believing that they had developed these
things that they alleged theﬁ hoped to do by June 30. In your
judgment, vhat effect wonld the order ha&e? Wpuld it bar thaez
from having an opportunity to present those facts,'andAassumﬁng ‘
that they had made the inventlon, would the public be denied
the benefit of it?

Mr. Rosenman: I would say that the order does not have
the effect of barring them, and 1 would say as to whether the
public should be denied the use of two good systems -~ which i

not %he gsituation here ~~ i8 a question which the Commjssion

111 heave o determine for 1beelf vhen that quection arises.
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They have not yebt been faced with that fssue of whether they
have two dlfferent systems, both good, to which the Amer*éan
people are entitled.

Up to now they believe that they have only one system and,
thebefbre, the question of policy has not yet been presented o
then.

I do not want to seek to evade a determlnation of that
question of policy. I think 1f RCA can show that a dot sequen-
tial systemn can overcome the inherent defects, then the
Commission will be faced squarely with determining whether they
want to have two dlffevent systems of color television being
submitted to the public.

.Mighf I say, in ensver to Your Honor's questﬁon'of yester-
day, that that 18 not an Jllusory thing, énd there are two
épecific instances within the last three years wh'ch show that
th#t‘is not.an I1lusory thing.

In the first place, the Commission has already ﬁaken a sban
which hurts 12 nillion recelvers, as the appellants have
pointed out, so that 1f the question were presented to thew
again as to whether they should take on another system rather
than the fleld sequential system, what they are doing today ¢
precedent of what they would have the courage to do in ‘the
future, namely, to do scmething whi éh they think 1s for the

benefit of the Americsn people, in splite of the fact that 1%

does something to 12 million recelvers.
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Justice Black: TYou are assuming something that I have not
yet understood. TYou are assuming that 1f the Radio Corporation
should do that which 1% says 1t hopes %o do, that 1%t would
thereby necessarily displace their system, the other system,
and the people would have %o choose between the two as to
reception.

Mr. Rosemman: That 1s absoclutely correét; that *8 what
would have to happen.

Justice Black: But suppose a man bought thelr equtpment
of the kind they say'they hope to have. Could 1t not he used
in receiving that which would.be on w'th the Columb!a system?

Mr. Rosemman: Wo, sir; it could not be used.

Justice Clark: Suppose thelr tri-color tube was adapted
to the field sequential system; 1%t could then be used, could %
not? |

Mr. Rogsenman: It could stlll not be used, Your Homor, and
I would like to take a minute to clear that up.

‘ Justice Clark: I mean, the slgnals, though, would be
avallable, would they not, the CBS signals?

.Mro Rosemmang All that the tube would do, so far as the
CBS system 18 concerned, is to replace the d'sc which 18 now
geing used in the 0BS system.

Justice Clark: Replace this windmill.

Mr. Rosenman: 7Yes, sirs; that 78 all that the tube would

o - BT g iy IV ST i a, e g pyy . A D . A N
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Black said, the Commission were to adopt two staﬁdards, the
fiel§ sequen%ial and the dot sequential, and the tube worked
and could be produced at a reasonable ;ost, you would have a
tupe in an RCA receiver, and you would have a tube In 2 GBS
receiver, but if the field sequential system were being broad-
cast, as the Commission ordered, only those recelvers whi;h are
equipped to receive %helfield sequential syétem would get any
color signal.

The RCA ssstem'with 1ts tube, the RCA recelver with 1ts
tube, would get an Réﬁ-color gignal, but not a CBS églor stgnal.

| Justice Clafk: My questfon was, of course, the'r presént
systen Js the dot sequential, as I understand 1t?

Mr. Rogserman: Yes, sir.

Justice Clark: Tow, assume there 18 here an ever-éhangﬁﬁg
industry:; every minute, why, something 18 developed. Suppese
their engineers were to develop a tr#-color tube that was
adsptable to the field sequential, not the dot sequential, the
dot sequentiai system; would not then the CBS brroadcast be
obtainable over that tube?

Mr. Rosenman: No, sir.

Justice Clark: it would not.

Mr. Rosenman: No, sir. The tube, sir, hés nothing to do
with the system. The tube 18 2 pieée of apparatus on which the
system would work, and the tube 1n the CBS system would be

substivuted for the 4isc.
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The tube in the RCA system would be subst! tuted for the'r
old 3-tube recelver, but whether the tube 18 to be used n
dot sequential or fleld sequential 78 Tmmater!al, because the
seme tube can be used in elther system. It ig only a plece of

apparatus which has nothing to do with the system.

The system 18 one which CBS does by fields, 144 %¢imes &
secondg; RCA does 1t by dots, 11l millton times a seeond.

Now those two systems can no more mix than o'l and water.
The tube, sir, is a plece of apparatus which 9% was uﬁanimously
testified to would 1t elther system, so that as soon as that
tube is developed and works weil, whilch has not yet happened,
and can be produced so that the ordinary American can buy 1%,

that tube can be put into the CBS apparatus. It is only a

piece of gpparatus, and it will receive the CBS system by fields,
144 times a second, and that will do away forever with the p!obu.
size limitation ébout which so much has been made.

Justice Clark: It wlll not recelve the RCA --
¥ Mr. Roserman: It what?
Justlee Clark: It will not receive the RCA s'gnal.
{ Mr. Rosenmman: It will not recelve the RCA signal uﬁless
the RCA signal can be troadcast by the Cbmm*ss*on, and unless it
A is in & piece of apparctus which 1s attuned to receive the RCA
system, and not attuned to receive the CBS system.

Justice Jackson: Judge Rosenman, what 18 bothering me

‘{.' . Y 0 T
- gbout this 1g vhat % 1o that this Oourt 18 golng to dectde. In
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it the contention hiere that we have to declide which of these
two systems is technically superior? Surely, the Court, éom=
Posed as this one 18, in this kind of a hearing, 1s not
expected to decide that, is i1t?

Mr. Rosenman: We urge, slr, that you are not expeéted to

declde that.

Justice Jackson: Then, are we to decide which g the best
investment For the Amerlcan public without knowing wh*;h 18 G
best technically? |

Mre. Rosenman; Wo, sir. We urge you not to deectde that.

Justice Jackson: We could not do that.

Then, how much 1s there left for us to dec'de here? I
appreclate that the lawyers haﬁe addressed us aé though %@ wer:
intelligent sbout this.th§ng, which most of our questions show
we are nov (1aughter), and you have tr%ed your best to make ué
understand the technicél merits of these things. But obviously
1f we were going to decide that we ought to teke weeks and have
hearings with the experts, and go tnto 1t as a court would, a
court of Pirst instance.

Pirst, I think 1t was 1n Jusgitfce Douglas® questton, whei
18 the scope of our review; whaf are we to talk about when we
get into conference on this thing? What are we supposed to kmowt
You ~- both sides ~- have assumed that we are to know all abwmt

13 1t 18 flattering. but highly unrealistic, 2 highly unreslisi’

o
2

assumption, s0 far as I am concerned.
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Mr. Rosenman: So far as I am concerned, sir, my answer
is ﬁhat this case should never have gotten_*nto any §ourt.
because the scope of review 18 so l'mtted, we think, and whateves
1t 18, 7% has been adequateiy done by the court below, so that
we think that there 4s nothing -~ |

Jugtice Jackson: That I8 a question of law wh*éh I thought
was what was goipg to. be argued here, the scope of review, and
that question -- I do not see how on eafth ve are golng to
Qualify ourselves.to bass on these technical questions -- well,
I woﬁld just speak for myself on that; I cannot.

FMr. Rosenman: And we urge that thére is no necessity ~-

Justice Jackson: We could not even set one up 1f we bougit
a television set; we would not know how to set *t up, let alcne
understand what it was doing.

Justice Frankfurtér: Judge Rosemman, I do not suppose
there 1ls anybody in this room who knows less about rado sets
and telévision than 1 do.

Justlice Jackson: I dissent.

(Laughter)

Justice Frankfurterz. Brotﬁer Jackson does not know the .
depth of nmy ignorance; but I think there are questions *n hers
that, I venture to say, I do understand, and one of them I
should like %o revert to; It was ralsed by Justice Black;s
question to you, and your candid answer, your candid ansver,

I think, zhovs the reach of ihe problem involved. .
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I may have misapprehended your answer, but as I got it
it was ém naturally emough you are not ready to say so, but you
were ready to say that, of course, Justice Black®s guestion
calls for either candor or evasion -- you were ready to say
that 1t may 1n the Tfuture be a matter for-pol*éy determi nation
by the Commlssion, even 1f a new w'able, availsble system were
proposed, that 1t was to the publ®e interest not to allow 1%,
because of the damage done to existing sets, *s thét a correct
appreciatibn of what you sa'd?

Mr. Rosenman: I sald 1t would have to determine that;
yes, sir.

Jugtice Frankfurter: That would be a matter of poliey?

Mr. Rosemman: Yes, sir. |

Justice Frankfurter: Therefore, the reach of th's question
18 «- of this case is -w.that by this order a s*fuat*on is
created vhereby the Amerﬂcan commerctal competitive system'of
broadeasting would be ~- would assumie a monopoly positlon litke
unto the British, but without any of the safeguards and without
any of the motives limiting the British system, and that is vhy
from my point of view, whether or not th's was a too hurried

| dcision, whether procedurally we could say that 'n bhalancing

the interests no harm would on the balance have ocecurred if the

Commission would have done what Comm?esioner Hennoek sugpested,

seems to me a relevant judicetal quest!on.
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Mr. Rosemman: HMay I direct nmyself to this questibn of
monopoly, silr, that this is not a'mcnopoly. :

Justice Frankfurter: I am nob saying it is now, but the
Commission may nake 1t so by‘determining when the lssue is
faced that to allow another system would involve such
Jettisoning, such displacing of existing sets, that they would
think it is an undesirable thing to do.

Mr. Rogsemman: Would not the proper thing be for that
%o happen before a decision is made as to whether there is an
abuse of discretion in permitting a second set of standards?

Justice Frankfurter: Bubt the time to wait for that =--
you have already created a situation which prevents, from my
point of view may prevent, a balanced jJudgmen®t on it.

Mr. Rosennan: But 1f you do the alternative, sir, 1f
you do not adopt this system, you have no color system for
the people.

Justice Frankfurter: And so what?

Mr. Rosenman: Well, I Think with respect To that the
decision of the administrative agency that color is an
important thing which should be given to the American people

-1s a determination which should not be disturbed by this
Court.

Now, so far ~-

The Chief Justice: Without furtrer cuestioning, Judge

Rosenman, your Gtilme hem expired.
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Mr. Rosenman: T have not ansuwered Justice Douglas's

~

guestion. |

The Chief Justice: Answer 1t, and take the time from the
Solicitor General.

Mr. Rosenman: Well, I suppose the Sollcitor General will
answer 1t then. I don't want to take any time from the
Solicitor General. )

ARGUMENT ON BEHALF OF APPELLEES
UNITED STATES AND FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION
By Mr. Perlman.

Mr. Perlman: May 1% please the Court, this case

involves the authority of the Federal Communlcations Commisslon.
You have heard from the attorneys representing the companies,

but we are here representing the United States, and repre-

senting the Federal Communications Commissicn, and our view-

- point may be a little bit dlfferent from the viewpoint that

so far has been urged upon the Court, because we are not
interested in the particular views of any of the companies
whose interests may be involved.

I want the Court in the beginning, I ask the Court, to

consider the nature of the problem which confronted the

" Federal Communications Commission when these hearingé began.

Justice Douglas. There is no divergence between you

and CBS, is there? veou have the some byriedf.

Mr, Periman. Yes, sir.
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Justice Douglas: ¥You are not suggesting any disagreement
with Judge Rosenman?

Mr. Perlman: No, sir; I am not suggesting any disagreement
because we are here urging that the action of the Federal
Communications Commigsion he affirmed, or rather that nothing
that it has decided be reversed or upset by any action of
thils Gourt.

But the problem that faces the Commission is a little bit
different than the --

Justice Jackson: Should we not really start with the
problem that faces us, and then seé how much of the Commlssionts
problem really faces us? The thing that bothers me, Mr, i
Solicitor General, is Jjust what our function here is,
particularly in view of the fact that the court below, instead
of making a decision of these things, said, "Well, there is
no use of our fussing with this because these people in
Washington are going to hear this thing anyway" -- whether
they have had a review in the court below, and what review they
were entitled %o, and what we'shoulg do under the circumstances.
~The question of law concerning fhe -gccpe of review on a
question of this kind seems %o be tﬁe critical thing here.

Mr . Perlman: Now, your Honor, the scope of review is the
question that we have considered, and uwe Thianlk consldered

minutely, in the hriel that hag been £iled here.

Justice Doupglas: The reason I asked the question-
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yesterday was because your briefl does not address 1tsélf, as
I read 1t, to the guestion of whether or not under the
declsion in the Universal Camera Corporation case in an
administrative procedure case, the appellants got the review
in the District Court to which they would be entitled.

Mr. Perlman: Well, we think ~=-

Justice Douglas: You argue here in your bdbrief that Chere
is substantial evidence, but I do not see that you argue that
they got the'review below. Maybe they did, but I have difficulty
with that point.

Mr. Perlman: Your Honor, we make two alternative argu-
ments in our brief. We say that the Administrative Procedure
Act does not apply to this kind of a proceeding, and we say
that, therefore, the rule that the court was interessted in
in the Universal Camera case and in the Pittaburgh Steamship
case, the rule that the court followed in those cases has no
particular application here, and I am golng to come to the
reasong why that is.

But we aléo argue that 1f that rule should be applied to

this case, then the record in this case complies in the

sense that there is substantial evidence to support every
finding made by the Pederal Communications Commission.

We think that it is feally immaterial whether you follow

the Universal Camera case or whether you agree with us that

the rule laid down in that case is not applicable here.




Justice Jackson: Well, was that declded by the court
below?

Mr. Perlmans I beg pardon?

Justice Jackson: Was that decided by the court helow?
Mr. Perluen: Well, the court beleow, if your Honor please =~
' Justice Jackson: If there is a review of that question
it shouid initiate certalnmly in the court below, should 1% not,
'under ‘the siatutory scheme of review of thesg -

¥Mr. Perlman: Yes, sir. |

Justice Jdackson: And The court below got to a point where
1t threw up itvs hands and said, “wha% 13 the use of our
fussing wivh this because 1t has got vo go to Washington anyway,
and it might as well go on its way fast, so we will not decide
1%, and send it down there.”

Mr. Perlman: Your Honor, bthere 1s no place in the
‘opinion where the court sald that in the way your Ronor 1s
saying it.

Justice Jackson: It is pretty cloee to that.

Mr. Perlman: ©No. There is a sentence ia thers, or maybe

two sentences, that indicated that they were appailed by the

amount of work that they had to do, because they were fzced
with all the documents that have been fiied in this case; and

they were faced with a transcript, a stenogesaphic transcript,

)

of' over 10,000 pages, convaining the Lastimony ol soae 53

witnesses, and they vuere faced with 265, I believe ¢

e number

(1)
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is, exhiblts that were flled in that proceeding.

In addition to Tthat, they were faced with all these
affidavits which RCA filed in the lower court in an abortive
attempt to get the lower court to ignore, if 1t could, the
record that was before it, and to listen to additilonal statements
which the Commission had never heard; and all that mass of
material was dumped on the court below.

Justice Jackson: But the court bslow says:

“Also In studying the case we have been unable to
free our minds of the question why we should devote the
time and energy which the 1mportancé of the case merits,
realizing as we must that the controversy can only be
terminated in a decigslion of the Supreme Court.  This is
80 because any 8ecision i8 appealable as a matier of
right, and we are informed in no uncertain terms that
elther aggrieved party will appeal. In other words,
this is 1little more than a practice session where the
parties prepare and test thelr ammunition for the big
battle ahead. Moreover, we must glve recognivion to

1"

the limited scope,” and 8o forth.

In another place it says that the sooner 1t is on the
way, the better. Now, the question is whether that review
is the kind of review contemplated by the statubory scheme,

and whether we should underiake to review all those affidavits,

1if the court below Thought 1t was sonethling to be passed on.
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Mr. Perlmand wWell, i your Honop please, yoﬁ have read
that, and that, I Chink, 1s the oniy pisce in the opinicn where
this kind of a viewpoint is expressed. As & mabber of fact,
though, if you read that wholie oplnion --

Justice Jacksons: Sometimes a court thinks that onece is
enough to say aomethiﬁg. (Laughver )

Mr, Perlman. But if you read that whole opinion, you can
not help bul agree that the lower courv 4id whst it said it
was going to Go when vhis case flrst canre belfove 1. It
said that this is an important case. It saild, "We sre going
to take all the time necessary to make vhe best decision of
which we are capable.' That is what the court below sald,

and although it was faced with vhat problem, and 1% conplained

C"
I—S

about it, it a4id wnat it 8ald 1t was going vo do, and ite
bopinion shows it because it is a carefully worded opinlom that
showed that not only had it read all the papers in the case, .
'but 1% said, "We have studled this case.”
Your Honor mead vhat pmrase when you wers reading the
excerptvthat you did. %he lower court did svudy the cass,
it said goj and in tae hearing -- and we have referred bo it
in our brief -- the lower court sald, “We are going to btake
ail the time That is necvessary o make Tthe bast dscilsion of

which we ave capabie,” and I subuit Yo thiz lourt that that

sbatement by She court bhelow iz enbisleg to Jual as auch

welght, 1f not more walight, than the complalnt that they threw




168

out that this was such a large case, and they had a lot of
work to do; and that is all the significance, I think, that
can be attached to what your Honor read.

Now, coﬂing to the legal question involved as to the
function of the lower courf and the function of this Court,
because the Administraﬁive Procedure Act has been referred to,
and I have sald that the fuling that this Court has made in
the Universal Camera case and the Pittsburgh Steamship case
is not reélly applicable here, I say that for this reason:
that this is a rule-making prodedure; that there 18 no pro-
vision in the Federal Communications Act which requires even
that a hearing should be held. There is no such provision
in the Federal Communications Act; and when the Federal
Comnmunications Commission undertakes to adopt rules for the
future conduct of the ladustry over whlch i1t has been glven
authority, it 1s not necessary even for it %o have a hearing,
and under the provisions of the Administrative Procedure Act,
1f your Honors will look at Section 10(e) of that Act, you
will see that there is an exception, there is an exceptlon,
as to the rule of substantlal evidence, that refers to the
instances where a commulssgion is proceeding without an

express direction by statute to hold a hearing.

Justice Frankfurter: The danger of that line of argument,

Mr. Solicitor, 1s that a commliszsion, this Commlssion, could

turn every order affecting a single person, and intended so to
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affect a single person, into an abstract rule, into & regula-
tion stated generally, although everybody lmows that 1% its
only one person and ig intended to fit only one person.

Mr. Periman: Well, your Honor -~

Justice Frankiurter: I am not suggesting any iwpropristy,
but I am suggesting that that mode of approach iecads to a
result that if you are doing it that way, to reach a regulation
stated generaliy; aithough you might well c¢all 1t an order
authorizing CBS o do thuas and so.

Mr.'Perlman: That, of course, 1s not appiicable here
bécause we did have a hezring. Bu% it is true, whethef there
18 a danger in it or not, that the Congress ﬁf the United
States has made the provision, not this Court, and it has pro-
vided that with respect to rule-making proceedings 1% has
falled to direct that a hearing should be held, and there
are provisions of the stabubtes with which your Honor is
tamiiiar, where the Congress has seen £it to direct hearings,
and in this instance they did not.

Justice Frankfurter: Non constat because 1t does not
explicitly require a hearing that a hearing shouid not be iyplied?

Mr. Periman: A hearing is not %o be Implied, because

the Court hes gaid thet. The fourt has pointed out ~-- I think
we have & ncte o ong of the pages of cur brief -~ we have &

dote ¢o the offect that this Court hasg provided, o thers i1s a

0=
o
g
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provision teo the alfoel thatv sherce Shere lo ne hearin




170

parties involved must be given an opportunity to file comments,
and to present thelr views in welting o the Commission,
although there 1s no provision for a hearing.

Justice Reed: Why do you say that 10{e) does not cover
hearings, does not cover rule-making without hearings?

Mr, Perlman: Well, your Honor, I will read it to you.

Justlice Reed: I have already read it.

Mr. Perlman: Yes, sir; but I say 1t because fthe particular
provision fhat I had in mind wag subparagraph 5:

" Unsupported by substantial evidence in any case
subject %o the requirvements of Section T orv8 or otherwise
reviewed on the record of an agency hearing provided by
statute."

Here you have an agency hearing which is not provided by
statute, and that is why I say that the rule of substantial
evidence does not apply under the Administrative Procedure
Act because here the Adminlatrative Procedure Act applies to a
hearing under that subsection 5, 2 hearing provided by
statute; and there is no hearing provided by statute.

Justice Reed: What about the charges that the Commlssion
was arbltrary and capricious, and there was an abuse of dis-
cretion?

Mr. Periman: That 1s correct. To that extent the

Administrative Proceduve Act does apply, the last sentence of

that seection:s
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"in making the foregoing Qelermlnalions the couwrt shall
review the whole record or such portlons therecf as may
be cited by any party, and due account shall be taken of
the rule of prejudlcial error.”

That sentence certainly does apply vo an dlilegatlon that
the acbion of the Commission was arbitrary or was capricious,
or was an abuse of its authority.

Now, even then, your Honor will notice, that the provision
is for a review of the record or such porvions of 1t as may be
called to the attention of the courv by interested parties; and
here we say to your Hoﬁors that when you read vhe opinion of
the lower court you can nov help but.find that the court aid
aénsider every contention that was advanced, and the portions
of the record that were cited to the court by the inbverested
party in this case, the appelliants here.

TNouw, that is our answer to the question that is ralsed
in their criticism of the court below, the atbtack made on the
opinion of The court, and on'the decision of the court.

We say that the court below did ali that it was requlred
to do under the Admlnistrative Procedure fct, and under lthe
Act the Yederal Communications Act, vthat it did conslder, and
its opinion shows that it considered, the record, and the
portions of the record that were submitted to it or that
were urged upon 1V by the parvics involved.

I would like ©o call your Honors'! atitention to the

~
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discussion on page 113 of our brief; in which we deal with the
very question That your Honor has asked.

Now, therefore, when the matter comes to this Court, the
question which this Court must decide i3 whether there is any-
thing in this record to convince this Court that the action of
the Federal Communications Comaission was arbitrary, was
capricious, was in excess of the authority vested 1n it by
the Federal Communlcations Act, or was an abuse of any authority

vested in it by the Federal Communications Act. And when

your Honors consider that question, whether you iike it or not,
the lower court did not seem to like it, whether you are
experts or not, you must glve some attention to the problen
thét confronted the Federal Communications Commlssion, and
that is the problem that I want to discuss with the Court.
The Federal Communlcations Commission is the agency
- authorized by the Federal Communications Act to protect
the public in the ﬁs9 of what is known'as the radlo spectrum.
Now, the importance of this particular case -- and &
novice like myself in this field was astonished by it -~ but

the importance of this particular case may be gathered from

one statement, and thalt i1s this: that when your Honors use

your radio, you find that the dial on your radlo goes from

550 to 1600 killocycles -- 550 to 1600 kilocycles -- and when

you deal with a television apparatus, every television statlon

operating on one of the chamnels -~ there are 12 channels that
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exlst today for ordinary use -- every channel containg 8ix
'megaeycles, so that when this Federal Communications Commission
is called on to authorize the existence of a single television
broadeaéting sﬁation, that one station uses almost 8ix times

as much of the radio spectrum as all of the radio stations in
the country combined -- one television station, six megacycles,
" six thousand killoecycles -- when your radio apparatus, with

- all the stations that you can get on it, only uses 1050 kilo-
cycles.

Now, that gilves an ldea of the importance of the prdblem
that faced this Comnission. Thié~prob1em is not a new one.

It did not come up overnlght. It has been considered off
- and on by the Commission since 19341,

There was a hiatus during the war when, I suppose, very
1lithle attention was paid to 1t, bubt the Commission has a |
staff, 1t has a staff of experts; and it has a staff of
engineers; 1t has a labovatory. It is at work on this
problem, in addition Yo other problems, coannected with the
use of the wradio sﬁectrum, and it considered ~~ and this

record shdws that 1t considered -- various systems in 1946,

Now, the Radio Corporation of America, the main appellant
here, submitted & syshbem in 1946, It was counsldered by the
Commlssion. It was called the simultansous system. .

Tt differed from The fleld syobem; it is different from the

1line sequential system: 1t 1is different from the dot sequential
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system.

They made extravagant claims about that system. That
was going to uwork. .

They submitted it to the Commission and asked the Comnission
to approve it, and it was studied, and the Commilssion found that
it could not approve it, and it did not approve it.

The CBS submitted a system. It submitted its field
sequential system, but it had not arrived at the point where it
is today,'with the result that the Commission rejected that
system in 1947.

The main reason that 1t re jected 1t was that the use of
the field sequential system, as submitted in 1947, required the
use of 16 megacycles instead of six megacycles.

Now, one of the things that I think ls interesting for ne
to emphasize to your Honors 1g that the present black and white
transmissions, the present blagk and white sgystem, 1s also
six megacycles, and the Commlission did reject these other
systems that took up more'of the radlo spectrum than six mega-
cycles, until the time came when it could consider systens

that did not take up any more of the radlo spectrum than six

megacircleso

One of the three systems that were submlitted and were
consldered in the hearlangs that are involved in this case;, uwere
systens that involved the use of no wide space in the radio

spectrun than six wmegacycles.
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Now, what the Commission did was to give everybody who
wanted %o submit a system, who had a system to submit, they
gave them full and falir opportunity to come in.

These hearihgs lasted some elght months, and all of the
testimony that has been described was baken.

There never had been «- I think it is fair'to say there
never has been -~ a matter before the Federal Communications
Commission that was glven the earnest, the complete, the
intensive study that the Federal Communilcations Commission
gave thls particular problem.

What was the result of 1%? In May, 1950, the hearings
ended. The parties had apparently submitted everything that
they desired o submit. All thelr witnesses had testified.

In May, 1950, the Commilssion then asked the parties =--
there were three of them whose systems were considered --
to submit proposed findings.

RCA @id it, OBS did it, CPI did it, the othgr gystems,
they did it.

The Commigsion then saw to 1t that these proposed findings
and comments were interchanged, and that every party was given
an opportunity to make a reply to any findings that were pro-
posed by the proponenﬁs of other systems. All that was done;
all that was considered by the Commission.

The Commigsion handed down its first report on Sepbember 1,

1650, and I want to emphasize to your Honowrs, because there has
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been some confusicn -- maybe unintentional confusion -- about

that -- when the Commission handed down its report on
September 1lst -- its first report, September 1lst, 1950 ~-

all seven members of the Commission, without dissent, found
that the field sequential syastem proposedAﬁy CBS was satis-
factory, that 1% meant the minimum criteria which. the
Commission found was necessary before 1t would conslder the
adoption of any system. All seven of the Commissioners agreed
upon thaﬁ. A1l seven of the Commisgioners agreed that the dot
system proposed by RCA was unsatisfactory; that it was not a
complete system; that 1t lacked in many important and vital
respects the things that were necessary to enable the

Commissgion to consider 1t for adoption. It is unsatisfactory,

all seven found.
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Now, there were two dissents that I want to call to Your
Honors®' asttention to that finding, two dissents, and you know
what tﬁe basls of thoge dissents was?

™o of the Commissloners dissented on the ground that they
should no% wait another minute; that they should adopt the ffeld
sequential system then and there, and not wait; but the majoriiy
of the Commisslon decided that they would wa*t, they would wa't
for this reason: "They sald vhat '8 going on here, what has
been shownlus, ia that 900,000 of the present sets sre he'ng
sold every wonth. The longer we walt, the more @*'#f'ecult *'s a
transition period going to be from black and wh'te to color.

"Now if the manufacturing industry will adopt what they
called bracket standards" ~- wvhat the Comm'sgion called the
bracket standards -~ "1f they will build them *nbto existing
machines, so that they wlll be free to make a choiee in the
- future, then the public won't be hurt if we watt; and so 1T
the industry will assure us that the future recefvers will be
bullt in the way we suggest, then we will wa't and see whether
any of these prowmises made by RCA can be realtzed, and vhether
we will then be in 2 po3ition to make a comparison beitween the
tvo systems that would meet the ﬁrincﬁpal cr?terta *nstead of
only one systen."

Now, 1% 18 elear from this record that RCA has a commanding
position In thisg Industry, not only in thé Throadeasting feld,

but 1t 18 algo Tn the namufacturing feld. CBS *s not.
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RCA makes sets; 1t licenses other manufacturers. I
controls 1in many respects every%ody'who manufa;tures or who 48
in the business of dealing with televiston, who pays a tr'buie
directly or indirectly to RCA.

They haﬁe reached that commaanding fYgure 'n the *gdustry
and, therefore, the Commiegsion knew what 7% was doing vhen 1%
broposed these bracket standards and propesed the delay.

Now, for whose benef't was that done? It was done for RCA.
They were maklng all these clalms. The only one to ga'n by a
delay was RCA. The only one who could possibly lose was CBS;
and yet at this late date, after the Commission went out of +&s
way to show them that kind of consideration, they are here
arguing to this Court that that was 1llegal, that that was
1llegal; that the Commission d1d an 1llegal thing by.try*ng to
require something of a manufacturing industry over which ¢
had no control.

Well, there was nothing 1llegal for the Comm'ssfon to %try
to get that information before 1t acted, and that js all that
the Commission did.

Let me say a word about bracket standards, and mayhe the
Court may understand 1%, and just to show you what the Comm'sston
vas'tr‘ying to do.

The black and whﬁté gysten operates, as the Court has been
told, 525 1lines per Plold, and There are two Delds n every

frame; there are thirty pictures -- a frame 18 a plcture -- per
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gsecond, so i1 you take the 525 1lines and you multiply 1t by 30,
you will find that every second there are 15,750 l*mnes. In
the présent black and vhlte system there are 15,750 liunes per
second.

Now, the field sequential system operates on 405 ltnes,
and 1t has 2% pictures, and there are three colorg, red, blue
and green; and 1f you multiply the 2405 by 24, by 3, you get
29,160 lines per second.

So, ﬁnder one system there are 15,750 lines per seéond e
the electronic beam travels that many lines per second ~- and
in the field sequential system, there are 29,160.

So the Commissfon sald to the manufacturers of sets, "If
you will from now on manufacture your sets so that they w'll
take, they will recetve in operation from 15,000 lines pef

second, which 18 under the present black and whiite system, %o

- 32,000 lines per second, which is higher than the f*eld

sequential system, 1¥ you will make sets to recelve ﬁfth*n that
range, then we will wait."

So that was the essence of the order that was sent out on
September 1, 1950, when the first report was made.

That veport, under the terms of that reporit, the Commnisston
made all of the findings. I think Your Honors must agree that
they made all the findings that were necessary to 'ndlcate that

they had thoroughly studied the subjechty that they found *n

every applicable, in evewry proper raspect, that the fMeld
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sequential system was satisfactory for imumedtate use by the
American public.

The dot sequential system and the line sequentlal system
were not. The proponents of the line seguential systeu have
not thought 1t advisable even to appeal that ﬂeé*s*on, so that
ﬁhe argument here 18 ﬁetween the two systems that werve lLeft.

They nmade those Mindings, and they Tndicate 't 'n that
report -~ they sald so -- "We w1l adopt the feld sequent’al
system now, and we will adopt 1%, unless the manufacturers will
agree to adopt, what ave ¥nown a8 brackets® -~ the gtandard
brackets that I have deseribed -~ “so that the public will not
be hurt, no matter what we do 4n the future.®

' That was the kind of an order that was Tssued, so that the
appellsnt here knew on September 1, 1950, that unless the
manmufacturing industry, in which 1% s *nterestéd Ttself, did
the things or gave the assurances that thé Commi ss*on asked,
that the field sequential system was going to be'adopted.

They were told that by the Coumlssion on September 1, 1950.

The Commisslon asked the parties to subwm®t commenits on the
bracket standards that they proposed, axd they gave them, I thlunk,
some 28 days to subm1t those comments, and they were subm? tted,
both by RCA, and they were subm?tted by CBS here.

The interesting thing about +% 15 that 'n July, the RCA

sent the Commizglion ~- I thinl they sent then ~- 20 coples of

what they called a progress report. That report 's a report
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which they described as a document getben up to be sent to the
trade, and they told the Commission that "We propose to send
such reports o the trade from time ﬁo time."

They did not ask that the case be reopened, the case which
had ended in May; they dtd not ask that the case be reopened to
consider that repoft, They did not ask that testimony be taken
with referenée to 1t. It was not submltted as an affidavit.

It was sent out through the malls, as they sent 1t to the

. Commissién, in just the same way, they sent 't to the members

of thelr trade, the progress report.

Now, vheﬁ they f1led comments -~ when they were asked to
file comments -« and they d'd that, n connection with the
comments that they filed they tncorporated *n those comments
another copy of their progress report, and a copy of the Condon
report.

I would like %o say just a word or two about those two
reports. dJudge Rosemman has -~

Justicz Reed: When they fi1led a motion to reopen, they
called specific attention to that, did they not?

Mr. Perlman: Let me come %o that. They sent those reporis
in connectlon with thelr comuents. They never asked that
testimopy'be taken concerning those reports, no, sir. They
malled ‘them in.

Now, Just think of this: The progress repord, a document,

an advertiseueut, a scli-rerviug declazration which RCA says
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gbout itself to the members of the trade assoclation w- they
wailed that 10, and they say, "This s golng to be the first of
a series." |

Then when they are asked to subm!t comments on the bracket
proposal, aftér the fivst report, they are supposed to submit
comments on the bracket proposal, and ‘then they take advanbtage of
that opporituntty not to subwit comments on the bracket propossals,
but to attempt to re~argue with the Commission the things which
wre in the record, to make anothér ergument on the whole case,
without or with very little reference to the bracket proposal,
which was.all the Commission aslked them to comment upén.

In that connectlon, in attempting to re-argue the matter,
they included two documents. Now, just think of 1t. Here *s
the Radio Corporation of America, ‘n thelr comments to the
ﬁ Federal Communications Comalssion, undertaking to send the
| | Condon report.

Well, what is the Condon report? It ls a document of the
Senate of the United States. Well, vhat sigu®ficance hés a
document coming out of the Govermnment FPrinting 0ff?ce, printed

at the request of a Senator of the Unlted States? What has that

got %o do with information properly belong’ng ‘n the record
before the Federal Coumunications Comnfssion?
ff; - They have access to Senate Gocuments; they are public

o

jg officials; they do not need the Rudio Covporation of America to

17 gend them Senabe documents, and try to build a record on that.
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Wow, that is the essence of their argument here, that the
Commission did not consider alleged new Tmprovements. The
emphasis that they lay 18 an attempt to convince th's Court =-
they lay it on an idea that the Federal Communicat!ons Cowm?sston
did not pay enough atteniion to their own progress report, and
to the Senate document, the Condon Commtttee’s report.

Well, now, the progress report, both of those th'ngg --
let me say this: Both of those things were considered by the
Federal Comminications Commission. The Federal Commun*éat*ons
Commigsion, 1n 1its second report says that *t constdered all
the comments and considered all the documents attached to those
comments; so that 1% fs clear from the Federal Commmuntcat!ons
Commission?s second report that they were considered, but they
ignore theﬁ, and ‘they say they were not considered.

I have tried to describe the progress report.

The Condon report -~ Judge Rosemman dealt with that. I
would like to add one word in addttion to what he sa'd with
reference to that report, because 1% I8 ‘mportant 'n view of the '
attention which RCA attempts to direct to 7% here, and that s,
if Your Honors look at that report which s tn the printed
record, Your Honors will see that what has been descrbed as
the greatest commitiee of scientists that was ever got together

to study the subject, that whalt they say throughout that repory

ig 1n no respect and nowhere luconslstent with what the
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There is no findﬁng wade in fhat report that s *n any
vay Inconsistent or 15 in derogation of what the Federal
Communi.cations Commission has dectded to do. |

Justice Black:s Judge Major was mistaken 'n saying that
this did confliet with the £f1nding of the Comm?!asgton?

Mr. Perlman: Well, I think he was.

Justice Black: I have not looked at lt.

Mr. Perlman: Yes.

Justice Blaek: I havé not loocked at it.,

Mr. Perlman: I think they d'd f1nd, and to that extent
it may conflict, but not when you bnaly;e vhat they themselves
said they were doing.

The important thing to remember Tn conneciion with what
they found or what they set out as the RCA system aﬁd the GBS

system and the CTI system iIs that 4n each instance they took

| what the proponents of each asystem sa'd about it, and they set

out their tasbles of what the merits of the'r system m?ght be,
and they set them out baged om what the proponent of each systen
1tself sald about 1t. i | _
. They d'd not attempt %6 é&aluate thoge syétéms ‘n connection
with any éonfliétﬂng testimony, and they say.theﬁ'd*d that.

One of the things that they atd ssy, *f that report may be
taken as conélusive of any matier or Tmportant on any matter, s

this: They ~23d that these systens are uwtually exclusive, and

they made the whole report based on throe fundamental assumpi?ons.
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One of them was that they never would be what 18 ealled
here multiple standarda; in other words, &f there was a fMeld
Bequential system, you could not have a do% systenr or you could
not have a line system; and 1 you took the dot system you éould
not have any other gye%em.

They did the thing which apparvently hés glven some of the
members of this Court so much trouble. They sa'd there thab
you, can only have one gystem ~; one system -- and that 15 the
thing that'the Pederal Communicatlions Comm'ssion d*d.

Yesterday there was some talk sbout multiple standards,
and I would llke to say th's sbout them. The question was
asked why did not the Commission adopt more than one system.

Well, one answer to 1t 1s this: There was only one satis-
Pactory system. There was only one satisfactory system. The
question of multiple standards 18 not in the case; 1%t cannot
be in this case, because the Comulssioners found that there 1s
only one gystem that meets the test, the mintmum test, that the
Commission has found to be necessary. There is only one systeu.

Justice Jackson: We have to decide whether there *s only
one system ~-

Mr. Perlman: ¥WNo, sir.

Justice Jackson: {(Continutng) «- or do we have td take
Commission's findings, or 1f we have to take the Comm'ss'on's
findings o; that, then that mesns that a great deéi of the

argument that has gone on here & tumatertal.
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If we have to declde 1% ourselves, then --

Mr. Perlman: TYour Honor, you cannot dect'de 1%. You have
‘to take the Commissﬂon's finding unless there would be some-
thing in the record, somcth1ng to which the appellanbq could
point to, to indicate that the Comaission's action in finding
that this systcm>was the only satisfactory gystem was 80

arbitrary; 80 capricicus, 30 great an abuse of its aﬁtharﬁ%y

- that it eould not be allozed to stand; and that 15 what 18 ecleaw

they have not dome; that 1s clear from the record, from all of
the briefs in this case that they canmmot do;

All ﬁhey are asking wou to do s to st here as a Federal
Comunications Commission; that 's the'r only hope -- that *s
to get somebody, some group someﬁhere to upset the cons'dered

action of the only agency seét up by the Congress of the United

States to make that determination.

Justice Jackson: TYour position is that the case has no
business in court at all?

Me, Perlman: It has no business in court unless -~ 1% has
no husiness -~

Justice Jackson: Unless things are true wh'ch are not true.

Mr. Perlman: That 1s right.

Justice Jackson: In other vords, your position 18 that 1%

has no business in courts, period.

e

My, Perlman: Oh, yes, 1% hag this business ‘n court, %

Tour Honor plezze: It has this business Tn courd, and I think
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i{: Judge Rifkind sort of let the cat out of the bag. They do not
| want qolor; they do not want color now. That s what they satd.
Justice Frankfurter: It 1s not a question of what they
wvant --
Mr. Perimgn: That is right.
Justice Frankfurter: (Continuing) - it 18 a question of

vhat the Federal Communtcat?ons Commission, 'n balancing all

the interests, should decide.
| Mr. Perlman: That s right, but 1% does mot £7% Tn w'ih
V thelr plans or the'r hopes.

Now, I want to come to that because 1t 3 tremendously

important. Your Honors have heard a lot about compatible

Systenms.
% "Our system," says ROA, "1 compatible. The field sequen-
tial is not compatible."

Well, now, what do they mean by that? They mean thi's: that

1f you suthorize the dot system they can transmit the dot
system, and every recelver today will get 7t “n black and wh'te.

That is compatible; and they can broadcast color to the'r heartis

TR e e TR S T TR

content, and nobody will get color, and they say that s
compativle.

Justice Frankfurter:s I thought the Commlssion was most
eager to have a compatible system, 1L attatnsble. |

M. Parlman: That 15 »ight, that 18 r»'ghb; because, P

Your Honor please, as explained fully by the Commission 1n 1is
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firet report, and as everybody knows, the period of transition
would be somewhat easier 1f you could have a compatible system.
.But.vhen they talk about the necessity for a compatible system,
they are only saying, "We will broadcast color and everybody
will get it in black and white."

Wow, the field sequential system, on the other hand, will
broadeast color. That system provided for ;olor, and under
that system the existing receivers éan be adapted so as to get
that color in black and vhite, or % éan be converted so as %o
get color. That can be done, but here s the *mportant po'nt,
here is the most important point to me in this case, and % *'s
thig: that under the system, the dot seguential system, not a
b éingle receﬁvér, not a single recelver novr in use, éan ever get
color. That i1s the important ﬁo*nt in th's case, and that s
~ the one that they tried to conceal.

If there 1s a compatible system -~ certainly the system
f A that they are trylng to foist upon the public at th's momend

i8 not ~- let me tell you what 18 going to result.

They have been selling recelvers at the rate of 900,000 a

month. When these hearings began there were 7,000,000 of theu
in the hands of the public. Today they say there are 12,000,000

of them.

Wow, you keep this case running, keep 7t rumning for a year,

another year, two years, cud bthay will heve thirty or M Ity

million recelvers, 1Ff they can, in the hands of the publie, and




189

then 1f they couid convince the Federal Commun'cat®ons Comm!ss?on
that to adopt thelr dol system, every one of those recelvers
would becoie obsolete over night, and the American publie will
have to go outb énd buy new recelvers. They are 'n the business
of selling recelvers, and that is what th's Court ought to

understand about thls case.

Judge Rifkind sald, "We don't want color now." The
Commission says, "We do wanb col;r now. We want to glve 1% 1o
the Ameriéan pudblic, and we want to glve 1t under such terms
and conditions as willl make the transition essler and economical.

We want to protect the publie and not the Radio Corporation of

America, which sells recelvers.”
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That is the gravamen of this whole case. I do not

argue for the CBS. I never heard of these different kinds
of systems until thls case came up, but it is clear what the
{, object 1s.

Now, look at the dates. I was asked a 1llttle while ago
-- and I want to answer that question -- as to the request
that RCA made that the record be kept open.

Look at the date. They were told on September 1, 1950,
"We are goilng to adopt the field sequential system September

1, 1950; vwe are going to give you 2€ days 1n which you can

convince the industry or you can arrange to have these bracket

standards adopted, so that the public will be protected.”

S0, at the end of Ssptember they knew, they had refused
to make the bracket chanées that the Commission had suggested,
they knew that the Commission was about to hand down a de-
dision finally adopting the field sequential system,

They knew that; and before it came down on October 4th,

they saild, "Please keep this metter open. We have got more

improvements we want to talk about.”

That 1s all they did. They did it vhen they knew that
the final order was éoming down.

Well, when 13 this thing going to end? 1In that request

CpE

to keep the record open they suggested certain things to

happen the followlng December io Jsnusry 5, and then they

suggested that the whole matter be kept open untll June, 1951,
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and then they want a new hearing to start.

Well now, Your Honors have dealt with that situation.
Your Honors have déalt with it in the Plerce Auto Company
case; and we have them in our brief -- there are several cases
in whiéh Your Honors have dealt with exactly that kind of

gituation, and Your Honors have said that that is a familiar

device, Your Honors are familiar with it, this business of
walting until the end of a caze and then suggesting that the
record bé kept open or coming in and asking that the record
be reopened.

Your Honors have said that that is a familiar device
of those who wanted delay and postponement, to prevent any
final decision from.being made,

| Your Honors have said in no uncertain terms that the
decision of the administrative body on requests for rehear-
ings or reopenings will not be interfered with.

Justice Minton: Is there anything specific now pend-
ing before this Court, or was there before the District

Court, or was there before the Commlission, that would

ms ke satlsfactory that which the Commigsion found to

be unsatisfactory?
Mr. Perlman: There 1is nothing pending.
Justice Minton: In other words, RCA and nobody else has

tendered anything along that line since these hesrings

closed?
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Mr. Ferlmgn: That is right.

Justice Minton: Nothing specific?

Mr, Perlman: Nothing specifiec; no, Your Honor. Uut in
Chicago when this case was pendling before the Distriet Court
they filed a long affidavit made by thelr vice president,
lwho never went on the stand. When these things vere going
on for eight months, never said & word, their own vice
presldent; and then he comes in or attempts to come in to
the District Court with an affidavit as to what he would have
testified to had he testified.

There would be no end to this business, and the public
has been hurt by this delay.

This proceeding 1s a proceeding for delay, and we ask

{ Your Honors, we plead with Your Honors, to let the action

| of the Federal Communications Commission stand unless you
wvould destroy its usefulness forever to the people of this

if - country. If thils kind of decision cannot yet now be made,

: after the care, the exzpense and the effort made by the

_?; Commission and its staff, there 1s no use having a commigsion,
let RCA and everybody eiﬂe do what they want with the radio
spectrum untlil the public -~

Justlice Frankfurter: Arises in its might.

RTINS i A T TR

Mr. Ferlman: Yes, sir. ve have got a commission, we

have got a good commiszsion; they have coansldered all of the

facets of this problem; they had to consider the publlc whether
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RCA 1iked it or not; they had done the very best that they
could.

Nobody, no disinterested person, can question what has
been done here.

I want to emphasizé agaln, there arela couple of things
that have been suggested that I mention to the Court: they
make an attack on one of the Commigsion!s employees named
Chapin, an engineer.

He‘made an lavention., Appareatly it is useful in con-~
nection with the field sequential system, One of the pro-
ponents of the dot sequentlal system testified that that
adapter would be useful in their systenm.

Well, they did not want it to stand that way. They
had an affidavit from him to send it to the District Court,
that 1t was not useful in connection with their system, =0
they attacked the findings as 1llegal. It 1é‘illegal.

It is illegal because an employee, a good, faithful competent
man, had made an inventlon, out of which he gets no'prcfit.
He assigned that invention to the Government of the United
siates. It is avallable to them; it 1s avalilable to every-
vody. So the finding of the Commissiocn ig 1llegal.

There is another proceeding In here, the Pilot Radio
Corporatlion. They say 1t is 1llegal because Senator Johnson,
vwho 1s Chalrmen of the Senate Coumltites, Interstate and

Foreign Commerce Committee, woobs zome letters.
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He 1s the one who created the Condoﬁ Committee, they
want the Court to belleve that something terridble has hap-
pened, and now that the Commission has not given enough
consideration to the Condon Committee report, when'the Senator
who brought that report about favors the fileld sequential
system, after he read thils report, and 1s pleading with the
Commission not to delay but to adopt it in the interest of
the public. They say that 1s illegal.

Justice Black: Do you mean that a Senator attempted
to get the Commission to act in a certain way? 1Is that in
the hearing? |

Mr. Perlman: 4No, no; there was some corregpondence.
It 1g in the record here; there is correspondence written
by Senator Johnson. The Pliot Radlo Corporation went out
to Chicago and they issued subpoenas to have the éorres-
pondence brought out there, and it was brought out there.

Justice Frankfurter: You mean the Senator wrote
letters?

Mr. Perlman: Yes, sir; the Senator wrote letters.

(1aughter)

The Chief Justlce: Wilthout any questions, your time
has expirea. |

REBUTTAL ARGUMENT ON BEHAIF OF APPELIANTS, RCA, ET AL,

By Mr, Csuill

Mr. Cahill: Mr. Ohlef Justlce, may it please the Court,
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I have a multitude of points that I must cover in the ten
minutes I have left.

First, Mr. Justice Reed, addressing myself to the ques-
tion you put to.ﬁudge Rogenman yesterday, I am sure the
Juige fell ianto unintentional error when he told you that the
only testimony on multiple standards 1n this record wss that
of General Sarnoff. I am sure that he did not have in mind
the fact that the CBS vice president, Mr. Adrien Murphy
tegtified that 1t was the duty of the Commission to adopt
elther one system Or more systems. |

Finally, I should llke to call gttention to the fact
that RCA has submitted a proposed finding to the Commission,
and I quote that finding. It is not in the record, Mr.
Justlice Reed, and I will have to submit it to you through
the c¢lerk, because we do not print the administrative hearing

record, but I will quote the finding. It 1s very brief.

This 1s the RCA finding:
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"If the ROA system is adopted as one of two op
more color systems, RCA manufacture plans will be the
same as in the event the RCA system 1s adopted
excluslvely. Under these cireumstances RCA w'll do *&s
best to develop practical color recelvers ;apable of
operating on multiple standards, and RCA would manufaém
fure and sell such>receﬁvers to the extent of publte
demand."
wa; turning, If I.may, to Mr. Justlée Clark?s question

as to vhether 1% was possible to butld a recelver that would
recefve both systems, the answer 1s, yes, such a rece*vef was
}} shown by us 1n dfagrammatic form, subm?!tted as an exh*b*t to the

Coumissions; and I am sure when couniel sald that had not been

done, agaln 1t was an unintentiocunal oversight.

i” Now, %turning to the greabest 1ssue, I think, in th's caseg -

The Chief Justice: How far along has that gotteh vast the i
dlagramnatic stage?
Mr. Cahill: It had not gotten beyond the diagrammattc

stage, Mr. Justice. I want to polnt out how pessimistiec CBS

has been throughout, that you canbtransmute or translste from
the diagram to the reality in quick tinme.

Let us just take the circumsitances 'n which thi's dects?on
was made, from the standpoint of stultifying what I think 's

the greatest plus we have ag 2 Nabtton, that ts, our priceless

pool of 1nventive research.
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CBS sald at the outset thét nothing could Tmprove the ROA
system. They testified that 1% was not even worth fleid testing.

Six months later they professed astoni shment.

On fhis eame record they adultited that, to thelr great
surprise, the ‘ROA.system was 1000 peréent improved, and that s
the statement of thelr chilef research engineer, br. Golgdnark.

Let us take the tri-color tube 1tself, whi eh 1 undoubtedly
‘the gréatest adventure in the vhole cclor Pleld, the tr!-color
tube. o

Let us take hov‘pessﬁmﬂstic,CBS was n the hearing tbat
any suéh invention could éver be developed.' |

Comua? ssioner Hemnock sa'd to the OBS vice pres*deﬁt,

Mr. Murphy:

"How about this tri-color tube that I hear is in the
developmental or drawing boasrd stage?"

Mr. Murphy of the CBS sald to Ccmmisstoner Hennoék, and I
quotes

- "Ppey will have a long walt for the tr'-color tube."

Twenty-four days later to the veey day we demcnstrateé the
actual tfi-éolor tube to'this Conzilset on. ﬁcw,'that ig how
inventions were popping out 1n this hearing, and that is why the
early part of this hearing 18, as Judge Rifkind says, as .
obsolete as an arcneological record; and %t was in that cfreum-

stance, when inventions, to use or varaphrase the title of the

popular song, "June is busting out all over" ~~ Tnvent!ons were




196

busting out all over, that they slammed the gate and would not
look at the improvements.

Now, Mr. Justice HMinton, yocu asked the Solie!tor General
was there any defintte juprovement that was called to the
Commlssion's abttention after the hearings were called. I should
like to dﬁéfer wlth the Soi#c*tor General. There was.

We called to the Commissionis express attent!on that on
the face of the tri-colgr tube héd been possible to Increase
the pictﬁre.dots from 351,000 %o 600,000, thereby 4$creas4ng
the pleture brightness three times what 1t was when these
hearings closed.

Wow that was a speclfic improvement that we asked them to
look at, and if I may say, an accompllishment of genius, and
without looking at 1t, they said they would not; that Tt was
not worth looking at.

Now, Judge Rosenman made a great po'nt yesterday that the
tolerances In our system depend on willionths of seconds. Well,
that 1s nothing new in the electron'c art.

Why, the tolerances.in the existiag black and wh'te serv!cs
depend on 1/7,000,000 of a second. |

or %ourse, in our systenm, where we have no moving parses,
wvhere our color is produced internally, from within the system,
vhere it is allwelecfron1c, we are in the field that radio and

television properly belonzs, and nst in the alien fMeld of the

spinning disce and the flying neucer, that this mechanical system
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would engraft upon an all-electronic art.

Now, the Solicitor General says here that there 18 no ;on~
fliet between the Condon report and the FCC report.

Again I am sorry to fland myself in deep aﬁsagreement wtth
the Sollcitor General. There is the utmost éonfl*ct betweer
the two, and I would ask the Court to turn to page 374 of ths
vrecord. Here thls &istinguished group of sclentists appratsed
the two systens, and they made ninebeen awards on various
inmportant points they thought wé§e involved.

The conflict 18 8o great'that here tht's group of sctentishs,
headed by the head of the National Bureau of Standards of the
United éiates, and composed of d*stﬂnguﬂshed sectentists, none
of whom has any connection whatsoever with any manufacturers
or broadcasters, of the nineteen awards, they gave eleven %o
RCA as agalnst elghit to CBS; so there is diametric and funda-
mental confiict.

One further point on the Bolicﬂtor Generaltls arguments He
told the Court this morning, of course the Comu'ssion oons*dered
the Condon weport. I should like to guote from the Governmon%'
brief in the Distrlet Court. Thexfsay 1n the Condon repori:

"This report was not péf%‘of the record before the

Comtssion. It is obviously ﬁmproper,to cons?der such

a report.“

So, therc has been a complete si' it ncw ‘n the questton of

vhether the Condon Commitbtée report was considered.
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As to whether we got a judietal review 1n the court below,
I should like to say, first, that 1%t 1s Plainly apparent that
the Distrigt Court yielded to the urgings of the appellees
that this case be passed on up to this Court, snd that, by and
large, the important gquestions in the case were not deé*ded.

Let us take the question of the findings themselves. Vhat
did the majority of the Disfrict Court say? I gquote what they
said:

"While the findings of the Comm?ssion are severely
criﬁicized it 1s not contended n the ma*n that they are
not supported by substanttal evﬁden;e.“

Now, I am sorry to have to say that if the Dﬂstr*ét Court
had looked at our briefs, we had points on the question of
substantial evidence, and we briefed those points at the greatest
length. |

I thlnk the court below dtd exactly what 1t sald 1t was
going to do. 1% was 1n doubt as to whebther to send the case
back or to send 1% up, and 1t decided %o send *t up, and the
case 18 not here because the District Court thought the
Commission was‘right, that 1s not so. They d'd not pass on the
question of whether the Commission was right.

They declded tb leave that question for this Court ta
deéide, and that 1s the only reason that the case s here, rather

than having been remanded to the Coumigsion.

Now, cn the scope of veview again, the three cases on whiceh
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the Distriect Court relied -~ all cases dec'ded prlor to your
decision in the Unlversal Camera case -~ 1t strikes me as
amazing to have the Solicttor General argue here that the rule-.
making proceeding of thils kind, where the criterta come out
tajlor-made to f1t one bidder, and one only, and that CBS,;

18 not subject to review on the question of whether there wss
evidence to support 1t.

Ag Mr. Justilce Franqu?ter said, under the guise of rule-
making you can come up with critertia or rules where, by
omission and careful selectlion, you get a result that f1%s one
and prohlbits the other.

Wow, I submlt here -~ and I would llke to deal with one
guestion cf yours, Mr. Justice Frankfurter -- you asked me
yesterday the context of the remark by Dr. Gol&mérk of CBS,
that nobody would be hurt i1f you allowed the broadcasting of
compatible color.

Well, I looked that up overnight, and the context s
precisely what I thought 1t was on this vital question éf
competition ard multiple s‘tandards. ‘I‘here we have i;he'_adm* ssfon
by CBS 1tself that nobody would be hurt *f you allowed the
broadcast of compatible color.

My time 1s up, Mr. Justice, thank you, sir.

{(Whereupon, at 1:55 p.m., oral argument 1n the above-

entitled matter was concluded.)






